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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)
Mr. BAl Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2021)
Ms. WANG Jianfei (resigned with effect from 16 August 2021)
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (resigned with effect from 5 March 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Prof. SHA Zhenquan
Mr. JING Dacheng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairperson)
Prof. SHA Zhenguan
Mr. JING Dacheng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Prof. SHA Zhenquan (Chairperson)
Mr. BAIl Tao
Mr. JING Dacheng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Prof. SHA Zhenquan (Chairperson)
Mr. BAIl Tao
Mr. JING Dacheng

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Mr. XU Da (Chairman) (appointed with effect from

13 December 2021)
Mr. BAIl Tao (appointed with effect from 13 December 2021)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (appointed with effect from

13 December 2021)
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. OR Chun Wai Dennis

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. BAI Tao
Mr. OR Chun Wai Dennis

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS OF THE GROUP’S
SUBSIDIARIES IN CHINA

Unit Nos. 2201 to 2208

Level 22, South Tower, Poly International Plaza
No. 1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu District
Guangzhou City, The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 5706, 57th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEEF

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest
Entity Auditor

801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISOR

Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

Suites 3203-3207, 32/F, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd
China Great Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd
Jinshang Bank Co., Ltd

Jincheng Bank Co., Ltd

STOCK CODE

00866

WEBSITE

http://www.ginfagroup.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity AEERBERETBFEENESL  BE AEF
for the last five financial years is set out below: RERBENT

RESULTS ES |

For the year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B ZE2-TF ZE-hhEF ZE-NF ZZT—LtF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT

Turnover ] 4,559,180 2247363 2,799,520 3,652,869 3,005,671
Gross profit EF 1,941,119 355,315 406,558 390,674 686,628
Operating profit/(loss) — #&&£& %5,/ (E518) 4,330,857 (3,946,158) 287,071 2,024,200 5,065,153
Profit/(loss) before BRE RIS F,(B518)

taxation 3,970,096  (4,312,998) (4,506) 1,759,082 4,686,441
Income tax (expense)/ FriSH (FIsz), %

credit (782,186) 876,128 85,229 (75,614)  (962,091)
Profit/(loss) for the year & R FI,/ (E518) 3,187,910 (3,436,870) 80,723 1,683,468 3,724,350

Profit/(loss) attributable FEAL % F|,/ (E518)
to:
Equity shareholders RARESFEAA

of the Company 2,793,546 (2,901,499) 81,421 1,504,509 3,158,349
Non-controlling IEPE R
interests 394,364 (5635,371) (698) 178,959 566,001
3,187,970 (3,436,870) 80,723 1,683,468 3,724,350
Coal handling and HREERE5E
trading volume (Fmg)
(’000 tonnes) 6,115 5,964 7,602 10,167 7,062
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE  AERER

As at 31 December
W+=A=+-—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--F ZZT-TF ZE-hF ZT-N\F ZT—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTT

Total assets BERE 7,864,590 5297925 9354633 9,874,769 10,298,242
Total liabilities BERE (7,579,998) (8,194,009) (8,789,369) (9,391,923) (11,502,859)
Total equity/(deficit) i (B4l 858 284,592 (2,896,084) 565,264 482,846  (1,204,617)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors” or the
“Board”) of China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”),
| hereby present the annual result of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Adhering to its corporate core value of “seeking progress in
stability”, the Group mainly aims at achieving stable results
in the domestic market while expanding into global markets.
According to the results of our internal performance appraisal,
during the year, each department of the Company managed
to complete all of its goals and tasks set at the beginning of
the year. As a result, all production and operation indicators
were better than expected at the beginning of the year. The
remarkable results demonstrated our business philosophy of
“seeking progress in stability”.

As mentioned above, despite the steady growth of our
domestic business, we are not willing to settle for the status
quo. We always keep abreast of the latest developments of
global markets, actively seeking development opportunities
in foreign markets, exploring more merger and acquisition
opportunities, and looking for new business growth points. We
firmly believe that our project in Indonesia, which is currently
in full swing, will be the key to the Group’s profit growth and
market share growth in the future.

As to fulfilling our duties as a listed company and assuming
social responsibilities, we will strengthen our environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) comprehensively to protect the
interests of all stakeholders. To this end, we have set up an
ESG committee as well as an ESG task force, and will actively
promote the standardization of ESG management systems.
We also provide anti-corruption training to all of our employees
and continuous professional development to the Directors to
ensure that our employees and the Directors are familiar with
relevant laws and regulations as well as the Listing Rules and
keep abreast of the latest developments and innovations in the
industry.

Attaching great importance to production safety, we strictly
abide by the Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China and other laws and regulations related to production
safety. We will continue to promote special rectification
measures, strengthen our production safety management and
safety measures, and improve our overall safety management.
Meanwhile, we require our frontline teams to strictly adhere to
each and every safety rule in order to prevent accidents.
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As global warming and climate change have been escalating,
governments around the world have set clear carbon
reduction targets and encouraged private companies to
pursue sustainable development. Therefore, while seeking to
continuously improve our operating results, we always regard
high-quality transformation as our development goal, and
have been actively and consistently implementing our green
energy development policy. The Group is focusing on low-
carbon transformation research, with a view to achieving the
goals of environmental protection and emissions reduction
through refined management and innovative technologies such
as intelligent coal mines. We are now phasing out outdated
technologies with high energy consumption and heavy
pollution, as we strive to make contributions to the modern
energy production and supply system and promote the healthy
development of the industry.

Although the global economy is yet to pull itself completely
out of the pandemic doldrums, | am convinced that the
management of the Group will be able to lead our employees
to cope with, and eventually overcome, any major challenge.
Facing the ever-changing external environment and coal
market, we must strengthen our risk prevention and control
system comprehensively, maintain flexibility when dealing
with market changes and enhance our ability to manage
major risks. In the coming year, everyone at the Group will
do their best in a down-to-earth manner, as we seek to gain
more influence in the global as well as domestic coal industry
and become a leading coal mining conglomerate in China
with a highly integrated supply chain comprising production,
transportation, and sales.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to all of our shareholders,
business partners and employees for their unwavering support
over the years. Building on the past, the Group will usher in a
bright future and create greater value for our investors.

Xu Da
Chairman
31 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN WD T

The Group is a leading non-state owned thermal coal supplier
in China, and it operates an integrated coal supply chain,
including coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage
and blending of coal in the PRC. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group continued to focus on these
business activities and expanded its integrated coal supply
chain to the overseas.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The market gradually recovered from the impact of Covid-19
as the pandemic situation in mainland China gradually eased
during the year 2021. On the supply and demand sides of
thermal coal, the demand of downstream industries for energy
was gradually released due to the recovery of the domestic
market, while the coal import policy remained relatively strict.
During the year, the Chinese coal market saw a tight supply-
demand balance, with a strong demand for thermal coal.

Establishment of Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee

The Group is committed to giving back to society, upholding
its core corporate values and fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility. Accordingly, the Board established an
environmental, social and governance committee (the
“Committee”) during the year. Mr. XU Da, Chairman of the
Group, was appointed as chairman of the Committee. Mr.
XU Da is responsible for leading and guiding the team to
implement environmental, social and governance measures,
assist the Board in formulating relevant policies and review
the results on a regular basis to ensure the compliance
with relevant laws, regulations, standards and regulatory
requirements.

The Group actively explores new ways to reduce resource
consumption. For example, we promote environmental
initiatives within the Group and have adopted green
procurement policies, with a view to reducing emissions in
the long run. In addition, as we highly value the opinions of
stakeholders, during the year we conducted a series of surveys
related to the Group’s environmental and social policies and
governance issues through questionnaires distributed to key
stakeholders including our partners, employees, suppliers and
customers. Through proactive engagement with stakeholders
and an interactive approach to understanding stakeholders’
appeals and their expectations of the Group, we aim to
address precisely the concerns of all stakeholders and create
sustainable returns for them.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Completion of major transaction relating to disposal of
vessel “SUPER GRACE”

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 10
March 2021 and 14 May 2021 and the circular of the Company
dated 30 April 2021, the Group sold a vessel named “SUPER
GRACE” to an independent third party at a total consideration
of US$14.9 million on 14 May 2021 pursuant to the terms
and conditions set out in the memorandum of agreement
dated 10 March 2021. Upon completion of the transaction,
“SUPER GRACE” ceased to be the asset of the Group. As the
second-hand bulk carrier market was gradually improving,
the directors considered that the disposal represented an
opportunity to dispose of the vessel at a reasonable price,
which would enable the Group to improve its liquidity position
and lower the gearing ratio thus enhancing the Group's overall
financial position. The disposal constituted a major transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and was subject to approval by
the shareholders of the Company. On 12 March 2021, Mr.
XU Jihua, Fortune Pearl International Limited, Mr. Xu Da and
Ms. WANG Jianfei, who beneficially owned in aggregate
approximately 51.83% of the total issued share capital of the
Company, gave their written approval on the disposal.

Completion of discloseable transaction relating to disposal
of vessel “QIN FA 18”

As disclosed in the announcements of the Group dated
6 December 2021 and 23 December 2021, after careful
consideration and giving priority to the best interest of the
Group and its shareholders as a whole, the Group sold a
vessel named “QIN FA 18” to an independent third party at
a total consideration of RMB66.33 million on 23 December
2021 pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in the
memorandum of agreement dated 6 December 2021. Upon
completion of the transaction, “QIN FA 18" ceased to be the
asset of the Group. The directors of the Group believed that
the disposal would enable the Group to reallocate its financial
resources effectively and make appropriate investments in
its coal handling business which accounts for the majority
of the Group’s revenue. As the second-hand bulk carrier
market was gradually improving, the directors considered
that it represented an opportunity to dispose of the vessel at
a reasonable price, which would enable the Group to improve
its liquidity position and lower the gearing ratio thus enhancing
the Group’s overall financial position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBWED N

Completion of acquisition of 70% equity interest of PT
SUMBER DAYA ENERGI

As disclosed in the announcement of the Group dated 25
May 2021, the Group completed a discloseable transaction in
relation to the proposed acquisition of 70% equity interest of PT
SUMBER DAYA ENERGI (“SDE”). The Group has dispatched
technical teams to carry out exploration and planning in the
region. The Group expects that its coal production will increase
significantly when the coal mines under the SDE project are
put into production.

Continuing acquisition of 70% equity interest of 5
additional mining business licenses

As disclosed in the announcements of the Group dated 13 May
2021, 12 November 2021 and 3 January 2022, the Group and
the sellers will establish new mining companies, which will be
owned by the Group as to 75% and the respective sellers as
to 25%, and the sellers will subsequently transfer their mining
business licenses to the new mining companies within specific
periods of time. The acquisition is in progress and the required
government approvals are pending.

Reaching a loan restructuring proposal

As disclosed in the announcement of the Group dated 13
December 2021, a major lending bank of the Group (the
“Original Creditor”) sold the original debt to a domestic asset
management company (the “Current Creditor”) by way of
discounting. The Group and the Current Creditor reached a
loan restructuring proposal for the repayment of the original
debt. According to the proposal, the Current Creditor agrees
to reduce the original debt by approximately RMB404,088,649.
Thus, the principal balance of the outstanding debt shall be
RMB435,636,667. This loan restructuring proposal will enable
the Group to ease pressure on cash flow and allocate funds
with more flexibility. In the future, the Group will continue to
negotiate with creditors and consider different financing and
repayment plans to improve cash flow.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 2 March 2022, PT Qinfa Mining Industri, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a construction
contract and a technical service contract each dated 2 March
2022 (collectively, the “Construction Contracts”) with Jiangsu
Mining Engineering Group Co., Ltd. (T#&RETRE®E A
R A A])(“Jiangsu Mining”), pursuant to which Jiangsu Mining
shall provide services including construction of shafts and
provision of project implementation services in the mining area
of the coal mine in Sungai Durian, Kotabaru, South Kalimantan,
Indonesia that PT Sumber Daya Energi, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, holds the mining business
license. The total contract sum under the Construction
Contracts is RMB68 million.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group owned and operated five
coal mines in China and one coal mine in Indonesia. The table
sets forth certain information about these coal mines.

EEEWED

R-ZZE-Z—F=A-0  ARAHE2EHBA
AREEEERARETIHEREIREEFR
RAR(ITHBENDTVASSEA-T 4=
AZBREEEHNRBINREE N (RBIEES
W) BRIHBEAERMETRE TR
A R IE2 A B A FPT Sumber Daya Energi
BERBEESIENEBERER AR EEREN
BE2REIFTEEESungai Durian) @& i &
RE|EBEEERRE - BEEANNBENSTEARA
E#68,000,0007T ©

RIZE-_—F+-A=+—H XEBETLRH
BREEREARBEYEENEEAE hEE —@E
e TR EEZEEENETER -

Production
Location Ownership Site area capacity Operation status
it B BEEOHL [k EEHRN EBEKRR
(million
(sg. km) tonnes)
(FHRE) (B BHE)
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 4.25 1.5 Under operation
- Xingtao Coal L7 AN ZiEH
EXRGR - WX
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 2.43 0.9 Under operation
- Fengxi Coal LLPE A M BB
EXRER - BARE
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 2.88 0.9 Under operation
- Chongsheng Coal g A M EiEH
FEXRER - SAHEE
Shenda Energy Xinzhou Shanxi 100% 4.01 0.9 Under development
- Xinglong Coal LR AT M (Temporarily
TERLR - HE IR ZE suspended)
FEEH (E1F)
Shenda Energy Xinzhou Shanxi 100% 1.32 0.9 Under development
- Hongyuan Coall g TN (Temporarily
TBERR - AR suspended)
FEF (=)
Sumber Daya Energi Kalimantan, 70% 185 N/A  Under development
- SDE Coal Indonesia THEA REHR
Sumber Daya Energi ENEME S5}
— SDE 2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE R WD

COAL CHARACTERISTICS B RSE
Characteristics and typical commercial coal quality of the N5 Bl #38 & KL% P A 22 6 7 36 R ) i 1 e L B
commercial coal produced by the Group’s operating mines are PEERESMT
as follows:
Huameiao Shenda Shenda Sumber
Huameiao Huameiao Energy - Energy - Energy - Daya
Energy - Energy-  Chongsheng Xinglong Hongyuan Energi -
Xingtao Coal  Fengxi Coal Coal Coal Coal SDE Coal
Sumber
Daya
BEXRWR- BERER- EXRER- WERR - WERR - Energi-
Coal Quality Characteristic ~ EE## BREE BRERE RREE RERE RERE SDEf %
Coal Seam KE 4,8,9,10, 11 4,911 4,911 2,5 2,56 B,D
Moisture (%) K (%) 7-10 8-12 8-12 85 85 8-11
Ash (db, %) KA (do + %) 2028 20-28 20-28 2145 30-72 22-25
Sulfur (db, %) HE(do - %) 14-19 1.2-1.6 1.6-2.5 1.52 1.45 0.18-1.2
Calorific Value (average, RERETY TR/
kealkg, net, ar) Tr 56 a) 46505200 4600-5,150  4,600-5,150 4,838 4,187 5,300

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEERAF



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRED T
OPERATING DATA BELHE
Reserves and Resources HERERE
Huameiao Huameiao ~ Huameiao ~ Shenda  Shenda  Sumber
Energy—  Energy - Energy-  Energy-  Energy - Daya
Xingtao Fengxi Chongsheng  Xinglong Hongyuan  Energi-
Coal Coal Coal Coal Coal  SDE Coal Total
Sumber
EZR EXR EXR Wiz BE Daya
R - B8R - B8R - R - #F-  Energi-
BREE BRERE EREE  EERE  ZERE  SDERX @t
Reserves e
Reserves as of 1 January BE-_Z-_-F-f-Bf
2021 (M) HE(aEm)
- Proven reserves -ERARE 13.07 161 156 = = - 1624
- Probable reserves -EHEE 402 125 6.50 13.50 10.46 29300 33473
Total reserves as of 1January BE-S--F-A-Bf
2021 (Mt) BEE(FER) 17.09 8.86 8.06 13.50 10.46 29300 35097
Less:Total raw coal production i - FNEH#BESE
for the year (Mt) (BEW) (2.84) (379) (2.89) = = = (9.52)
Reserves as of 31 December ~ EZ-Z--£+_f
2021 (M) =t-ANRE(EER) 14.25 5.07 517 13.50 10.46 293.00 34145
Resources Ehg
(measured + indicated) (FRE+EH#)
Resources as of 1 January BE-S--F-A-Bf
2021 (Mt) ERE(EER) 4951 19.93 20.37 35.08 20.87 58922 734.98
Less:Total raw coal production i - FREHBES
for the year (Mt) (REW) (2.84) (379) (2.89) = = = (9.52)
Resources as of 31 December ~ BZ-Z=-f+=f§
2021 (i) St-RNRERERE o 6y 1748 308 2087 5922 72546

—E-—FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED M

The Group engaged an independent mineral industry
consultant to estimate the total coal reserves and resources
of the SDE Coal Mine in Indonesia as at 31 December 2021 in
accordance with the JORC Code.

The following table sets forth the full-year production figures at
the abovementioned mines for the years indicated:

AEEER—

ERERVRTEES LN
BlfstEz T -—F+ - A =+—HEHJESDE
HENEEIEENERE -

AIRZEJORCST

TRIR BRREBRAARFEN 2 FESCE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
(’000 tonnes) (’000 tonnes)
Raw coal production volume REEE (F ) (Fm8)
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal EXRER - WEEE 2,843 3,296
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal EXBEER - FRE 3,790 2,839
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EXRER - SHEE 2,889 2,650
Total et 9,522 8,785
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLEE
2021 2020
—B-—fF —E_TF
Commercial coal production (’000 tonnes) (’000 tonnes)
volume (Note) BEEER (M) (F ) (Fmg)
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coall EXRRLR - EIPHEE 1,848 2,142
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal EXRLR - HAKE 2,463 1,846
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EXELR - SARE 1,878 1,722
Total st 6,189 5,710

Note:  According to the competent person’s report issued on 29 March  Mf&E :

2021, the historical operation of the Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and
Chongsheng Coal achieved an average of 65% of mixed marketable
raw coal yield.

14 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED +EEREEERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED

Exploration, Mining and Development Expenses BhiR - AR REREA

The Group’s exploration, mining and development expenses  AEERHF - FRIBAZERASEA TS
consist of the following amounts:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Materials and consumables R B R 105,913 85,592
Staff cost BTA 340,642 256,492
Other direct cost Hip FHEMAA 56,850 46,248
Overhead and others i YELi) 1,180,525 666,917
Evaluation fee FEE 586 170
Total BT 1,684,516 1,055,419
FINANCIAL REVIEW B % B B8

Revenue L ON

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Coal business S 4,498,980 2,190,112
Shipping transportation iEEs 60,200 57,251
4,559,180 2,247,363

—®——4#53 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED M

Coal business B e EH
Year ended 31 December
BEZE+-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi —EFF f‘E
(’000 tonnes) (’000 tonnes)
(F W) (Fm8)
Coal Handling and Trading Volume of HREBOREREERESE
Coal Business 6,115 5,964

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the volume of the
Group’s coal handling and trading increased as compared
with 2020. The coal selling prices during the year ended 31
December 2021 were in range between RMB345 per tonne
and RMB1,916 per tonne, as compared to the coal selling
prices between RMB192 per tonne and RMB586 per tonne
in 2020. Average coal selling price increased mainly due to
significant raise on coal market price during the year.

The average coal selling price and the average monthly coal
handling and trading volume for each of the three years ended
31 December 2021 are set forth in the table below:

BE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HLFE ££HE
MREREERBEGER S _ZSFHREM - &
EZE-—F+-A=+-BIFEHEREB
NFEMAREIMSTTEFGHEARE 916T2
M M_ZE_ZTFNEREEINTEEARE
102 E M A RSS2 M » FHEREE E
F o EBRAEFABEKTEAE EFRTE -

BE TS+t _A=+t—-HLE=ZEFESX
FPORREBRTHEARREENESE
NI

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—HLEFE

2021 2020 2019
B ZEFTF ZIT-NF

Average coal selling price TR RERE
(RMB per tonne) (WA R TT)

736 367 358

Average monthly coal handling and FTHEARRKERESE

trading volume (000 tonnes) (Fmg)

510 497 634

16 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED +EEREEERAT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group sells blended coal which is sourced solely from the
PRC domestic markets to customers, including power plants
and coal traders. Most of the Group’s customers are located in
the coastal regions of China. Power plants purchase coal for
use in the combustion processes to produce steam for power
and heat. The following table sets forth information regarding
the Group’s revenue from coal business by industry segment
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

EEEWED

AEEGHE ST BBEATSRENRKEERK
BREETRERIRRESBHERF - AKET
FLZEuRFELEBE - HERRBREXAR
MEERIE - MEAZTANBEERER - TRH
IAEERBE_T-_—Fh_FT_FTF+_-A
=+ —BIEFERITED G E D B R REB KA
HER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—-HLEE

2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi —Z= E'E
Percentage Percentage
Revenue of revenue Revenue of revenue
EFEILON B
PN BB DL A B
RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total
AREF (%) AR®ETIT (%)
Power plants B 518,815 11.5 329,677 15.1
Coal traders j874= 8 k=] 3,980,165 88.5 1,860,435 84.9
Total BET 4,498,980 100.0 2,190,112 100.0
Shipping transportation MEE

The segment revenue for shipping transportation from external
customers for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
RMB60.2 million as compared with RMB57.3 million in 2020.
The effect on disposal of the Group’s vessels during 2021 was
offset by the increase in freight rate, therefore the segment
revenue for shipping remained constant. The Group disposed
all its vessels as at 31 December 2021.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group in 2021 amounted to RMB2,618.1
million, representing an increase of 38.4% compared with
RMB1,892.0 million in 2020. The increase was due to the
increase in transportation fee, depreciation, amortisation and
staff costs.

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—8BLFEREMN
HERFHMEER S IPUWA B AREG0,200,000
T MZEZEF A A ARMS57,300,0007T © A
CE I FHEAEEMMNEEN BRI A
- AtMBR D BRAFTFE - RZT=—
+ZA=+—8 AEBEELEEMEMM -

HERAE

AEBR-_ZE-Z—FHHEHEXNLTAARE
26w1oom0mvf_?_?¢AE%
1,892,000,0007C# N38.4% ° A RELE H1J5 A E
WE - TE  BIERBIAA LA -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBWED N

The table below set forth the cost of sales of the coal business
segment:

TREINREREH D BEOVHEKAK

Year ended 31 December
BEZE+-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECTHF

RMB million RMB million

ARBEERT AREHER

Cost of purchase FREER A 9.0 66.9

Cost of coal transportation B R BB E KA 890.3 723.6

Cost of self-produced coal B E R IR YRR 1,684.5 1,055.4

Materials, fuel, power FEE - RE S Eh 162.8 131.8

Staff costs 8 TR 340.6 256.5

Depreciation and amortisation ITE K8 723.6 461.7

Others Hth 457.5 205.4
Total cost of sales of coal business R EB DR EEKAR

segment 2,583.8 1,845.9

The Group produced coal mainly from Shanxi province in the
PRC. The following table sets forth information regarding the
Group’s origins of coal based on sales volume and revenue in
2021 and 2020:

AREBTEEPFEILAELEERRK - TRHIA
AAEER —_ZE-_—FR T -_TFHMEKES
RA D82 KRRz BF

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECFTF
Sales volume Revenue Sales volume Revenue
HE L/ON HE WA
Origins of coal 15 5= AR ’000 tonnes RMB’000 ‘000 tonnes RMB’'000
T mg AR®T T F g ARBTTT
China H 6,115 4,498,980 5,964 2,190,112

The Group has stable coal production and has established
stable cooperative relationships with its key PRC domestic
customers.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit margin was 42.6% during the year
ended 31 December 2021 as compared with gross profit
margin of 15.8% during the year of 2020. Gross profit margin
increased mainly due to the increase on average coal price.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s other
income, gains and losses amounted to a net gain of RMB377.5
million, representing an increase of approximately of RMB514.6
million, as compared with a net loss of RMB137.1 million in
2020. The increase in other income, gains and losses in 2021
was mainly due to the one-off gain on substantial modification
upon loan restructuring and increase in government subsidies
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses increase by 100.4% to RMB4.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, as compared with
RMB2.3 million in 2020. The increase in distribution expenses
was due to the one off commission expenses on the disposal
of vessels during the year.

Administrative Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
administrative expenses amounted to RMB250.7 million,
representing an increase of 20.3%, as compared with
RMB208.4 million in 2020. The increase was mainly attributable
to the increase in staff costs and other taxes. The Group strived
to provide competitive remuneration package to existing staffs.

Other Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s other
expenses amounted to RMB44.5 million, representing an
increase of 33.0%, as compared with RMB33.5 million in 2020.
The increase in other expenses was mainly due to increase
in capital occupation fee and surcharge on resource tax
payment.

EEEWED

ER

HEZTZ-_—F+ZA=+—HLEFE  ~5H
WENE H42.6% MR -ZT - TENEFN XA
5B15.8% o EFEEMEZ AN FHIHE K ERIL
hnpTEY -

HtA - s REE

BHE_Z-—F+-_A=+—RHLEFEE #H=-F
“EFEEEEARE137,100,000THEE - K
SENEMBA - BEkEEAKZFEARE
377,500,0007T * %y A R#514,600,0007T °
TE-FMHEMARA - WS REREMEZAH
ﬁé%ﬁ;‘ﬁ:?:*ﬁﬂL:ﬂ:Jr*ElﬁﬁﬁﬁAE%(
BHEBEEEXRER 2 —AMEERBEN#EE S
EANFTEL ©

2 X

DIEASE T - TF AREE2 300,000 L
EH1004% 2B E_E-_—F+-_A=+—HI
FEMAREA500,0007T ° 2 T IE T H R
FERHEMAN— XML FTE -

TR

BHE-_T-—#+-_A=+—HItEE *&H
BT RS2 A A R#250,700,0007 » B - T —F
F AR 208,400,000 T L EIE N20.3% © 3 HN R
EFERE TRAREMBIEE I 75% Eiw)

FERA B TR AR BT NHFGET

Hpax

BE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLFE  x5£E
HEAM RS B AR 44,500,000 B-E-F
£ A R#33,500,0007T1E 133.0% o FH th B &z 12
miyERESERE RERB AT nE 1L
FTEK »
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED M

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs of the Group in 2021 amounted to RMB360.8
million, representing a decrease of 2.2%, as compared with
RMB369.0 million in 2020. The amount remained constant.

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB2.8 billion,
as compared with loss attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB2.9 billion in 2020. The increase in
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
mainly attributable to (i) the Group had benefited from external
economic factors that the market price for coal experienced
significant increase during the year which led to a substantial
increase in the operating profit; (ii) the Group had reached
loan restructuring arrangements with certain creditors of the
Group, pursuant to which a non-operating profit resulting from
the gain on debt restructuring is expected to be recorded,;
and (iii) reversal of impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and coal mining rights due to significant increase in
coal price.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEERAF

Bt #E R A R

$%l#*%*f¢mﬁ7fﬁ*¥}ﬁ$%§ﬁ7‘%)\
R#¥360,800,000L ' BT -_TF ARE
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ROTERETE ABIEEF
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= E AEERF A AR2,800,000,0007T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Reversal of impairment losses on coal mining rights,
property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2021, with the continuing significant
favourable coal market circumstances of the coal business
segment, the directors of the Company, with the assistance
from an independent professional qualified valuer, namely
Apac Asset Valuation & Consulting Ltd, assessed the
recoverable amounts of the Group’s coal mines and related
property, plant and equipment. Each of the Group’s coal mines
and the related property, plant and equipment are considered
as an individual cash-generating unit. The recoverable amount
of each of the cash-generating unit was estimated based on
its value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on the most recent financial budgets approved by the
directors of the Company covering a five-year period, and
discount rates ranging from 15.87% to 23.25% (2020: 13.75%
to 20.14%), and the available coal reserves of approximately
48.45 million tonnes (2020: 57.97 million tonnes), which
comprise approximately 14.25 million tonnes (2020: 17.09
million tonnes) in Xingtao Coal Mine, approximately 5.07
million tonnes (2020: 8.86 million tonnes) in Fengxi Coal
Mine, approximately 5.17 million tonnes (2020: 8.06 million
tonnes) in Chongsheng Coal Mine, approximately 13.50 million
tonnes (2020: 13.50 million tonnes) in Xinglong Coal Mine
and approximately 10.46 million tonnes (2020: 10.46 million
tonnes) in Hongyuan Coal Mine, together with other key inputs
including the estimated coal prices of CGUs ranging from
RMB543 to RMB669 per tonne (2020: RMB325 to RMB373 per
tonne) and production costs etc.. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period have been extrapolated using an estimated 1.80%
(2020: 2.22%) growth rate which do not exceed the average
growth rate for the relevant markets. With the assistance from
Apac Asset Valuation & Consulting Ltd, the directors of the
Company concluded that the estimated recoverable amount of
each of the following cash-generating units as at 31 December
2021 was higher than the respective carrying amount of the
cash-generating unit. As a result, reversal of impairment
losses on the Group’s coal mining rights and the related
property, plant and equipment, amounting to approximately
RMB1,441,315,000 and RMB852,991,000 respectively were
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2021.

EEEWED

BRRRE - W% BERRENRESRERD

RZZE=_—F+=-A=+—H BREREED
HOBRERMSRBFERENT XRRESHE
BYEEAERGHEMDAEETHRER AR
RENBET  FFEAEEERREBYE - K
EREEHTREE5E - AEESEERBED
¥ BEMEHEHWEABIMNESESLEM -
EESEABMMNAWESRENBEREFEHEE
HE mMEAEFREERERTREAQATE
BRI ERE A FHEMBEENR SR
S8R UARNF15.87% % 23.25% M EEIR & (=
T T 13.75%220.14%) I B Fi Bl &9 B 5% -6
S48 AR EME(ZZE ZF : 57.97E M) (B
EEEEELN 14258 8 mﬂ:%:ﬂi £17.09

BHENE) BEHERASC7TEEM(CE_TF
8.86BEM) EAXBLHSA7TEEM(ZZ =

F 806850 « HEHELH1308EME (=
ZTF - 13.50E B R A ERBEL10.46F B
(CE-THF 1046 8BM)) EREMTIES
ABEBEREELAEUNTE @AE%M:«;E
EAREGCOTTHAERER(ZEZF :
m&AEMszsyzi/\Eﬁ%?an)&i?%aﬁf} o
BRAFHARMNEBESRECHEA1.80%(ZE -
F 1 220%) MHFIIEREEE B ERTER
BAEEMIEMFEEIERE - £ KEEF G MR
WERARNBHT  ARREERAE  TH&
ReEXBNAR _E-_—F+-A=+—B8H
ArkEsBEeaRNAEReEEAEUMNERE -
At 2T - —F+_-_A=1+—HILFES
Rt AN S B MY B R BRI AE AR BE 3 - E R
HIERBERBERE A R1,441,315,0007T &
AR#852,991,0007T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED M

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES AND CURRENT RATIO

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$2,709.1 million, compared with HK$4,204.7 million
as of 31 December 2020. The Group’s current ratio as of
31 December 2021 was 0.41, compared with 0.18 as of
31 December 2020. The current liabilities and current ratio
was slightly improved due to increase in current assets and
decrease in current liabilities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred
an aggregate capital expenditure of HK$157.9 million (2020:
HK$48.2 million) mainly related to the purchase of plant
and equipment. Capital commitments contracted for but not
incurred by the Group as of 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK$157.0 million (2020: HK$35.0 million), which were mainly
related to the purchase of plant and equipment.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no material
change in the capital structure of the Company during the year.
The capital of the Group companies are mainly the ordinary
shares and perpetual subordinated convertible securities
(“PSCS"). Details of the ordinary shares and PSCS are set out
in note 32(b) and note 32(c).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts stringent financial management policies
and strives to maintain a healthy financial condition. The Group
funds its business operations and general working capital by
internally generated financial resources and bank and other
borrowings. As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded net
current liabilities of RMB2,709.1 million (2020: RMB4,204.7
million).

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has taken initiative to enhance the financial
flexibility by diversifying the funding bases and obtain medium
term loans to replace short term loans. The Group is currently
negotiating with financial institutions to renew and extend
bank borrowings and consider ways to improve the Group’s
working capital. As of 31 December 2021, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB1,030,439,000
(2020: RMB154,900,000), representing an increase of 565%.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank and other borrowings of
the Group amounting to RMB1,475.9 million (31 December
2020: RMB1,971.0 million) were classified as current liabilities.
Due to breach of loan covenants and/or occurrence of default
events (including the breach of cross default clauses), certain
bank and other borrowings with the aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB1,428,514,000 (31 December
2020: RMB1,808,207,000), in which the aggregate amount of
RMB790,514,000 (31 December 2020: RMB1,144,567,000)
was past due, and aggregate amounts of RMB577,000,000 (31
December 2020: RMB663,640,000) were repayable within one
year and after one year respectively from the end of reporting
date based on the agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
respective loan agreements, had become due for immediate
repayment. The bank and other borrowings carried interest at
rates ranging from 5.7% to 8.8% (as at 31 December 2020:
3.9% to 8.8%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total banking
and other borrowing facilities of RMB3,692.6 million (2020:
RMB4,596.4 million), of which RMB3,692.6 million (2020:
RMB4,596.4 million) were utilised.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, except amount of RMB25.9 million in United States
dollars (*USD”) and amount of RMB1 million in HKD, were held
in RMB. All the Group’s bank and other borrowings were made
in RMB.

The gearing ratio (calculated as borrowings netted off sum
of cash and cash equivalents and pledged and restricted
deposits divided by total assets) of the Group as at 31
December 2021 was 33.8% (2020: 83.8%). The gearing
ratio decreased due to the total asset increase according to
increase in profit attributable to equity shareholders for the
year.

EEEWED
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately
in RMB and USD. Operating outgoings incurred by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly denominated in RMB while
overseas purchases are usually denominated in USD. The
Group’s subsidiaries usually receive revenue in RMB. Hence,
the Directors do not consider that the Group faces significant
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s assets in an aggregate
amount of RMB3,333.9 million (2020: RMB2,534.2 million) in
forms of property, plant and equipment, coal mining rights,
lease prepayments, inventories, trade and bill receivables and
bank deposits were pledged to banks and asset management
companies for credit facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LITIGATIONS

Except for certain matters related to litigations and arbitrations
disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements
in this announcement, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021. In December
2020, the Group has initiated to file an application of an
arbitration with the vendors of Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and
Chongsheng Coal. After a complicated legal process, the
verdict of the arbitration was issued by Beijing Arbitration
Commission during 2021. The Arbitral Tribunal did not rule in
the favour of the applicant. Nevertheless, the Directors expect
that the verdict of the arbitration will have no material impact
on the overall financial or operating conditions of the Group.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the impairment losses
on the Group’s coal mining rights and the related property,
plant and equipment were recognised to reflect the Group’s
change in estimate about the coal reserves. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the reversal of impairment losses
on the Group’s coal mining rights (see note 15) and the related
property, plant and equipment (see note 16) were reversed
due to significant increase in coal price.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLEDGE OF SHARES BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Fortune Pearl International Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Mr. Xu Jihua, the controlling shareholder, pledged 949,000,000
shares of the Company, representing approximately 38.06%
of the issued share capital of the Company, for the purpose of
securing the loans of approximately RMB2,145,073,000 as at
31 December 2021 owed by certain subsidiaries of the Group
to a creditor. In addition, pursuant to the debt restructuring
proposal, if there is any material change in the shareholding
of the Company held by the controlling shareholder of the
Company, the creditor shall have the right to withdraw the debt
reduction and the revised repayment schedule granted to the
Group. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 9 August 2018.

FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2021

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As of 31 December 2021, the Group employed 2,645
employees. The Group has adopted a performance-based
reward system to motivate its staff and such system is reviewed
on a regular basis. In addition to the basic salaries, year-end
bonuses may be offered to staff members with outstanding
performance.

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are also
subject to central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. In accordance with the relevant national
and local labour and social welfare laws and regulations,
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are
required to pay on behalf of their employees a monthly social
insurance premium covering pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance. Subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong have participated in mandatory provident fund scheme,
if applicable, in accordance with Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance.
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Moreover, the Company adopted a pre-IPO share option
scheme and a post-IPO share option scheme to incentivise
and retain staff members who have made contribution to
the success of the Group. The Directors believe that the
compensation packages offered by the Group to its staff
are competitive in comparison with market standards and
practices.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The international situation has been volatile and uncertain
recently. Since 2022, Russia has been sanctioned by Western
countries due to the war between Russia and Ukraine. As
Russia is one of the major coal suppliers for the international
community, the sanctions have greatly affected Russia’s coal
exports to Europe and the international community. As a result,
the international community has turned to other countries such
as Australia and Indonesia for coal imports, and the shortage
of coal supply has caused the global prices of thermal coal
to soar to new heights. After successfully acquiring the SDE
coal mine in Indonesia in 2021, the Group is now expediting
its commissioning and will put it into operation as soon as
possible.

The Group has been closely monitoring the global
development of the pandemic as well as changes in the coal
market. Looking forward to 2022, we expect that, with the
widespread vaccination on the population and the effective
anti-pandemic measures put in place by the government,
the pandemic situation in China will gradually ease and the
economy will pick up momentum, leaving behind the doldrums
caused by the pandemic.

Keeping abreast of the latest development of the global
market, the Group’s management is aware of the abundant
coal resources in Indonesia, which have reasonable valuations
as well as enormous growth potential. We have been
developing our Indonesian coal mine business diligently for
several years. In the future, the Group will continue to actively
conduct strategic planning in both domestic and foreign
markets to identify assets with high growth potential.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group will continue to enhance its efforts to carry out
exploration, and actively improve the production efficiency
and production volume of its coal mines in China by promoting
intelligent coal mines and strengthening collaborative
scheduling. In addition, the Group will accelerate the
production capacity building for the coal mines in Kotabaru
Regency, South Kalimantan, Indonesia under the SDE
project, and strive to put these mines into production as soon
as possible. While engaging in coal business in Indonesia,
we have been strengthening our relationship with the local
community, actively supporting the development of the local
community, and establishing a long-term and good relationship
with the Indonesian government. The Group is also leveraging
its strategic partnership with Indonesian companies to continue
to cautiously seek opportunities to develop in Indonesia.

The Group will continue to expand its supplier network and
seek high-quality suppliers for cooperation to ensure the
market will see coal supply of reliable quality and stable
quantity in 2022. Meanwhile, we will strengthen our marketing
efforts to expand our customer base, with a view to extending
our sales network to more cities with untapped market
potential, increasing our market share as well as enhancing
our competitiveness in the market.

The Group will adhere to its integrated business model, which
comprises the production, transportation and sale of coal. We
will continue to optimize our production and operational plans
and smoothen the transition from production to sale, thus
reducing the cost of transportation within the Group. We will
also make targeted procurement and enhance our inventory
management through our internal monitoring and feedback
system. In 2022, the Group will continue to negotiate with
financing institutions in China and weigh different financing
options to enhance cash flow and invest in key projects. We
will optimize and adjust our investment projects in a dynamic
manner in response to market changes.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the financial
year ended 31 December 2021.

Material Uncertainty related to going concern

As set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB2,709,069,000. As at 31 December 2021, the borrowings
and accrued interest amounting to an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB1,428,514,000 and approximately
RMB274,265,000 respectively had been due for immediate
payment. In addition, as at 31 December 2021, there were
several unsettled litigations against the Group mainly
requesting the Group to repay certain payables with interest
immediately as set out in note 39. These conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

An audit committee was established by the Board on 12 June
2009 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the Group’s financial reporting process and
internal controls. The members of the audit committee of the
Board are the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, Prof. SHA Zhenquan and Mr. JING
Dacheng. Mr. LAU Sik Yuen is the chairperson of the audit
committee of the Board.

The audit committee has reviewed the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2021.
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The Board presents this annual report, together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the coal operation
business involving coal mining, purchase and sales,
filtering, storage, blending of coal in the PRC and shipping
transportation. The principal activities of the major subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the business review and outlook of the Group are
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 28 of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial condition,
results of operation, businesses and prospects may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties as follows:

Risks of macroeconomic fluctuations and national policies

Coal industry is closely linked to the macroeconomy and
industrial regulatory policies. With current complex external
environment, there have been economic downward pressure
and relative measures by government such as supply-side
reform. The Group will continue to monitor the macroeconomic
development and to adjust its strategies to cope with the risks.

Risk of fluctuation on commodity price

International and domestic coal prices are affected by various
microeconomic factors, industrial factors, national policies,
market demand and supply, characteristics of coal and
volatility in prices of other raw materials for power generation
etc.. The Group will flexibly adjust its strategies and implement
measures such as cost control to minimise the impact on profit
margin caused by fluctuation on coal price.
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Risk of safety production

The production process of coal mining involve complex
uncertainties that involve higher safety risks. The Group
continues to strengthen its safety management and control
system by implementing assessment on significant safety risks,
risk prevention measures, regular inspections, regular safety
production training, upgrade on automation of production
process, review of procedure on addressing potential safety
hazards and promotion of safety awareness among employee.

Risks of creditability and liquidity

Due to slowdown of domestic economy, the Group’s
customers may suffer from liquidity and cash flow problems
that will inevitably affect the recoverability of the Group’s trade
receivables and the Group’s liquidity. The Group will closely
monitor its credit exposure, continuously evaluate the collection
history of its customers, adjust the credit line and credit period
given to customers and closely monitor the Group’s liquidity
requirements on ongoing basis in order to maintain sufficient
reserves of cash for operational need.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The following table sets forth certain of our key financial ratios
as of the dates and for the years indicated.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

Notes 2021 2020
M —E-—F e 3
Profitability ratios BRIgE =
Gross profit margin ER= 1 42.6% 15.8%
Net profit/(loss) margin Fm ), (EE) X 2 69.9% (152.9%)
Liquidity ratios REBESER
Current ratio mENLE & 3 0.41 0.18
Gearing ratio EEARLE 4 33.8% 83.8%
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Note:

@

@)

4)

The calculation of gross profit margin is based on gross profit divided
by revenue for the year indicated and multiplied by 100%. Gross profit
margin is significantly improved due to increase in coal market price.

The calculation of net profit margin is based on profit/(loss) for the year
divided by revenue for the year indicated and multiplied by 100%. Net
profit/(loss) margin is significantly improved due to increase in coal
market price.

The calculation of current ratio is based on current assets divided by
current liabilities as of December 31, 2021. Current ratio is improved
because of increase in cash balance. Net cash generated from
operating activities is significantly improved during year 2021.

The calculation of gearing ratio is based on borrowings netted off sum
of cash and cash equivalents and pledged and restricted deposits
divided by total assets. The improvement of gearing ratio is attributed to
the following factors:

(i) cash balance is increased due to improvement in the operation
of the Group;

(ii) repayment of borrowings for year 2021 is increased compared
with year 2020; and

(iii) total assets are increased because of the reversal of
impairment losses on coal mining rights, property, plant and
equipment during year 2021.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Environmental,

social and governance policies of the

Company are listed out as below. For details of environmental
performance, please refer to “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.

Environment

To strictly abide by environmental laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
Law of the PRC on Promotion of Cleaner Production,
Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, Law of the PRC
on Energy Conservation, and Renewable Energy Law of
the PRC;
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To minimise the possible impact of our operations on
the environment by enhancing the efficiency of our
resource consumption, reducing our pollutant emissions
and improving our hazardous and non-hazardous waste
management;

To promote green production to reduce our carbon
footprint, and to build climate resilience into our
operations; and

To identify and assess climate change-related physical
risks and opportunities on a regular basis with a view to
developing appropriate response mechanisms.

Society

32

To strictly abide by society-related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to those related to corruption
and bribery, discrimination, confidentiality, conflicts of
interest, anti-competitive behaviour, money laundering,
health and safety as well as whistleblowing, such
as Testing Specifications for Coal Mine Safety, Coal
Mine Safety Procedures, Law of the PRC on the Coal
Industry, and Labour Law of the PRC;

To bring value to the communities in which we operate
and create long-term benefits for our employees,
customers and suppliers;

To build a safe and healthy, diverse and inclusive
working environment and provide fair learning
opportunities to our employees;

To practice responsible procurement, and exert
our influence on the supply chain to ensure that our

suppliers meet sustainability standards;

To provide quality coal products that meet and exceed
industry standards and sustainability requirements; and

To encourage our employees to actively fulfill their
social responsibilities at work and in their community.
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Governance

° To establish an ESG committee (the “ESG Committee”)
which is responsible for:

° Monitoring the implementation of this policy and
reviewing it from time to time,

° Approving changes or updates to this policy,
and
° Ensuring that responsible procurement is

practiced during our course of business and
along the entire supply chain, and that our
operations do not have a negative impact on
people and the environment;

° To collect stakeholders’ views on our sustainability
performance and make improvements to it;

° To maintain dialogues with our employees, suppliers
and customers, and properly handle ESG issues related
to the Group;

° To identify, on a regular basis, issues that have
significant economic, environmental and social impacts
on stakeholders and regions in which we operate, and
manage them properly; and

o To monitor and report on our sustainability performance
on a regular basis.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with customers to meet its immediate and long-
term business goals and development. Therefore, the Group
encourages smooth communication channels and customers
feedback for the Group’s continuous improvement on product
quality and timely transportation.

For details of communication channels with customers, please
refer to “Stakeholder Engagement” in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

For details of relationship with the employees and suppliers,
please refer to “Stakeholder Engagement”, “Responsible
Employment”, “Training and Development” and “Supply Chain
Management” in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The directors believe that the Group has complied in all
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that are
related to the business and operation of the Group. There was
no material breach of or non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which might have a significant impact on its
business.

The Group is subject to various laws and regulations such
as the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Property
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Coal Industry Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labour Law of PRC,
Provisions in the Prohibition of Using Child Labour. the Listing
Rules and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622), etc. The
Group will continuously ensure compliance through closely
monitor on applicable law and regulations that may have a
significant impact on its business and operation.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 140
of this report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the funds
in share premium account and contributed surplus are
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be made, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not have any
distributable reserves (2020: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s result for each of the five years
ended 31 December 2021 and the Group’s assets, liabilities
and equity as at 31 December, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and
2021 are set out on page 5 of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year of 2021 and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)
Mr. BAIl Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2021)
Ms. WANG Jianfei (resigned with effect from 16 August 2021)
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (resigned with effect from 5 March 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Prof. SHA Zhenquan
Mr. JING Dacheng

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of shareholders after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed pursuant to
Article 83(3) of the Articles shall not be taken into account
in determining which particular Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company,
Mr. XU Da and Mr. JING Dacheng will retire by rotation in
accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles. All retiring
Directors, being eligible, would offer themselves for re-election
at the Annual General Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus),
the details of which are set for the in the paragraphs
under “Connected Transactions” below, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company and any of its
subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in which
a Director is or was materially interested or had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Board considers the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
as at the date of publication of the annual report are set out on
pages 61 to 65 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”)), which were required (a) to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Interests in the Company

EERBRETHRAESRES - HERORE
FHEERAR

RIE-_—F+-A=+—H AQRAEELE
BITBRABRARRRHEEER ZE(EEREEE
BIES7T1EZHF R E KRN ((FEH5RBEEG)E
XVER) Z2 B n ~ MG RESTHES (a)iRIEF
HE N E GBI BAREN AR AFIEEE
A k(o) RE ETRAIK S+ FTE LT AR
BEERETEAFRG 2ZESTA([HEESFR])AB

MARR MR ESESORB T

RAEDQT z s

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital

Number of shares of the Company (%)
EAERTERITREZBN
BRoEE BAOLE(%)

Long Short Long Short

Name of Director Nature of interest positions positions positions positions

EEgE M HE KA iy RE

Mr. XU Da* Beneficial Owner 93,135,251 Nil 3.74 Nil

TRES LS EREEA i i

Mr. BAI Tao Beneficial Owner 50,000,000 Nil 2.01 Nil

HE5EE EnlEA A i i

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen Beneficial owner (Note 1) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil

28Rz E g ZUNCOER) i i
Notes: MEzE -

1. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 shares that may be issued 1. BERERSEEARRR S —AFMNA=1THRIEE

pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

Mr. XU Da, being a Director, is also acting as the Chairman of the
Board.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
(a) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:
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RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—8 ' TIALTEGER
RBEEAREITBRABIINRARR ZHG KA
BIRGF  BARARBIREESFRBEIENE
33GIFTFE RS MRz S AR

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital of

Number of shares the Company (%)
HEATERITREZ
RO E AT D (%)
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Long Short Long Short
positions positions positions positions

REREE s Hr KRR Ha KA
Mr. XU Jihua (Note 1) Beneficial owner 14,229,610 Nil 0.57 Nil
REERE ) ERERA e i

Interest in a controlled

corporation 1,252,000,000 Nil 50.21

NS NI E e
Fortune Pearl International Beneficial owner

Limited (Note 1) 1,252,000,000 Nil 50.21 Nil
PREREGRAR MR BEREAA i i
Yangyuan Jintong Beneficial owner

Transportation Corp.

Ltd. 215,000,000 Nil 8.62 Nil
BIREBEYRAR AR EmEAA i i
Note: FizE -

1. Mr. XU Jihua is the father of Mr. XU Da. Mr. XU Da is the chairman and 1. BREEEERBELENNE - RELERAEEN

an executive Director of the Group. Mr. XU Jihua is interested in 100%
shareholding of Fortune Pearl International Limited (“Fortune Pearl”),
which in turn is interested in 1,134,000,000 shares and 118,000,000
shares which may be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the
PSCS held directly by Fortune Pearl. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Jihua
is deemed to have interests in the shares so held by Fortune Pearl.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

IFERPTES -BGREELEHREEREBERA
AI([BRD100%KE M2 REALHEEEREN
1,134,000,0008% A& 17 K 74 7 BUH, 3K AR A% FTHR AR 7%
%1% T DABD 3 K %972 118,000,000/% & 15 125 » R IE
BHERAEGKY  REZELEBREARBERRFEZ
B&1D PR RS o

B ENFREEN  RBE_—F+_A=+—
B BECANAZCIEEARRESEIZSTR
AB)AERNRERERB RN K@ G F -
HEBEEFRBEGFEXVBE2REIN LA
BIE  BRAARREREZEDSAR AR
BEELHEENFEICIELENERBFEZ
EETA N Ay M

—E-—FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2021 39



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERSE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and the Share Option Scheme detailed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any
other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES

The Company had outstanding PSCS in the principal amount
of HKD194,700,000 as at 31 December 2021, which was
convertible into ordinary shares in the Company at the initial
conversion price of HKD1.65 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments). Assuming the exercise in full of the conversion
rights attaching to the PSCS at the initial conversion price,
a total of 118,000,000 conversion shares will be issued. The
PSCS were held by Fortune Pearl. The sole ultimate beneficial
owner of the Fortune Pearl is Mr. Xu Jihua, who is the father of
Mr. Xu Da and the controlling shareholder of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every director of the Group’s
companies shall be entitled to be indemnified by the relevant
company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses
and liabilities incurred by him or her in the execution and
discharge of his or her duties or in relation thereto pursuant
to their respective Articles of Associations. Such provisions
were in force during the course of the financial year ended 31
December 2021 and remained in force as of the date of this
report.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees
is based on their performance, duties and responsibilities,
qualifications and competence displayed. The Group has
adopted a performance based rewarding system to motivate
its employees and such system is reviewed on a regular basis.
In addition to the basic salaries, year end bonuses will be
offered to those staff members with outstanding performance.

Emoluments payable to the senior management of the Group
are decided by the remuneration committee of the Board,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
experience, performance and responsibility, and the
compensation levels adopted by companies of comparable
size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Board, having regard to the
compensation levels adopted by companies of similar size
engaging in similar business.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes
12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS
During the year, RMB1,049,000 charitable donations were

made by the Group (2020: Nil) to enhance social development
in various aspects.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers were
as follows:

TEHEERER

AEBTXEHERAMEFPMERELRHEEZA
DEI

Purchases RIBRE
~ the largest supplier - RAHER 30.2%
—five largest suppliers in aggregate - AREEREE 50.4%
Sales HE®
— the largest customer -mARF 37.4%
—five largest customers in aggregate -RAREFEF 81.1%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company'’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group carried out the following continuing connected
transactions (other than continuing connected transactions
that are exempted under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules)
during the year ended 31 December 2021:

On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa
Logistics”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, each member of the China Qinfa Group (as defined
in the Prospectus), and their respective equity interest holders
(which include Mr. XU Jihua, Mr. XU Da, Mr. LIU Jingwei and
Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all being the then Controlling Shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the Prospectus)) entered into
the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus) for a
term of 10 years pursuant to which Qinfa Logistics agreed to
pay an annual fee of RMB10,000 to each member of the China
Qinfa Group for the exclusive management and operation
of the coal operation business and the inland shipping
transportation business of the China Qinfa Group, and all
economic benefits and risks arising from the business of the
China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Further
details of the Structure Contracts are set forth in the section
headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the
Prospectus.

42 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED +EEREEERAT

BEEE REZEEHBALIBRRWBIRA
WMo EAERRRABRAES%INA EZRR)IRNZEEE
HERXEPHEA TAI#R -

HEXS

AEBREZE S -_—F+_A=+—HILFE
BHETTFHEBER S BARET EMRANE
14AT6(NIERE 2 FERBEZ ZIN ¢

RZZZNFRA+TZB  KEREMRERA
Al&#EDRD (RRFRZ2ENE AR EHE
REKEZKEB LR (ERRAARER) REES
HEDSHAA(BRBRGREELE  RERE - 2
BRERBBS T (BARRRRE R ZIEBRER
(EEABERER)ITURBEAN(ERRBRE
B) BIRATF - Bl REVRRESFEP
BRZREEXERRXNEE ARK10,0007T
DBFRERYEETRRERERREERBR
NEMBEXR - TERZEREXFELNZHLE
NS R ERREETREYR - REBEHNF
BERRAREREEELRRBANINEHF -



The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver pursuant
to the Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules to the Company
for all transactions under the Structure Contracts from
strict compliance with the applicable announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform procedures on
the above continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions
for the Company were entered into: (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of the Group’s business; (ii) in accordance
with the terms of the respective agreements governing such
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;
and (iii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than those available to or from
independent third parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have
conducted an annual review on the Structure Contracts and
have confirmed that (i) the transactions carried out during
2021 have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of the Group’s business; (ii) the transactions carried out during
2021 have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Structure Contracts and so that all revenue
generated by China Qinfa Group has been retained by Qinfa
Logistics; (iii) any new contracts or renewed contracts have
been entered into on the same terms as the existing Structure
Contracts and are fair and reasonable so far as the Group is
concerned and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole;
and (iv) no dividends or other distributions have been made by
any member of China Qinfa Group to its equity interest holders.
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The Group comprises China Qinfa Group (as defined in the
Prospectus) and Hong Kong Qinfa Group (as defined in the
Prospectus). Having considered the demand for coal imported
from overseas into China and the expansion of the Group’s
overseas coal operation business, the Directors strategically
planned to centralise the management and operation of the
Group’s coal business in China and overseas markets and
determined that Hong Kong Qinfa Group should manage
and operate the coal operation business in China through
the establishment of Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co. Ltd. (“Qinfa
Logistics”), a member of Hong Kong Qinfa Group and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in February
2008.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, after verbal consultations
with the relevant PRC governmental authorities at Zhuhai at
which the Group operated its coal business, the Directors
understood that the PRC governmental authorities did not
grant Coal Operation Certificates to foreign equity controlled
companies as a matter of practice. In addition, according
to the relevant provisions of (i) the Catalog of Industries for
Encouraged Foreign Investment (2019 Edition), the domestic
waterway transport industry is not included in the category of
encouraged foreign investment; (ii) the Special Administrative
Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access
(2019 Edition) (the “Negative List (2019 Edition)”), a domestic
waterway transportation company shall be controlled by
PRC parties; and (iii) the Regulations on the Management of
Domestic Waterway Transportation revised on 24 February
2020, the PRC government implements an administrative
licensing system for relevant companies engaged in domestic
waterway transportation business, while reviewing the foreign
shareholders and their proportion of shareholding in the
company according to the above-mentioned Negative List
(2019 Edition). If the proportion does not meet the requirements
of the Negative List (2019 Edition), such administrative licenses
cannot be obtained. These views had been confirmed by the
PRC legal advisers of the Company.
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In order to allow Hong Kong Qinfa Group to manage and
operate the coal operation business in China, the Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements (as defined in the
Prospectus) (collectively the “Structure Contracts”) were
entered into under which all the business activities of China
Qinfa Group are managed and operated by Qinfa Logistics
and all economic benefits and risks arising from the business
of China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics.
Pursuant to the equity transfer agreements dated 25 October
2010, 15 December 2010 and 17 December 2010, equity
interests of Qinhuangdao Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd., Yangyuan
Guotong Coal Trading and Transportation Co., Ltd. and
Datong Xiejiazhuang Jinfa Trading and Transportation
Co., Ltd have been transferred to the Group. As of 31
December 2020, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading”) and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping”) remained controlled by the Group under the
Structure Contracts. As advised by the PRC legal advisers
of the Company, foreign investment is allowed to operate
coal trading business according to the Guidance of Foreign
Investment (Amended 2017). As such, the Company proposes
to unwind the contractual arrangement of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
in due course. In addition, as the business scope set out in
the Business License for Corporation of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
and the general cargo ship transportation it actually engaged
in domestic coastal regions and central and downstream
Yangtze River regions are managed under the Negative
List, the operating entity shall be controlled by PRC parties.
Accordingly, Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping still needs to sign relevant
framework agreements with Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd.
and/or other entities to meet compliance requirements.
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Mr. Xu Jihua, Ms Wang Jianfei, Mr. Xu Da, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping entered into the Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements on 12 June 2009.
Qinfa Logistics is entitled to all the revenue of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping after deducting all relevant
costs and expenses (including taxes) and has the right to
acquire any or all of the equity interests and/or assets of
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest
possible amount and at such time as permitted by the relevant
PRC laws and regulations. All equity holders of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping have granted to Qinfa
Logistics a pledge over the equity interests in equity holders
for the purpose of securing the performance of the contractual
obligations under the Structure Contracts. Any amendment to
the Structure Contracts shall be subject to the approvals of
(i) the directors nominated by Qinfa Logistics to Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, and (ii) for the purpose
of promoting good corporate governance, the shareholders in
general meeting. No amendments to the Structure Contracts
can be made unless required under the Listing Rules or
approved by Qinfa Logistics in writing in advance. For
details of the Structure Contracts, please refer to the section
headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the
Prospectus.

The Structure Contracts, taken as a whole, permit the financial
results of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
and economic benefits of their business to flow onto Qinfa
Logistics. In addition, all the directors in Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are to be nominated by Qinfa
Logistics. Through its control over the directors of Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, Qinfa Logistics is
able to monitor, supervise and effectively control the business,
operations and financial policies of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping so as to ensure due implementation of
the Structure Contracts. The Structure Contracts also enable
Qinfa Logistics to exercise control over and to acquire the
equity interests and/or assets of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest value and at such time
as permitted by the relevant PRC laws and regulations with
an undertaking from the Controlling Shareholders to provide
to Qinfa Logistics all the consideration received pursuant to
any such acquisition. Based on the Structure Contracts, the
Directors consider that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership between members of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and Hong Kong Qinfa Group, Qinfa
Logistics is entitled to control the business of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping in substance. On this
basis, the financial position and operating results of Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are included in the
Group'’s consolidated financial statements.
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As a result of the Structure Contracts, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are accounted for as the
Company’s subsidiaries, and their financial position and
operating results are consolidated in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The revenue and total asset value subject
to the arrangements under the Structure Contracts amounted
to approximately RMB916,053,000 (2020: RMB19,837,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and approximately
RMB136,030,000 (2020: RMB164,980,000) as of 31 December
2021, respectively.

The Structure Contracts are governed by the PRC laws and
provide for the resolution of disputes through arbitration in
accordance with the arbitration rules of China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission in force at that
time (the “CIETAC Arbitration Rules”) in China. Accordingly,
the Structure Contracts would be interpreted in accordance
with the PRC law and any disputes would be finally resolved by
arbitration in accordance with the CIETAC Arbitration Rules.

There are risks involved with the operation of the Group
under the Structure Contracts. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, if the Structure Contracts are considered to be in
breach of any existing or future PRC laws or regulations, the
relevant regulatory authorities would have broad discretion in
dealing with such breach, including:

- imposing economic penalties;

- discontinuing or restricting the operations of Hong Kong
Qinfa Group or Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa

Shipping;

- imposing conditions or requirements in respect of the
Structure Contracts with which Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping may not be able to comply;

- requiring the Group to restructure the relevant
ownership structure or operations;

- taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that
could adversely affect the business of the Group; and

- revoking the business licences and/or the licences or
certificates of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa
Shipping and/or voiding the Structure Contracts.
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The Group takes the following measures to mitigate the
risk and to ensure proper implementation of the Structure
Contracts:

(a) as part of the internal control measures, major issues
arising from implementation and performance of the
Structure Contracts are reviewed by the board of
directors of Qinfa Logistics on a regular basis which is
no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;

(b) matters relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries
from governmental authorities (if any) are discussed at
such regular meetings which is no less frequent than on
a quarterly basis; and

(c) the relevant business units and operation divisions of
the Hong Kong Qinfa Group report regularly, which is
no less frequent than on a monthly basis, to the senior
management of Qinfa Logistics on the compliance and
performance conditions under the Structure Contracts
and other related matters.

The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the
contractual arrangements under the Structure Contracts
and/or the circumstances under which they were adopted,
and their impact on the Group. The Board also confirmed
that save for the removal of restrictions on foreign equity
controlled companies to operate coal trading business as
disclosed above, there is no removal of restrictions that led
to the adoption of the Structure Contracts. The Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements were renewed on 12
June 2019.
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The Foreign Investment Law of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) (the "Foreign Investment Law"), the Regulations
on the Implementation of the Foreign Investment Law of the
People’s Republic of China (the "Implementation Regulations")
and the Interpretation of the Supreme People’s Court on
Several Issues Concerning the Application of the Foreign
Investment Law of the People’s Republic of China (the "Judicial
Interpretation"), which came into force simultaneously on 1
January 2020, have not been updated. However, the National
Development and Reform Commission and the Ministry of
Commerce issued Order No. 47 and Order No. 48 on 27
December 2021, thereby promulgating respectively the Special
Administrative Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment
Access (2021 Edition) and the Special Administrative
Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access in
Pilot Free Trade Zones (2021 Edition), effective 1 January
2022, while the Special Administrative Measures (Negative
List) for Foreign Investment Access (2020 Edition) and the
Special Administrative Measures (Negative List) for Foreign
Investment Access in Pilot Free Trade Zones (2020 Edition)
will be repealed on the same date. General cargo shipping in
Chinese coastal cities and the middle and lower reaches of
the Yangtze River is still on the 2021 edition of the negative list
for foreign investment access, as an operating entity in such
business is required to be controlled by a Chinese party. On 24
December 2021, the China Securities Regulatory Commission
(the “CSRC”) issued the Administrative Regulations of the State
Council on the Overseas Issuance and Listing of Securities
by Domestic Companies (Draft for Public Comments) (the
“Administrative Regulations”) and the Administrative Measures
for the Filing of the Overseas Issuance and Listing of Securities
by Domestic Companies (Draft for Public Comments) (the
“Administrative Measures for Filing”), with the deadline
for submitting comments falling on 23 January 2022. The
Administrative Regulations (Draft for Public Comments) and the
Administrative Measures for Filing (Draft for Public Comments)
above stipulate that these regulations and measures apply to
both domestic companies that seek to be listed directly (i.e.
H-share companies) and those that seek to be listed indirectly
(i.e. “red-chip” companies, as they are commonly known in the
industry, including companies operating with a variable interest
entity (“VIE”) structure), and these companies are required
to go through the filing procedure with the CSRC. They are
required to file their overseas listing application with the CSRC
within 3 working days after submitting their application. The
CSRC will issue a filing notice and publicize it on its website
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within 20 working days after receiving all the necessary
information. The time required for submitting supplementary
materials and soliciting opinions from competent authorities is
not included in the time limit. Regarding the filing management
of VIE-structured companies, the CSRC, when answering
reporters’ questions, mentioned that "VIE-structured companies
that meet compliance requirements are eligible to be listed
overseas after filing with us, subject to their complying with
domestic laws and regulations." Thus, it is clear that a VIE-
structure company must complete the filing procedure
before it is eligible to be listed overseas. In that case, a VIE-
structured company may not be eligible to be listed overseas
if the CSRC refuses to accept its filing. Therefore, the policy
on the overseas listing of VIE-structured companies needs
to be further tested through practice. In answering reporters’
questions, the CSRC also expressly stated that “they will
adhere to the principle of non-retroactivity of laws, prioritize
stability, and seek progress in stability, thereby ensuring the
smooth implementation of our filing management". Thus, it is
understood that a company that has already been listed will not
be liable for its past listing. However, this does not mean that it
does not need to go through the filing procedure. In answering
reporters’ questions, the CSRC made it clear that "the filing
of already-listed companies will be dealt with separately,
and a sufficient transition period will be provided". Therefore,
already-listed companies may need to complete the relevant
filing procedure within a certain period of time. Although the
Administrative Regulations (Draft for Public Comments) and the
Administrative Measures for Filing (Draft for Public Comments)
have gone through their consultative phase respectively,
they are yet to officially come into force as of 31 March 2022.
Further interpretations of the PRC government in future on
legal systems governing foreign investment may also bring
uncertainties to the Company’s corporate structure, subsidiary
management, corporate governance and business operations.
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The Company will pay close attention to the implementation
and possible further interpretation of the Foreign Investment
Law by the relevant PRC authorities, and will engage legal
advisors and industry consultants to provide opinions on the
impact and possible solutions to ensure timely compliance
with the Foreign Investment Law by making necessary
responses and adjustments to its implementation and further
interpretation.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements. The related party
transactions as disclosed in note 38(b) and the remuneration
to the directors of the Company, which formed part of the
“Key management personnel remuneration” described in note
38(d) to the consolidated financial statements constituted
exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and accordingly, are exempted from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Save as disclosed above, the other related party
transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements did not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The PSCS was approved by the independent shareholders on
31 December 2012. In view of the current financial position of
the Company, the Company elected to distribute payments of
approximately HKD5,841,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 pursuant to the terms of the PSCS.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and a Share Option Scheme (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”)
on 12 June 2009 and a Share Option Scheme on 27 June 2018
(the “2018 Share Option Scheme”). The principal terms of the
schemes are as follows:
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed
on 12 June 2009, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme whereby employees and directors of the
Group were granted the rights to subscribe for shares on the
same day.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
recognise the contribution by certain employees towards the
growth of the Group and/or the listing of the shares on the
Stock Exchange. The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are substantially the same as the terms of the
Share Option Scheme, except that:

(i the exercise price per share; and

(ii) the total number of shares which may be issued
pursuant to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

Save for the options which have been granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, no further options will be offered or
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, as the right
to do so has been terminated upon the listing of the shares on
the Stock Exchange.
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Share Option Schemes

On 12 June 2009, the Company adopted the 2009 Share
Option Scheme which shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing from 12 June 2009. The Company
has terminated the 2009 Share Option Scheme and adopted
the 2018 Share Option Scheme pursuant to a resolution
passed by the Shareholders at the general meeting on 27
June 2018. The 2018 Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from 27
June 2018. No further options can be granted pursuant to the
2009 Share Option Scheme. Nonetheless, options granted
prior to the termination of the 2009 Share Option Scheme shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
rules of the 2009 Share Option Scheme. No share options had
been granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme since its
adoption. The major terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme
and the 2018 Share Option Scheme (collectively, the “Share
Option Schemes”), which are substantially the same, are set
out below.

The purpose of the Share Option Schemes is to provide
incentive or reward to eligible persons (including full time
or part time employees, executive, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors of our Group) for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Company and to enable the Company and its
subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber employees.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
nominal value of the share; (ii) the closing price of the shares
on the date of the offer; and (iii) the average closing price of
the shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer.

The total number of shares issued and which may be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to an employee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options
in excess of this limit shall be subject to the approval of
shareholders in a general meeting.
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An option may be exercised at any time during a period to be
determined by the Board, which shall not in any event exceed
ten years from the date of grant. The Share Option Schemes
do not specify any minimum holding period. The acceptance
of an offer must be made within 30 days from the date of offer
with a non-refundable payment of HKD1.00.

On 17 January 2012, the Company has granted share options
(the “Options”) to subscribe for a total of 20,751,196 new
ordinary shares of the Company under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme to 15 eligible participants of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme at the exercise price HKD1.50 per share (which
represents the highest of (i) the closing price of HKD1.50 per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of HKD1.392
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HKDO0.10 per share).
The Options are valid for a period of 10 years from 17 January
2012 to 16 January 2022. None of the Grantees is a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of them.

The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option
period, provided that the maximum number of Options which
each Grantee is entitled to exercise at the below period shall
not exceed:

(a) in respect of the period from 17 January 2012 to 16
January 2013, 40% of the total number of Options
granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 17 January 2013 to 16
January 2014, 30% of the total number of Options
granted to him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 17 January 2014 to 16
January 2015, 30% of the total number of Options
granted to him.
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On 30 April 2015, the Company has further granted Options
to subscribe for a total of 157,500,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company under the 2009 Share Option Scheme to eligible
participants of the 2009 Share Option Scheme at the exercise
price HKDO.485 per share (which represents the highest of (i)
the closing price of HKDO.485 per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of HKDO0.484 per share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of HKDO.10 per share). The Options are valid
for a period of 10 years from 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025.
Among the total of 157,500,000 Options granted at the date of
grant, 1,500,000 Options were granted to the Directors, and
156,000,000 Options were granted to eligible participants who
were not directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders
of the Company, nor an associate (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of any of them. Among the eligible participants of
156,000,000 Options granted, two eligible participants with
22,000,000 Options granted to them were subsequently
appointed as Director on 12 April 2017. Among the 23,500,000
Options granted to Directors, 23,000,000 Options were lapsed
upon resignation of Directors on 4 May 2018, 21 September
2018, 3 April 2019 and 5 March 2021.

The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option
period, provided that the maximum number of Options which
each Grantee is entitled to exercise at the below period shall
not exceed:

(a) in respect of the period from 30 April 2015 to 29 April
2016, 40% of the total number of Options granted to
him;

(b) in respect of the period from 30 April 2016 to 29 April
2017, 30% of the total number of Options granted to
him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 30 April 2017 to 29 April
2018, 30% of the total number of Options granted to
him.
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Set out below is further information on the outstanding options
granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme as at the date of

5T TN AR B A0 i R T B AR
B — S RHERHIDT -

this report:
Number of share options outstanding
HRTERREHR
Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
At Lapsed At 31 of the
Category/Name of 1 January during  December Exercise Company
participant Date of grant 2021 the year 2021  price HKD  Exercise period (%)
R® EERRE
i t bt 3 BITRA
—BC-F TR R
SHEEER,/HE REEH -B—-B RERX¥ =t-B f&EEx &8 (%)
Executive Director
BITES
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing 30 April 2015 20,000,000  (20,000,000) - 0.485  30/04/2015 to Nil
(Resigned with effect from —ZE—RFEMA=+H 29/04/2025 it
5 March 2021) “Z-HF
BEREE MA=+RZE
(BZZ=—%=FAA e o 5
ERE) mAZt+AhH
Independent non-
executive Director
BUkBITES
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 500,000 - 500,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 0.02
BIHRLE “E-I¥NA=tH 29/04/2025
—2-1%
MA=+RZE
“ZoRF
mA-thA
Sub-total 20,500,000  (20,000,000) 500,000 0.02
e
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Number of share options outstanding
HRTERREHE
Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
At Lapsed At 31 of the
Category/Name of 1 January during  December Exercise Company
participant Date of grant 2021 the year 2021  price HKD  Exercise period (%)
7 fERRRE
R —g--F BITRA
It bt 3 +=A BOEI
SHEER /KA REEH -B-B REARX¥ =t-B OEEExT TEH (%)
Employees 17 January 2012 1,482,228 - 1482228 1.50  17/01/2012to 0.06
= “E-_f-R+tA 16/01/2022
“E-—F
—RATtRE
—R+7RH
30 April 2015 46,000,000  (2,000,000) 44,000,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 1.76
ZZ-nFNA=TH 29/04/2025
“E-1f
MA=+RZE
“ZEoRF
mA=thA
Sub-total 47,482,228 (2,000,000) 45,482,228 1.82
gt
Total 67,982,228  (22,000,000) 45,982,228 1.84
At
Notes: B 5

The fair value of options granted on 17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 under
2009 Share Option Scheme respectively was determined using the “Binomial
Option Pricing Model”. The significant inputs into the model were:

. risk-free rate of return — 1.51% and 1.64% per annum respectively;

o forecast fluctuations in share price = 55.31% and 53.89% respectively;
and

o forecast dividend yield —2.11% and 0% per annum respectively.

SRR _EBE-——F-—A+tBERZZE-AFOA=+HRE=
TTAFERET SR BOBERENRABIRAIZAXBR

HEERLIEE BAZEANTIZHAER :

o R EIHE - FFHH1.51%5%1.64% :
D TERIBR (B 08 — 9 5155.31% 5%.53.89% : K
. TERR B E - FFHRI2.11%K%0% °
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Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing
Model”, the total fair value of the outstanding options as at the
grant date (i.e. 17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 respectively)
was approximately HKD11,642,000 and HKD28,667,000. The
“Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess the
fair value of options and is a common choice among various
option pricing models for assessing the fair value of options.
The value of the options depends on the valuation arrived at
based on certain subjective assumptions on variables. Any
changes in the variables used may cause a substantial effect
on the assessment of the fair value of the options.

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of share options
outstanding under the 2009 Share Option Scheme was
45,982,228. No further options can be granted pursuant to the
2009 Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2021, there was no outstanding share
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No share
options had been granted under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme since its adoption and there was no outstanding
share option under the 2018 Share Option Scheme as at
31 December 2020. As at the date of this annual report, the
number of securities of the Company available for issue under
the 2018 Share Option Scheme was 249,341,398, representing
approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this report.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB3,692.6
million. Particulars of the bank and other borrowings are set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float with at least
25% of the shares held by the public as required by the Listing
Rules as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business
apart from the Group’s business, that competes or is likely to
compete (either directly or indirectly) with the Group’s business
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this report.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders
and the executive Directors (collectively, the “Covenantors”)
have entered into a deed of non-competition dated 12 June
2009 in favour of the Company. The Covenantors have
provided the Group with written confirmations that they and
their associates (other than members of the Group) have fully
complied with the deed of non-competition throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with the deed
of non-competition, the options, pre-emptive rights or first
rights of refusals provided by the Controlling Shareholders on
their existing or future competing businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Covenantors
and their respective close associates did not direct any
Business Opportunity (as defined in the Prospectus) to the
Group. Therefore, the independent non-executive Directors
did not conduct any review on the decision made in relation to
Business Opportunity.

TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES

Hong Kong

The purchase, sale and transfer of shares registered in the
Company’s Hong Kong branch register of members will be
subject to Hong Kong stamp duty. The current rate charged on
each of the purchaser and seller (or transferee and transferor)
is 0.13% of the consideration or, if greater, the fair value of
the shares being bought/sold or transferred (rounded up to
the nearest HKD'000). In addition, a fixed duty of HKD5.00 is
currently payable on an instrument of transfer of shares.

Profits from dealings in the share arising in or derived from
Hong Kong may also be subject to Hong Kong profits tax.
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Cayman Islands

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and other
dispositions of shares in the Company are exempt from
Cayman Islands stamp duty.

Consultation with professional advisers

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares are
recommended to consult their professional advisers if they
are in any doubt as to the taxation implications (including tax
relief) of subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or
dealing in shares. It is emphasised that none of the Company
or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility for any
tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding,
disposal of or dealing in such shares.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board,

XU Da

Chairman

Guangzhou, 31 March 2022
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management as at the
date of publication of this report are set out below:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. XU Da (#&3), aged 37, was appointed as an executive
Director on 9 October 2014. Mr. XU is also a Chairman of
the Group and the Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee. Mr. XU achieved a bachelor degree in 2008.
Mr. XU has more than 10 years of working experience in the
Group. He joined the Group as import and export manager
in 2009. Mr. XU did not hold other directorship in any listed
companies during the last three years.

Mr. BAl Tao (A#), aged 38, was appointed as an
executive Director on 9 October 2014. Mr. BAI is also the
Chief Executive Officer and a member of the remuneration
committee, nomination committee and the Environmental,
Social and Governance Committee of the Board. Mr. BAI is
principally responsible for the Group’s overall management
and operation. Mr. BAI graduated from Cardiff University with
a bachelor and master degree in civil engineering. Mr. BAI
has more than 5 years of working experience in construction
project management. He joined the Group as general manager
of Zhuhai Henggin Coal Exchange Centre in 2012. Prior to
joining the Group in 2012, Mr. BAl worked as a manager of
engineering management department in a company listed
in the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. BAI did not hold other
directorship in any listed companies during the last three
years.
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Mr. Tan Yingzhong, aged 59, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 April 2021. Mr. Tan is also the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group and a member of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Committee. Mr. Tan joined the
Group on 5 June 2018, during the period who has served as
the Group’s Chief Accountant. Mr. Tan graduated from the
Central University of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s
degree in economics and management in 1998, and obtained
a master’s degree from Nankai University upon completion
of the postgraduate programme in business administration
in 2007. Mr. Tan has over 30 years of experience in senior
financial management positions at the headquarters of
enormous energy enterprise conglomerates and their affiliated
companies. Throughout 1986 to 2018, Mr. Tan had worked for
Shenhua Group, who held several key financial positions such
as the deputy general manager of the financial department
of Shenhua Group, as well as concurrent positions such as
the deputy general manager, chief financial officer and chief
accountant of affiliated companies thereof. During that period,
he obtained 9 national invention patents and 18 copyrights.
He led the project for establishment of the ERP/BCSBW
information system which won the 2014 CSUA Golden Dragon
Award. Mr. Tan is mainly responsible for the Group’s financial
duties. Mr. Tan did not hold any directorship in any other listed
companies in the past three years

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (2185)%), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. LAU
is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr.
LAU graduated with a bachelor degree of science in Business
Administration from Oregon State University in 1989. Mr. LAU
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants as well as a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LAU has been
serving as the chief financial officer and company secretary
of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since April 2003. Prior to
joining Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited in 2003, Mr. LAU was the
financial controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board, for over three years and
had worked with an international accounting firm in Hong Kong
for five years. Mr. LAU was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited
(“Dragon Crown”) on 30 November 2010. Dragon Crown was
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listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 June
2011. From 26 September 2014 to 22 June 2020. Mr. LAU was
appointed as an Independent non-executive Directors of SDM
Group Holdings Limited (“SDM Group”), SDM Group was listed
on GEM Board of the Stock Exchange on 13 October 2014.
From 7 May 2018 to 19 July 2021, Mr. LAU was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of CTEH Inc. (stock
code:1620). Save as disclosed above, Mr. LAU did not hold
any directorship in other listed companies during the last three
years.

Professor Sha Zhenquan (##&x#), aged 62, has been
an independent non-executive Director of our Company
since September 2018. Prof. SHA is also the Chairman of
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Board and a member of audit committee. He has
been a professor of the School of Business Administration
of South China University of Technology (¥ T A£2)
since April 2003. Professor Sha is a member of the 12th
National Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FRIARBUAHE EZE2HEE®). Professor
Sha was engaged as a counselor of Guangdong Province
by Guangdong Provincial Government since March 2019.
Professor Sha has been an independent non-executive
director of Canvest Environmental Protection Group Company
Limited (EZ23RREHHMR A A]) (stock code: 1381) since
2014 and Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Co., Ltd. (&Il
FEBIWAD AR A F)) (stock code: 000069) since April 2020,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He was
an independent director of Shenzhen Noposion Pesticide Co.,
Ltd (RYIFE E (= 2L AR A F]) (stock code: 002215) from
December 2009 to December 2015, an independent director
of Sincap Group Limited (stock code: 5UN), a company listed
on Singapore Exchange from May 2012 to September 2014,
an independent director of Dongling International Investment
Co., Lid. (EMFZEBIBFIRERMBRAF) (formerly known
as Dongling Grain and Oil Co., Ltd. (BMEZE MM AR
A A]))(stock code: 000893) from June 2012 to January 2020,
Letong Chemical Co., Ltd. (BR/8228 1L T B R A Fl) (stock
code: 002319) from August 2013 to August 2019, which are
companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Professor
Sha obtained a bachelor of science degree in mathematics
from East China Normal University (ZEREM&AE2) in1982, a
master’s degree in engineering from South China University of
Technology (ZERGE T K in 1991 and a doctor’s degree in
philosophy from City University of Hong Kong in 2001. Save
as disclosed above, Prof. SHA did not hold any directorship in
other listed companies during the last three years.
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Mr. JING Dacheng (B KX A), aged 73, was appointed on 3
April 2019 as an independent non-executive Director, member
of the remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee of the Board. Mr. JING is a member of the
Communists’ Party of the PRC and has years of experience
in public service. He was recruited by the military in 1968
and served the positions of soldier, squad leader in the army,
cultural section chief of the political department of guard force
division no.4 of Hebe provincial military region, secretarial
section chief and chief of coordination section of Qinhuangdao
military division. From May 1986 to June 2007, Mr. JING served
as a member of district committee and standing committee
and political committee of the armed forces division of Haigang
District, Qinhuangdao, Hebe Province, CPC Haigang District
designated secretary and executive deputy district chief of
the people’s government of Haigang District and chairman of
the standing committee of the National People’s Congress in
Haigang District. He officially retired from his duties in August
2008. Mr. JING did not hold any directorship in other listed
companies during the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. BAI Lei (HE), aged 55, is the vice president of the
Group, and is principally responsible for the financial matters of
the Group. Mr. BAI graduated from)L 78X 2 (Jiangxi University)
in 1989 with a bachelor degree of enterprise management
and subsequently obtained the qualification of accountant.
Mr. BAI held the positions on financial and finance aspects
in various institutions and had accumulated more than 20
years of working experience in relation thereto. Mr. BAI joined
the Group in 2016 when he was appointed as the financial
controller in China. He was appointed as the vice president of
the Group in 2017.

Mr. Ql Jinyuan (E$2R), aged 53, is the vice president of the
Group, and is principally responsible for the management and
operation works on coal mine business. Mr. QI graduated from
Renmin University of China in 1990 with a bachelor’'s degree in
national economic planning and management, and obtained a
master degree in business administration from a1t & & EiX
(Hebei Provincial Party School) in 2003. Mr. QI has more than
20 years of experience in the field of investment management
and financial planning with specialty in taxation planning works
on financial aspect. Mr. Ql was appointed as the vice chairman
of Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group Company Limited, a
member of the Group in September 2015 and as the vice
president of the Group in February 2016.
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Mr. MA Jihai (]5&3%), aged 54, is the general manager of
coal mine division of the Group. He is responsible for mine
production policies performance, efficiency promotion and
ensuring the implementation of regulations. Mr. MA graduated
from £F L KE (Changchun University of Technology)
in 2013 with a bachelor degree in the major of coal mining
technology. Mr. MA has more than 20 years of working
experience in coal mine related industries. He is very familiar
with coal operation and environment, and has therefore made
significant contribution to coal mine business of the Group.

Mr. JIA Min (EE), aged 56, is the vice president of the
Group, and is in charge of coal mine division. Mr. JIA
graduated from [ R EHZ K EZ (Shandong University of Science
and Technology) in 2003 majoring in mining engineering, and
obtained a master degree in business administration from &
FIAEZ (Nankai University) in 2006. Mr. JIA joined the Group
in 2017. Before joining the Group, he has been awarded
many honorary titles such as 2B Kkt EHTER (National
Excellent Mine Director of Coal Enterprise), Advanced Worker
in Progress of Bk BHE# 5 # TEE (Coal Science and
Technology), and IHEREEF B ER (Excellent Entrepreneur of
Shandong Province) for many times. Mr. JIA has more than 30
years of experience in the production management and mining
technology in the coal industry. With outstanding working
performance, he has created many industrial records in China,
Asia, and even the world.

Mr. OR Chun Wai Dennis (f]£3), aged 34, joined the
Company in 2017 as the financial manager. He holds a
Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting and Finance) with The
University of New South Wales. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. OR has extensive experience in audit of
listed companies and private companies in different business
sectors gained from international audit firms in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring
high standards of corporate governance practices. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise
on accountability and transparency and are adopted in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and to
fulfil its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its corporate
governance code of practices since the listing of its shares on
the Stock Exchange. In the opinion of the Board, the Company
had complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate
governance duties include:

- to develop and review the policies and practices of
the Company on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

- to review and monitor the training and professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

- to monitor and review the policies and practices of
the Company in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

- to develop, monitor and review the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors and
employees; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
Provisions of the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility
to oversee all major matters of the Company, including the
formulation and approval of the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, monitoring its operating and financial performance,
performing the corporate governance duties and evaluating
the performance of the senior management. The Directors,
individually and collectively, have to make decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management of the
Group and the company secretary. Management information
is provided to enable them to participate at the meetings or
as and when requested. The company secretary provides
secretarial support to the Board and ensures adherence to
Board procedures and the relevant rules and regulations which
are applicable to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are managed by the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company under the leadership
of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board has delegated
a schedule of responsibilities to these officers for the
implementation of Board decisions. The Board periodically
reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to
entering into any significant transactions, the aforesaid officers
have to obtain Board approval.
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Board composition

The Board currently consists of six Directors, three of whom
are executive Directors and three are independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors:

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)
Mr. BAI Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2021)
Ms. WANG Jianfei (resigned with effect from 16 August 2021)
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (resigned with effect from 5 March 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Prof. SHA Zhenguan
Mr. JING Dacheng

All executive Directors are responsible for implementing the
business strategies and managing the business of the Group
in accordance with all applicable rules and regulations,
including, but not limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) have
been consulted on all major and material matters of the Group.
The Company maintains appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance.

The number of independent non-executive Directors has met
the requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. LAU Sik
Yuen has appropriate accounting professional qualifications.
The independent non-executive Directors bring a variety
of experience and expertise to the Company. Biographical
details of the independent non-executive Directors are set
out on pages 62 to 64 of this annual report. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the appointments of Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.
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Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company
secretary of the Company and are available for inspection by
the Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company held
an annual general meeting and the Board held thirteen Board
meetings, all of which were convened in accordance with the
Articles, and the individual attendance of each Director is set
out below:
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Number of attendance/Number of
meetings entitled to attend

HEREEREERE
General Board
Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors BEENE BRAE EEggR
Ms. WANG Jianfei (resigned with effect &ML+ (BT -—4F on 6/7
from 16 August 2021) NA+RBERET
Mr. XU Da fRERSE 0/1 10/13
Mr. BAI Tao E B 11 13/13
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (appointed with EMAEE(EZZ I —F 1/1 9/9
effect from 1 April 2022) MA—H iﬁéiﬁ)
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (resigned with effect JSERELE(E T - —4F 0/0 0/0
from 5 March 2021) — AR HEEHT)
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen ZIHIREE 11 13/13
Prof. SHA Zhenquan IR 0N 13/13
Mr. JING Dacheng HAKEE 0N 12/13
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FERITHEAR

Mr. XU Da is the chairman of the Board and an executive
Director, responsible for providing advice for the overall
management and strategic development and overseeing the
operation of the Board. Mr. BAI Tao, an executive Director,
is the Chief Executive Officer, who is responsible for the
Group’s overall management, corporate development,
strategic planning and the supervision of day-to-day operation.
The segregation of duties and responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive officer ensures a balance of
power and authority.

EE eI AT EERELEAERERERE

MERBEBERREEER  UEBEFEER - G117
EEATAEARTRER  BEAEEEEE
2 ERE - KEREINEEERREE - £
FBEITHRBHE B RBEBL RS - BIRED
R o P e

—E-—FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2021

69



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERWE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee on 12 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference. The remuneration
committee consists of an executive Director, Mr. BAI Tao and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Prof. SHA
Zhenquan and Mr. JING Dacheng. Prof. SHA Zhenquan is the
chairperson of the remuneration committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee of the
Board are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to
the Directors and senior management of the Group. The
remuneration committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/
her close associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during 2021 to
assess performance of executive Directors and certain senior
management and review their remuneration. The duties of the
remuneration committee include determining, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management. All the members attended the meetings.
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HERE,

Name of Directors EEHA BREERY
Mr. BAI Tao HE5EE 1/1
Prof. SHA Zhenquan W IRBER IR 1/1
Mr. JING Dacheng BRI A 1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee on 12 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference. The nomination
committee consists of an executive Director, Mr. BAI Tao and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Prof. SHA
Zhenqguan and Mr. JING Dacheng. Prof. SHA Zhenquan is the
chairperson of the nomination committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the nomination committee of the Board
include determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessing of the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
The nomination committee carries out the process of
selecting and recommending candidates for directorships
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

The nomination committee held one meeting during 2021
to ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate to meet the requirements of the
business of the Company. The nomination committee also
evaluated the effectiveness of the board diversity policy. All the
members attended the meetings.
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Name of Directors BEENS BRHERE
Mr. BAI Tao HEEAEE 1/1
Prof. SHA Zhenquan IR 1/1
Mr. JING Dacheng BRI A& 1/1
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into renewed appointment letters with the Company for a term
of three years. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Articles.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company formulated the nomination policy, which
set out the key selection criteria and procedures for the
Nomination Committee of the Company to nominate and make
recommendation to the board of directors of the Company on
the appointment of directors and re-election for directors.

1) Nomination criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number
of selection criteria when assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate, including but not limited to the
following:

(a) personal ethics, reputation and integrity;

(b) professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s
businesses and corporate development and
strategy;

(c) willingness and ability to devote adequate time
to discharge the duties as a director and to make
required commitments;

(d) compliance with the criteria of independence
as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules for the appointment of independent non-
executive Directors;
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(e) the “Board Diversity Policy” adopted by the
Company for achieving diversity on the Board
with reference to the Company’s business model
and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

(f) applicable legal and regulatory requirements;
and

(9) any other relevant factors as may be determined
by the Nomination Committee or the Board from
time to time.

Nomination Procedures

(a) For filling a casual vacancy or appointing an
additional director to the Board, the Nomination
Committee may select and evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship.

(b) For any person that is nominated by a
shareholder for election as a director at the
general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified.

(c) For the re-election of Director at General
Meeting, the Nomination Committee should
also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the criteria as set out
above.

(d) On making recommendation, the Nomination
Committee may submit the candidate’s personal
profile to the Board for consideration.
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(e) The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to the recommendation of a
candidate to stand for election at a general
meeting.

(f) Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should make recommendation
to shareholders in respect of the proposed
election of director at the general meeting.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

(e) EFEHNAWHEBABRERERRE
FEBCREEERERKRTE
1 -

CREZEER/RES

f HEEE
FRNBERE KRS L3R
AR E L R R -

R HEREREES

The Board established an Environmental, Social and ZBEE€R_T-—F+ A NAKIIRE  #H€
Governance Committee on 6 December 2021 with specific KEARZEE @ VHITELEZEBEDE - 8
written terms of reference. The Environmental, Social and ¥ - HE N ERLZECH B TEFTHREL
Governance Committee consists of three executive Directors, 4+ AEEREMRELEMAK - IRFE - £ K
namely Mr. XU Da, Mr. BAl Tao and Mr. TAN Yingzhong. Mr. B AZBE€MEFEABKERLE -
XU Da is the chairperson of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee of the Board.
The primary duties of the Environmental, Social and 3% - Zi/\& REEEXZEARMIESSRE
Governance Committee of the Board are to assist the Board in & % B & E&E MEAR(ANER]) m&
guiding and monitoring the formulation and implementation of EEIRE - H & REABE R TIE - I F a1
the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) policy and AR - R AHEER AR 2% gkm*ﬁ
work of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), andto  JE °
regularly review the results to ensure compliance with relevant
laws, regulations, standards and regulatory requirements.
The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee RE  -#HE@NEARATEEN T - —FRETT
held one meeting during 2021 to formulate and review the —X&:% - LA%‘JE&*&E‘J‘KEIE@%EE ek
environmental, social and governance responsibilities, visions, EJAEME - AR - WA ~ EZ - RBIREE -
strategies, framework, principles and policies of the Group Iﬁi%@f’ﬁtﬂ?ﬁ%%% cHIBREHNBLES
and make recommendations to the Board of Directors. All the & °
members attended the meeting.
Number of
attendance/
Number of
meetings entitled
to attend
RE,
Name of Directors EEHRF BREERH
Mr. XU Da fRiESTE 1/1
Mr. BAI Tao HEESTAE 11
Mr. Tang Yingzhong EL e 1/1
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company formulated the board diversity policy, which set
out the requirements for diversity in Board members and the
principles for the selection of Directors.

1) Policy summary

To achieve sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increased diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
In planning the Board’s composition, board diversity
needs to be considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

(2) Quantifiable measurers and the progress of the
Board Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates of the Company will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the reporting period, the nomination committee
reviewed the composition of the Board and concluded
that the Company had met the diversification requirements
with regard to age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. When making
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors in the future,
the nomination committee will nominate new Directors pursuant
to the requirements of the board diversity policy to achieve the
objective of diversity in Board members.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, the Board has the discretion to
declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, subject to the articles of association of the Company
and all applicable laws and regulations.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall consider the following
factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

- operating and financial results;

- cash flow position;

- working capital requirements and expenditure plan;
- interests of shareholders;

- business conditions and strategies;

- taxation considerations;

- restriction on distribution of dividends under the relevant
laws, rules and regulations; and

- any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, any dividend
unclaimed for one year after having been declared may
be invested or otherwise made use of by the Board for
the benefit of the Company until claimed. Any dividend or
bonuses unclaimed after a period of six years from the date of
declaration shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company.
The payment by the Board of any unclaimed dividend or other
sums payable on or in respect of a share in a separate account
shall not constitute the Company a trustee in respect thereof.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy periodically.
There can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period or at all.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Directors
are reminded of their obligations under the Model Code on
a regular basis. Following specific enquiry by the Company,
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee on 12 June 2009
with specific written terms of reference. The audit committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, Prof. SHA Zhenquan and Mr. JING
Dacheng. Mr. LAU Sik Yuen is the chairperson of the audit
committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
approve the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
control system. The audit committee had reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 and had also discussed auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters including accounting
practices and principles adopted by the Group.

The audit committee has also monitored the integrity of the
financial statements, annual report and accounts and interim
report and reviewed significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein.
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During the year, the audit committee held four meetings and all F R FEREZESRTTMAEE - FTAKEY
the members attended the meetings. BEEE® -

Number of

attendance/

Number of

meetings entitled

to attend

HERE,

Name of Directors EEHA BREERY

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen IR E 4/4

Prof. SHA Zhenquan W IRBE IR 4/4

Mr. JING Dacheng R 4/4

During the meetings, the audit committee had reviewed and
recommended the Company’s results announcements and
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2021 to the
Board for approval. The audit committee also reviewed the
accounting issues raised by the independent auditor of the
Company in respect of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the relevant issues
as described in the paragraphs under “Risk Management and
Internal control” below.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides to all the Directors a comprehensive
induction package which includes introduction on the
business operations, internal procedures and general policy
of the Company and a summary of statutory and regulatory
obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and other
relevant laws and regulations. During the year, the Directors
are provided with regular updates on the Group’s business,
operations, risk management and corporate governance
matters to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. The Directors are also encouraged
to attend both in-house training and training provided by
independent service providers. According to the training
records provided by the Directors to the Company, each
Director has confirmed that he/she has obtained reading
and training materials during the year under review and has
attended the trainings in relation to various aspects, including
but not limited to, Director’s duties, update on the Listing Rules
amendments and corporate governance practices.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining
sound systems of risk management and internal controls and
reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests of the
Group as a whole. These systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failing to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Under code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code, the Group
should have an internal audit function. The Company has no
internal audit function because the Company has maintained
an internal control system and its implementation has been
considered effective by the Audit Committee and the Board.
In addition, the Audit Committee has communicated with an
external risk advisory expert to understand if there is any
material control deficiency. Nevertheless, the Company will
review the need for one on an annual basis. The Group has
also adopted internal control policies to manage and minimise
financial and other risks, ensuring timely and accurate
preparation and reporting of financial information, and
monitoring compliance with laws by the senior management of
the Group in the performance of their duties.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control system and ensuring that
the Group established and maintained appropriate and
effective systems. Management also assists the Board in
the implementation of the Group’s policies, procedures and
controls by identifying and assessing the risks faced, and
in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable internal
controls to mitigate and control these risks.
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The Group has established an audit committee under the
Board, which has the functions of monitoring compliance
with laws by the Group’s senior management and in its daily
operations, and of carrying out investigations for suspected
breaches of law. The Company convened meetings with the
audit committee periodically to discuss financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions.
Moreover, the Audit Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their design, implementing
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of risk management
process and risk management report including key risks and
mitigation measure, in which it oversaw the development and
implementation of the Group’s risk management system. The
risk management and internal control systems are reviewed
every year and the review covered the period of the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Board has reviewed the effective of systems and
considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
risk management and internal control system and procedures
of the Group were reasonably effective and adequate, and no
material deficiencies has been identified.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors have also selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, adopted appropriate
International Financial Reporting Standards, and made prudent
and reasonable judgements and estimates, and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. The Directors also warrant that the Group’s consolidated
financial statements will be published in a timely manner.

The Directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

The statement of the auditor of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 127 to 139 of this report.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB2,709,069,000. As at 31 December 2021, the borrowings
and accrued interest amounting to an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB1,428,514,000 and approximately
RMB274,265,000 respectively had been due for immediate
payment. In addition, as at 31 December 2021, there were
several unsettled litigations against the Group mainly
requesting the Group to repay certain payables with interest
immediately as set out in note 39. These conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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To improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, the
Group has undertaken measures such as revision of repayment
schedules with financial institutions. The directors consider
that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any other material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
consider the Group will be able to continue to operate as a
going concern.

The independent auditors opinion is not modified in respect of
these matters and the statement of the independent auditors
of the Company, Moore Stephens CPA Limited, about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages
127 to 139.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration to

the Group’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group is set forth below:
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RMB’000

AREFIT

Audit services ZH R 2,235
Non-audit services* IEZERTS * 1,150
Total &5t 3,385

Non-audit services related to agreed-upon procedures for assisting the
Company review its condensed consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company strictly complies with and implements the Listing
Rules to disclose discloseable information on a true, accurate,
complete and timely basis and all other information that might
have significant impact on the decisions of shareholders and
other concerned parties in an active and timely manner. Also,
the Company takes effort in ensuring all shareholders have
equal access to information.
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The management believes that effective communication with
the investment community is essential. The executive Directors
and the chief financial officer of the Company hold regular
briefings and results presentation, attend investor forums and
respond to investors’ call-in enquiries, participate in interviews
with institutional investors and financial analysts in the PRC,
Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast
of the Company’s business and development as well as
operating strategies and prospects. In delivering information
to investors, the Company also listens to their advice and
collects the feedback from them, in the interests of developing
an interactive and mutually beneficial relationship with the
Company'’s investors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company can make a written requisition to the
Board or the Company secretary to convene an extraordinary
general meeting pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s
articles of association. The written requisition must state the
objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
shareholder(s) and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, which is presently situated at Room 5706, 57th
Floor, Central Plaza, No. 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The same procedure also applies to any proposal to be
tabled at shareholder meetings.
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The Company welcomes enquires from shareholders. The
Board will review shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis.
Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can
be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

There has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional document during the year ended December 31,
2021.

On 31 March 2022, the board of directors of the Company
announces that it proposed to amend the existing articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”) and to adopt the
amended and restated articles of association of the Company
incorporating the amendments (the “Amended and Restated
Articles of Association”) for the purpose of, among others,
(i) enabling the Company to have general meetings to be
held in physical form, hybrid form or electronic form; and (ii)
conforming with the Core Shareholders Protection Standards
as set out in the amended Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules
effective from 1 January 2022.

A circular containing, among other things, particulars relating
to the proposed amendments to the existing Articles brought
about by the adoption of the Amended and Restated Articles
of Association together with a notice convening the annual
general meeting will be despatched to the Shareholders in due
course.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

The Board of Directors of the Group (“We”) strives to promote
sustainability development as the best business model
which serve the interests for investors and the surrounding
communities. Not only do we account for the sustainable
development of the China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Group”),
but we also safeguard the interests of our stakeholders.

The global economy is still uncertain this year due to the
pandemic, yet we incessantly drive responsible production
and consumption, including enhancing supply chain
management, maintaining a harmonious workplace and
business atmosphere, etc.

The Board oversees the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) opportunities in the context of business strategy.
An ESG Committee has been delegated this year to identify
and manage material ESG and climate-related risks and
opportunities. The Committee also develops effective measures
in response to the identified risks and opportunities. The Board
reviews the ESG performance, measures, and targets annually
to strengthen the management of environmental and social
opportunities.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
gratitude to all shareholders, business partners and customers
for their long-term support to the Group and convey my sincere
appreciation to all employees for their efforts and contributions.
We will continue to build a warm and high-quality living
standard for the public in a green and sustainable way and
join hands with various stakeholders on the road of sustainable
development to create a bright future.

Mr. Xu Da

Chairman of the Group
Chairman of the ESG Committee
31 March 2022
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Qinfa Group Limited is a leading non-state-owned
thermal coal supplier in China, with a dedication to provide
high-quality coal supply and related services to its customers.
Its integrated coal supply chain operation covers coal mining,
purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal in
China.

The Group is pleased to publish our ESG report (the “Report”)
of financial year 2021 which details our ESG policies, measures
and performance.

REPORTING SCOPE

The Report presents the Group’s ESG management approach,
environmental and social performance and material topics
within our operational boundaries during the period from 1
January to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period” or
“FY20217).

Unless otherwise stated hereto, the Report covers the
operations at Guangzhou office, Xingtao Coal Mine and Fengxi
Coal Mine, which represent the major and the most significant
environmental and social impacts and opportunities of the
Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

The report is prepared and presented in accordance with the
requirements under the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("HKEx ESG Reporting Guide”). The following reporting
principles underpin the preparation of the Report.

1. Materiality: The threshold at which the relevant ESG
issues becomes sulfficiently important to investors and
other related parties that they should be reported.
The Group determines materiality through internal
assessment and its communication with different
stakeholders.

2. Quantitative: Key performance indicators (“KPIs”), if
any, are measurable, and give effective comparative
data where appropriate. Furthermore, the purpose and
impacts shall be explained. Internationally or nationally
recognized methodologies have been adopted in the
calculations and estimations.

Sk Balance: The report should provide an unbiased
picture of the Group’s performance in the ESG issues,
and should avoid selections, omissions, or presentation
formats that may inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment by the report reader.

4. Consistency: The report should use consistent
methodologies to allow meaningful comparisons and
disclose any changes to these methodologies.
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FEEDBACK CHANNELS

We highly recognize your valuable views on this report.
Your feedback helps us achieve our vision for a sustainable
future. We invite you to share your comments using any of the
following means:
Address: Room 2201-2208, 22/F,

South Tower, Poly International Plaza,
No. 1, Pazhou Avenue East,

Haizhu District,

Guangzhou City

Telephone: 8620—-89898239

Email: ir@ginfagroup.com

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Not only does the feedback from stakeholders facilitate
a wide-ranging and pertinent evaluation of the Group's
ESG performance, it also helps the Group to advance
its performance. Hence, the Group communicates with
stakeholders in an open, honest and positive way. We engage
with stakeholders irregularly through various channels, which
are illustrated in the table below, in an attempt to establish
a shared understanding on the vision and expectation on
sustainability.

The operation of the Group affects a range of stakeholders,
such as investors, shareholders, employees, suppliers and
customers, who may have diverse expectations on the Group.
For the purpose of improving its ESG approaches, the Group
will continue to communicate with stakeholders and collect
opinions from them through various channels. Simultaneously,
the Group will improve the disclosures to define the content of
the ESG Report to meet the expectations of the stakeholders.
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Stakeholder groups

Communication channels

B EAR BERE
Investors and shareholders ° Company website
BEEMRE NS
o Company announcements
NGNS
o Annual general meeting
RERBFERE
° Annual and interim reports
FHRRP RS
Customers ° Company website
B NS
° Customer direct communication
HEFHEBR
o Customer feedback and complaints
BEPERKKH
Employees ° Training and orientation
=] & Al KT
° Emails and opinion box
BHRERME
o Regular meetings
EHEE
o Employee performance evaluation
& B RIFFE
o Employee activities
BIEH
Suppliers and business partners ° Selection assessment
g M EB A ERH & 5Tl
° Procurement process
RERZ
o Performance assessment
RIFEHE
° Regular communication with business partners (e.g. emails,

Government authorities and regulators

BUFHE R EE R

Communities

a3

meetings, on-site visits etc.)
HEBCERATHERAWERER  FRREMERSE)

° Documented information submission
RREHER

° Compliance inspections and checks
GHUERRE

o Company website
NGIE R
o Community activities

MR
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MATERIALITY ANALYSIS

We formulate ESG strategies and management policies in a
three-steps approach. Firstly, we identify ESG issues that are
material to the Group. Then, the Group has commissioned
an independent consultancy firm to conduct a materiality
assessment in the form of an online questionnaire. Our key
stakeholder groups (e.g. board of directors, employees,
customers, and suppliers) were invited to score by considering
the importance of the identified twenty-two ESG topics to
the Group’s operations and how they affect the stakeholders
themselves. The assessment result is the major input for the
sustainability strategy development and update.

EEMSMN

BMEHEESCGREE R EEBRE RN =([EF
Beakh RMABMNLHAKREMEBEERN
ESGEH - A% » AEBZIIB R QR AR
EREHAETER MG - ARBBEREF D
Flp(mE=S  RBE  FEPRHERER
FIHB -+ —HESGEREHAEEELENER T
EHFNEAGNZETD - HEERERME
HlEREHMAIREERRBHNIBZERAEER -

Identification Engagement Analysis & Evaluation
i Bl BB 7 R FR Ao
e |dentify and map a list of e Conduct stakeholder e Prioritise ESG topics by
ESG topics engagement exercise materiality assessment

BRI RFAFIESGHEREBE

e |dentify key stakeholder
groups
EEgalleak e Sl

The ESG topics are prioritised and indicated in the materiality
matrix below. The topics in the upper right corner of the
matrix are significantly more relevant to the Group’s business
operations and are concerning to our stakeholders. Those
topics were defined as material topics.
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MATERIALITY MATRIX

External Assessment (Impact on Stakeholders)
SRR (HFHENTE)

A

Crucial
2=

EEMEE

BiIE - HERERBE

—E-—FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2021

9o Notrelevant Crucial
TEZ B5Z2
: >
Internal Assessment (Impact on Business)
POEBRELL (HEBNRE)
Environment Employment Operation
BiR ®E
1. Air Emissions Employee Benefits and Welfare 18. Procurement and Supply Chain
REERHER B B8 REF Management
KRR ERER
2. Greenhouse Gas (GHG) 10. Equal Opportunities
Emissions FERE 14. Product Quality
BE R EmEE
11. Occupational Health and Safety
3. Solid Waste and Recyclables BERERLS 15. Product Safety
EB2REY) R AR IR B E YR EmRE
12. Talent Management and
4. Energy Management Development 16. Production Innovation
REVRE PR AMERRER EEAIF
5. Water Management : 17. Customer Service
KERER oMY EPR
HE
6. Packaging Material Management . . 18. Information Security and Personal
BEHER S Data Protection
L AR RIRE(E AR
7. Environment and Natural
Resources 19. Protection of Intellectual Property
RERRAEIR Rights
1%5#11&?*&
8. Climate Change
RIREME 20. Corporate Governance and Risk
Management
AEERMEARERE
21 . Anti-competitive Practice

REEFITH

91



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - HERERRE

The above materiality matrix reflects our organisation’s
significant impacts. We have identified that employment,
operational and environmental issues are significant to the
Group development. After analysis, our effort should be focus
on occupational safety and product safety, which are the
most material topics to the Group. Here below are our five
most important topics which are the main concerns for our
stakeholders:

1. Occupational Health and Safety

2. Product Safety

3 Water Management

4. Solid Waste and Recyclables

5 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights
SUSTAINABILITY VISIONS

The Group commits to incorporating sustainable development
into our business, and regards building a good and
sustainable corporate culture as our mission. We uphold
integrity, innovation, product excellence, responsible business
conduct as our core values. We strive to become an influential

energy conglomerate by strengthening our management of
long-term ESG risks and opportunities.
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We have established our sustainability policy this year,
governing the operation within the Group. Our sustainability
approach is guided by 4 values — Operational Footprint,
Product Quality, Responsible Employment and Corporate
Governance.

BE - d4ERERRE

BPERAFEFHEREAEEZENAFHEE
RER - PN HEZRRTHIDERTER
B -2ERY  EmEE BEAEBIREEE

N
V=l

Limit carbon footprint and environmental

impacts within our operations
PRI & EREENIRET IR E

Operational
Footprint
EERH

Uphold high

standard of business
ethics and integrity
RERKEEEEERAE

Corporate
Governance
LHEA

Product
Quality
EmEE

Provide high-quality coal
products and services
RS ESHREDRRYE

7N

Responsible
Employment

SEERER

Create a safe and respectful
workplace to improve employee
satisfaction and retention
BT HEEN TIFRE -
HEREMBENREREX

The sustainability policy serves as our operational principles,
and ensures our operations are in compliance with relevant
laws and requirements. The Group is dedicated to green
production and minimising its environmental footprint, including
enhancing resource efficiency and reducing pollution. We
identify and evaluate climate-related risks and opportunities
regularly to enhance our climate resilience. Apart from limiting
environmental impacts, we strive to create social value by
creating safe and respectful workplace, managing supply
chain and providing quality coal products and services.
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

The Group takes an interactive approach to continuously
strengthen our sustainability governance with a robust
governance structure across all departments in place.
We integrate sustainability management into corporate
management structure and strategic planning to deliver
enduring value to our stakeholders. The board retains the
overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s sustainability
strategy and policy, and has delegated Environmental, Social
and Governance committee to drive practical implementation
of our sustainability strategies and initiatives.

The Environmental, Social and Governance committee is
the highest level of authority to oversee and advise on the
Group’s sustainability strategies, work plans and performance
targets to advance the Company’s ESG leadership. Apart from
approving the Group’s sustainability governance, it directs the
Group's sustainability initiatives in adapting the everchanging
environment and explores new opportunities for getting out of
organisation silos and creating new means for collaboration.
The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
consists of three executive Directors, and reports to the Board
annually. The key responsibilities of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Committee include:

HEERESR

AEEAEBHZABENRATFEERES

BIOREMASMPANBRELRRE - ﬁfﬁﬂ#—”ﬂ
BRREERMACEEERBLBMREE - KK
RENESAREEE EFCRFARELLHE
T%ii?")?%%w&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%éﬁfff{ DIARY D AVE:

CHERERZES  HPAURKERRERK
%%E’UEE&%
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HEZNESEE - BREERNRFNESGHE
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HERERREGREAKEQNERTH L
REMRE A FFE S REE I%hmm%w
M AESIFRERRTKE - ZBEh=2H
TEFENK BFRESER -RE -HEX
ERZBENTIBEEEENE

Formulate the ESG visions,
objectives, strategies, frameworks,
principles and policies of the Group

Integrate ESG risks into our
risk management and
internal control systems

Communicate our ESG policy and
requirements with internal and
external stakeholders

HEASLENESGHER - AR -
B  HEZR - [RAIRIEER

HSESGIE B2 mﬂ/\ﬂﬁﬁg
R N RREEYE AR

Al AR B S B R 10 2 {82
HIMMESGHR R E K

Lead the ESG working group
to coordinate the implementation
of our sustainability policy

BEBESGIE/ AW
WEEAFERRBOR

and the progress

Set and evaluate ESG targets

FEWFTHESG B 1R e

94 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED +EEREEERAT



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RESPONSIBLE EMPLOYMENT
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Coal mining industry poses high occupational health and safety
(“OHS”) risks; therefore, the Group regards our employees’
health and safety as our utmost concern especially for those
working in the mining sites. With safety being our top priority
and prevention of work-related injuries being our core mission,
occupational safety is managed by comprehensive procedures
and guidelines. We have established a risk assessment and
occupational health management system which is composed
of a number of procedures on risk identification, analysis,
evaluation, treatment, monitoring and review.

Apart from establishing and reviewing occupational health and
safety objectives and policy, we conduct hazard identification
on a regular basis. Our safety policy and guidelines stipulate
working procedures and measures, and we require our
employees comply with the policy. In order to address the
identified potential safety risks, workers are provided with
protective equipment and machines that pose safety risks
have been installed with safety protection measures. Clear
procedures and guidelines have been prepared for operations
under the recognised risks, and safety inspection and
maintenance on daily operation and machines are conducted
regularly. Rectification will be taken promptly should there be
any non-compliance.

BE - dHERERERE

BEEERE
BERREZE

RERARTENBEREFEEZ 2 (B ))ER
Re AHAEEGRARIEENREERZE
FRIRERES TIENESR - RAINL2REE
2% MR TERZOES  RAZEORIRE
KIESIERRBELZE2EH WEEY —EHER
BA - oA FHE - BE  BERRERERIRAEK
MR R E RB R EFEEERLR -

B T Bt E B R B B AR R B S - AR
EHETRBET - Z2BER MIESIIBITIER
RRER RATRERESEETHRBEBCR -
REHSEEINEBEERZRER  HASTARMH
EAREEE  TABERERROEEELKR &
KE - HINECBARR TETHERE - HAE
HERARRIERIES] - WEHR B BRIERE
RETEEREERE  —BRRERSAEE
BK °

—E-—FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2021 95



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - HERERRE

Although sufficient safety preventive measures have been
in place, accidents and incidents may still occur in the
workplace. Emergency preparedness plans are established
to guide our employees to report, respond and investigate in
various emergency situations. Apart from eliminating accident
occurrence, the Group ensures our employees receive
appropriate medical treatment and proper compensation
under the social insurance after accidents. We have formulated
medical service agreement with local hospitals to ensure
efficient coal mines rescue.

The pandemic has posed material health risk this year, and
we have established relative prevention and control measures.
We conduct comprehensive disinfection of the premises on
a regular basis and distribute epidemic prevention items to
employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance
with laws and regulations related to OHS, including the
Safety Law, Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment
of Occupational Diseases. In addition, the Group closely
follows some specific regulations for our industry, including
the Regulation on Safety Supervision of Coal Mines of the
PRC, Coal Mine Safety Rules, Regulation on Safety Testing
and Inspection of Air Compressors, and Primary Ventilation
System and Primary Drainage System. With our dedication
onto workplace safety and employee’s wellbeing, there was no
work-related fatality for the past three Reporting Periods and
zero lost days due to work injury during the Reporting Period.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group believes that employees are the most valuable
assets of a company, as they serve an important role in
furthering the product and service quality of the Group and
laying the foundation for the development of the Group. The
Group prudently upholds a workplace that pursues safety,
health, fairness and impartiality without discrimination, and
remains committed to upkeeping the harmonious relationship
between the Group and the employees. Additionally, the Group
continuously builds and collaborates with our talent pool for the
lasting growth of the Group.

Equal Opportunity Policy

The Group strongly believes that equal opportunity improves
employee satisfaction, which sequentially helps retain and
motivate our talents to assist with the Group’s business
development. Per se, with an aim to protect job applicants and
employees from discrimination, the Group has established
related recruitment and human resources procedures to
ensure that recruitment and promotion decisions are made
based on the qualification, experience and performance of
applicants and employees, irrespective of such factors as
gender, age, race, family status, religious belief and disability.

Compensation System

The Group offers a fair and competitive compensation package
that attracts and retains high-calibre talents. The package
consists of basic salary, social security insurance, and other
fringe benefits, which is reviewed periodically to ensure its
competitiveness in the labour market and its alignment with the
Group’s performance.

Moreover, the Group also has a set of comprehensive
human resources management policy to govern human
resources function. The policy is composed of guidelines
on compensation and benefits, working hours and holidays,
recruitment and selection, performance management,
promotion, employment termination, training and development.
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Employee Benefits

The Group strives to build a harmonious labour relationship
and a happy workplace, and promote a positive and healthy
lifestyle, which will help the employees become more engaged
in their work. Therefore, the Company organizes regular
medical checkup for our employees, so that they will have
a better understanding of their personal health issues. In
addition, the Group offers employees fringe benefits, such as
housing provident fund and supplementary medical insurance,
to improve their pension, medical insurance and ultimately
their living quality.

Other aspects of employees’ life are also included to the
Group’s agenda, such as maternity leave and paternity leave.
In addition, the Group understands the importance of listening
carefully to our employees, and allows them to express their
opinions to their superiors.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance with
relevant policies and guidance regarding equal employment
opportunities, child labor, forced labor and employment,
including the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labor, Special Protection Regulations for Juvenile Employees,
the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor Contract Law of the
PRC.
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FY 2021 FY 2020
—E-—-F ZTEF
BRFEE PRFE
Total Work Force BEHAY
By Gender REH
Male B 2,411 1,902
Female g 234 168
By Employment Type REFER
Full-time S 2,645 2,070
By Age Group R E A B
16—24 years old 16—2475% 42 23
25-40 years old 25-407% 952 855
41-59 years old 41-595%% 1,604 1,122
60 years old or over 60573k A = 47 70
By Geographical Region &t &
China H 2,429 2,070
Indonesia Elfe 216 0
Turnover Rate KL=
By Gender RIEH
Male S 8.59% 5.78%
Female pegc 8.55% 2.98%
By Age RE WA
16—24 years old 16—2475% 11.90% 8.70%
25-40 years old 25-407%, 9.56% 3.74%
41-59 years old 41-595%, 7.48% 7.22%
60 years old or over 60573k A 23.4% 0.00%
By Geographical Region it &
China H 8.06% 5.56%
Indonesia e 14.4% N.A.
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

We consider that professionally trained employees are the
keys to our business growth and success. Consequently, the
Group encourages our employees to participate in personal
development and job-related training courses. The Group has
established an employee training policy which specifies the
management responsibilities to identify training needs of each
department.

In daily operation, the Group provides on-boarding training
to new employees, and assigns experienced employees
as mentors to guide newcomers. Apart from fostering
communications and teamwork, this mentoring arrangement
can improve technical skills and managerial capability of
employees. In addition, we always encourage our employees
to pursue further learning and development. The Group has
continuously strengthened the training system based on the
operational needs. In the Reporting Period, we provided
vocational training weekly for relevant staff to enhance their
technical knowledge. Training is also provided to directors and
the finance team to strengthen our corporate governance.

In the Reporting Period, we have offered 481,820 training
hours to our employees, and 80% of employees received
training with 182 average hour of training per employee. Set
out below is the percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category during the Reporting Period:

Bl R ER

BPRRABEREINRERSIEEHERNR
RINE RS lﬁttﬁﬁbﬁé\%éﬁﬂl/\%ﬁﬁl{’ﬁ
HEFIIRE - B HE & BB IIEE
RERIAEIRER BRI EFIHIFIIME

ERFEES  AKERHEEEEABEI
VEARKRNESRTEMBEEHMA - EEEM
B EEINGRIE R - IHEEBE - FARAER
MEATEREIERE N - BN - PR E R B+
BEE  BREAER AEERBEEREER
FORETERIER RBSHA - HMAEE
HAHRBEERSRABEEY - @ ERMME
NREE NV BEKEHREI - BAEEERK

7 oo

RMEBAA - HMERIEBIRH481,820/ K i)

#il - XIEE LI R80%  BREENFIHE
S A182/ N - RIMEHA - RMEHIKEER

ERIESMEIEBEH LT -

Training of Employee EaEil FY2021 FY2020
—EZ-F —E_THF
MREE TFR
By Gender, in regard to the total RERE D
number of employees who took part (FAFH{EELHEMS)
in training
Male B 98% 100%
Female peqc3 2% 0%
By Gender, in regard to the total BRI D
number of employees of that gender (FEMBIEELHEMS)
Male Bk 86% 97%
Female gk 18% 0%
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Training of Employee EEEI FY2021 FY2020
—F=——F —T-TF
MBEE FMRFE

By Employee Category, in regard to REEBERES
the total number of employees who (BEFIEELHEME)
took part in training

Management EIERE 2% 2%
Functional departments B aeEerg 8% 4%
Frontline departments (including local B4R E8F9
teams and groups) (BIEEHEEK R/ E) 90% 94%
By Employee Category, in regard to REEBERES
the total number of employees of (BZEEERNERLEMS)
that employee category
Management ERE 79% 100%
Functional departments B aeELrg 55% 42%
Frontline departments (including local B4R =BPT
teams and groups) (BIEEHE KR/ E) 83% 92%
Average Training Hour of Employee’ B35 JIBFE FY2021 FY2020
—E-—F —ECEF
MBEE VBFEE
By Gender RIER &5
Male B 199 24
Female egi 8 24
By Employee Category RESERE S
Management IR [E 248 24
Functional departments B 8L &0 104 24
Frontline departments (including local AIARE0PT
teams and groups) (BIEEHEEK &) 4E) 191 24
1. FY2020’s training hour was estimated based on the declaration from our 1. —E TR REFENZIINETIRESIEBAR
employees starting from FY2021, we have improved our data logging YhEESE BZE-_—FUHBEFER  ZMEHE
system to record our on-job training hours, so that the training needs of HBRRHERG  SUACHEREIINE  FAKEE
the Group can be better identified and evaluated. R REH AR IR E -
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LABOUR STANDARDS

Human rights are highly respected by the Group, and we are
dedicated to protecting and promoting ethical employment
in business operation. The Group strictly complies with all
applicable national laws and local regulations as well as
relevant labour laws and regulations in the place where it
operates, including Labour Law of the PRC and Provisions on
the Prohibition of Using Child Labour. Moreover, the Group has
developed robust and systematic measures for recruitment
and selection, and thus prevents itself from hiring child labour
and ensures that the employment is in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations.

The Group enforces a zero-tolerance policy on the child and
any forms of forced labour, including slavery, debt-induced
labour and coercion in the workplace. All candidates qualified
for employment must have reached the statutory required
age and have been in possession of valid identification
documents which are examined by the Human Resources
Department during recruitment and upon employment. Should
we unfortunately discover any child and forced labour in the
workplace during our selective identity check, the Group will
take prompt remedial actions and review our management
approaches to plug the loophole. In addition, all employees
are required to enter into labour contracts on a voluntary
and fair basis and are free to leave their position with proper
notifications. Additionally, the Group has set up a whistle-
blowing mechanism for child labour and forced labour to
encourage the employees to report any suspicious cases
truthfully.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with

relevant laws and regulations on labour standards, including
the Labour Law of the PRC.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEERAF
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PRODUCT QUALITY
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

We believe comprehensive supply chain management
can ensure our product quality and safety; thus, we have
established internal guidance on supplier management. The
Group persists in national safety guidelines when assessing
the suppliers’ business, including AG1011-AG1013 Safety
Inspecting-testing Specifications for Coal Mine, Coal Mine
Safety Rules, and Coal Industry Law of the PRC.

In addition, we assess the performance of our potential
and current suppliers regularly based on a number of
environmental and product quality criteria, including overall
capabilities, assets position, business nature, industrial
reputation, product quality, goods delivery and compliance
with law and regulations. We also prioritise the procurement
of environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, as long as the other specifications meet the
requirements. Therefore, only suppliers that are in compliance
with regulatory requirements and our internal criteria can they
be our qualified vendors. We monitor our material suppliers
and service providers annually and disqualify unsatisfactory
vendors. In case of any major change or incident happening
in the supply chain, the procurement department will report
timely to the Group’s management for updating our internal
policy and strategies.

BE - dHERERERE

EmEE
HEEEE

BMREEENHEREEEBRERESHEY
2 ENEmEEEEENTEAIES - AEE
T EHENEBRBERRABRNRZ2ES - B
FCRBELZ 2R E) (AG1011 - AG1013) »
(HBELZ2RE) R(PBEIBERE)E

BAN - HARBZERRIEREELR] - B85
BEkn  BEWR - ZHUE - TREE F
mEE  BYMRXNBERREBTEREIRER

¥E IR A T e BRT M o E%?%{ﬁﬁg
B ABRFHMBERFEAMSER  BMEE
%ﬁhf LIRIRE M M AR 7S A (L FE Pl st 7T BB o

C ABRAEBEERTE RSB AR A4 E
Péﬁﬁauazﬁééﬁ%t\mﬁ BASFEEREME
FEE R ARG HIER - SRR ANEENEEES
Br o Mt EE IR I ME RS RBEETR K
BEPIENRMAEEEREESR  UEEHA
E455| RIREE o
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Besides, we prioritise local suppliers to reduce environmental b9 + BRI R L HEATIER AIRIBERZE -
impacts attributed to the logistics arrangement. During the

Reporting Period, we have engaged a total of 893 suppliers — _FiilErsR B4 803 M fEm & 1k o

under the above policy.

A

SETERSHMMEER - RREHA - LARE

Number
Region ith &= £
China A 881
Others Hh 12
e Suppliers need to provide document proof for evaluation such as product quality inspection
Selection of certificates, national environmental product certificates and management system certificates
i HERARNESEERREE EXBREQEEREEERABBS BRI - HEETIE

BRI .

When considered necessary, site inspection will be conducted by the procurement team to
identify potential risks of the new suppliers
WEVE  FEEFSETENER BRI ARRNEERR

Responsible
Procurement

BERMERE

Suppliers with less environmental impacts, higher quality and compliance status are
prioritised o
BEZBRERBENROZENBESRHEER

Performance
Review

KB

Performance of suppliers is evaluated regularly to ensure their compliance with our
requirements, including product quality, environmental responsibilities and price

TR AERERRE  BRUERBTARMEEREE  RRATRERSTEMHNEKX
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PRODUCT/SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuit of Higher Product Quality

With product safety being our material topic as analysed
above, providing coal products in high quality and safety
is our commitment. We have formulated strict policies and
procedures for production and sales of coal products.
Our internal procedures are established based on various
national regulations, including but not limited to Grade for
Closed Process Water Circuit in Coal Preparation Plant (MT/
T 810-1999), Coal Sizing Equipment-Performance Evaluation
(GB/T15716-1995), General Rules for Analytical and Testing
Methods of Coal (GB/T483-2007), Determination of Total
Moisture in Coal (GB/T211-2007), Methods for Determining
the Minerals in Coal (GB/T7560-2001) and Methods for
Determining the Calorific Value of Coal (GB/T479-2000).

All our coal products are stored in specific sites or went
through only indoor areas, so that no external causes will affect
the product quality. Besides, we possess national qualified
laboratories to conduct product inspection in a timely manner
so as to ensure our coal products are in full compliance with
industry standards and sustainability requirements. Smart
mining is the current trend of the industry and we have
adopted various mining technology to enhance our efficiency.
In addition, quality assurance policy has been established to
safeguard our product quality. During the Reporting Period,
we did not receive any complaints from customers about our
coal products and no coal products were subject to recalls
due to quality issues. Quality standard is set in the contract
requirements. If there is any discrepancy on quality standard
agreed by the Group and the customers, the product would
normally not be recalled because of the transportation cost
involved. The Group will determine on the compensation
package after discussion and negotiation with the affected
customers.

BE - dHERERERE

B/ RBEL
ERESEMEE

mEXFi  ERT2HAEEMEBEEE
FE ALBMBORHZENEEERE
me BMEREERBERKERHERZEN
BREEBF RAEBRFHEBRRRE 2
FETRERCGREEBREKABRBRER) (MT/
T810-1999) ~ (- AEF D & E L& MHELFT T A
(GB/T15716-1995) » (E kDA BT /= — M
}E) (GB/T483-2007) * {2k MAIES
%) (GB/T211-2007) ~ CEFRIEYE KR 75 E)
(GB/T7560-2001) I (HE Ry B 20 28] 7F 5 %) (GB/
T479-2000) °

BPMAERRERSERREEBHEIRALER
WwHERX HAURITETAINSRAZEERE
B ol BPEENABRKEENERE - A
BIRETEMRR  BERRRKERTENAITE
BERAIFEZERATE - KREERKETR AT
XBRAGME - MEPITRRASERARRME
BAE o s PP EEERERK - BR
EmEEER - NBEHA  RALEXERP
BRRREMOTORESG  TERRERREE
REMELWK  HEFTEHRGORE - WEL
EREEAKEREFAHEER TN
JE o BRSPS RMBEBKA  ERATTEEK -
AEEERERYETPIRRERREERE
ke
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The features of coals produced by the Group are as follows: REBHENHERIEHET
Huameiao Shenda Shenda
Huameiao Huameiao Energy - Energy - Energy - Sumber Daya
Energy - Energy— Chongsheng Xinglong Hongyuan Energi -
Xingtao Coal  Fengxi Coal Coal Coal Coal SDE Coal
Sumber Daya
EXRER  EXRER  EXRER BERR BERR Energi-
Coal features BiriH -EEEE -FERX  -RARR -EEEX -RERR SDEf%
Coal seam KE 489,10,11 49,11 49,11 25 256 B,D
Moisture (%) KA (%) 7-10 8-12 8-12 85 85 8-11
Ash (%) (%) 20-28 20-28 20-28 21.45 30-72 22-25
Sulphur (%) SHE(%) 14-19 12-16 16-25 152 145 0.18-1
Calorific value (average, kcall BRE(TYH TR/
kg, net, ar) Fr o FE - a) 4650-5200  4,600-5,150  4,600-5,150 4,838 4187 5,300
Protection of Customer Data, Privacy and Intellectual REEFER  REBERAZERE

Property Rights

We value the importance of customer data and privacy. In
protection of customer data, all orders and data of customers
are processed and stored by dedicated personnel, and no
access is given to unauthorised employees. All employees
of the Group have entered into an agreement to guarantee
the confidentiality of the Company’s data upon joining
the Company. In case of any violation or divulgence of
information, the Company will take legal actions against the
relevant employee and terminate their employment contract
immediately if needed.

In safeguarding intellectual property rights, the Group sources
products only from legitimate manufacturers or suppliers. The

BR—MEREFPNEHLILE - REREFPE
HBHRE  AREMERFPAIERENIRE
ABRERRT  BERAERENEEEN - A%
BFEEEHETHE  AREMALRRRE
ARBHERRE o M2 REARELBEMI
o ARBEEAFTEBR T HAREBRRIUL
BRITHAMNRLLEEREL -

ERENBEEIT  AEERSUAERERD
SHEERBER - AREEBETERNBE

Group strictly abide by the relevant laws and regulations on  BREMRRERER - DA REILMHBERE
the protection of national intellectual property rights and do  HJJE®) - ME =B EMHBEE 2R BRATE
not participate in activities that infringe intellectual property LTTEH&QELA%{%EEE’J JEME - —BEIR(T
rights. Due diligence is conducted prior to the purchase of  {AJAJ&EI1EN * 7 BEITHE

the intellectual property rights from third parties to ensure the
legality. Prompt investigation will also be carried out if there is
any suspected case.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEERAF
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In the Reporting Period, the Group complied with laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress, including the Personal Information
Protection Law of PRC. Besides, we have neither product sold
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons nor product
related complaints in the Reporting Period. We have set up
effective communication channels so that we can respond to
customer complaints and feedbacks promptly.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We highly emphasize the integrity of our employees and
promote fair competition during our business operations. We
understand that fraud, corruption or other unlawful behaviour
can undermine the reputation of the Group and reduce the
confidence when collaborating with our business partners. We
have established a sound governance structure that adheres
to the highest ethical standards. Our Employee Handbook
stipulates our anti-corruption policies and code of conduct.
Clear guidance has been provided in the provision and
acceptance of interests, such as gifts and souvenirs, and ways
to address conflicts of interest. We have zero tolerance against
bribery, corruption, embezzlement, insider trading and theft of
corporate assets. We also provide anti-corruption training to
employees regularly.

In addition, we have established whistle-blowing procedures
to encourage employees, management team and directors to
report any misconduct and dishonest behaviour in absolute
confidentiality, such as bribery, fraud and other offences.
Where a case of misconduct is found out to be true following
investigation, the Group will take appropriate corrective
measures and disciplinary action against the person(s)
involved. In the event of a criminal offence, the Group will
report the case to the competent authority. Additionally, the
Group engages a third-party agency to audit its internal
financial conditions each year.

RiIE - HERERRE

RBEHA - AEEE AR EMERMRBIA
L@ s8TRERELZE  EBES BRI
REEMBZRZER  BR(FBEEAERFE
) e WA RBEMA - BAYERZ 2R
FRIE /A MY EE R - TR B E M ARRR AR -
BACELERWBRRE  UEREEERP
MRS RER -
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LEBEPRFHT - RIRARE B5xH
MIPERTREABEARERE - HIBEBKAE
BHERMSIERHNED - RSB TEEAR
B BTREBERE  BIFMLEFTARE
SRR Rt p R - BUIR M R M Nz (a0 ) I
Ao am) A R el g BB M s A SR AR 41 TUB TR S
BRI - 85  BAXK  ABRRZNER
NREABEFTRABIGEE Y EHAREBRHEA
BB IS EEEF -

AN BPIC LB HRET  BEE EEA
BNESEBBERTNITABREMNTETS
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During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the
Provisions on Prohibiting Corruption and Bribery of the Criminal
Law of the PRC and any legal regulation and requirements
for listed companies in Hong Kong. There is no legal case
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

In addition, we provide online training on anti-corruption
regularly to directors and staff. We are keen to share materials
provided by ICAC about different cases and the ways to
deal with various situation. During the Reporting Period, we
organised 2 hours training for directors and 2 hours for the
general staff.

ORGANISATIONAL FOOTPRINT

The Group sees the importance of the environmental
stewardship and greener mining practices due to the
environmental impacts generated. We unswervingly pursue
breakthroughs in setting itself on a green path to prevent
pollutions, utilise the resources in an environmentally
responsible manner and minimise the environmental impacts
throughout its operations. We have set up environmental policy
and internal guidelines for operation.

During the Reporting Period, we strictly complies with the
laws and regulations relating to atmospheric and greenhouse
gas ("GHG”) emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, including
but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Cleaner Production
Promotion Law of the PRC, the Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes,
the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC, and the Renewable
Energy Law of the PRC.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEERAF
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EMISSIONS

The Group incorporates the management of emissions into
our daily operations and evaluates the progress of emission
reduction annually. The Group’s gaseous emissions mainly
come from air pollutants generated from the fossil fuel burning
in boilers, while secondarily from and the transportation of
products. These emissions consist of nitrogen oxides (NOXx),
sulphur oxides (SOx) and respirable particulate matter (PM).
We have achieved significant reduction of the air pollutants
which is attributed to the replacement of desulfurization
and denitrification boilers. In the Reporting Period, we
have achieved 92.6% NOx, 100% SOx, 99% PM reduction
respectively. Besides, we emitted 674.83 tonnes of dust during
the production process in the Reporting Period.

The emissions reported in the table below were from the flue
gas from the fuel combustion in boilers only. These emissions
in the flue gas represent the primary source of emissions of the
Group. The emission from transportation is unavailable as it is
comparatively immaterial. We will enhance our data logging
process in the future.

The Group aims to reduce its air emission, as well as
greenhouse gas emission gradually without sparing our
production capacity. Therefore, we commit to enhance our
operational efficiency and minimise our environmental impacts.
For instance, we have phased out all the desulfurization and
denitrification boilers with the natural gas boilers for much
lower air emission in both Fengxi Coal Mine and Xingtao Coal
Mine. Looking forward, we will explore opportunities to further
curtail our emission during our operation process.

BE - dHERERERE

23587

REBRERDERERABELEC R UEF
BERVHERNEE - AEENREHERMEE
REMBEBRECAERBTEENZRSEY -
EAKAEHESR  B2EASLELWINOX) - HE
1E¥(SOX) K AT I A BRI ) (PM) - B RFICE
BERFREEE R EENTERSLEM KRR
W e RIEIA - KV HE92.6% A &AL
¥~ 100%F 8164 K2 99% A I A FERLY) © L -
R EBR - BOEEEBEP YN T 674.830F
EE -

TRERVBENYIER B WEIREIRE PTE LR
BR - MZERT PR SARNEBHEBBEHRR
R BRRBERNHREREN) - AEZX
MBHE - HMBRSFULTEIIBCIRRMR -

AEB-—DETREEERNBRT BLRRE
RERERBI - Bt - HFVAHEREDEEN
R FHRBENTERERE - flA - BARS
0 B e B i) O A — 5% DA K 7R SR, 88 A IR A
FHIRIE - RIEREERER - RERK - KRS
RRELEBEPE-DRMOPHAATRENE -

FY2021 FY2020

—E-—F —EFHF
Air Emission (kg) BERBERR (F =) BBFEE MBFE
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) RELY(NOX) 1,193.47 16,210.00
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) /L ¥(SOx) 0 17,800.00
Particulate matters (PM) FERY)(PM) 20.00 2,180.00
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The Group’s GHG emissions come directly from fossil fuel
burning and indirectly from electricity purchased for daily
operations. Calculation is based on IPCC Guideline and the
grid emission factors published by the utilities operators.
Scope 1 Direct Emissions include fossil fuel burning (stationary
sources), fossil fuel burning (moving sources), and fugitive
emissions (underground mining and post-mining activities).
Scope 2 Indirect Emissions include purchase electricity. Scope
3 Other Indirect Emissions include discarded waste paper.
We have achieved over 60% reduction of Scope 1 Direct
Emission in the Reporting Period due the use the replacement
of the desulfurization and denitrification boilers with the natural
boilers. Due to the immateriality of the GHG emissions from
discarded waste paper among total emissions, the figure is not
reported here in this year.

AEERREREBHNERRENELAMNE
MEKESAFTLEMBENES - tEDHER
IPCCHEEIRAAEXREERTENERBEREA
F o ENERFREERE AR (EER)
KRR (B R Rk P G TRR K&
®ED)  BECHEHNERBEEE)  #ES
Hn RN B RREER - RREHMA - BAR
LB ot B SR B R R A RERIE IR - SE1EEBE
PREVS R A 60% A ERIRCR » AR EABENE T
KEREBERABRERBHEMMTEMN  AFE
TEEARETE2HBMEIE

FY2021 FY2020
GHG Emission BERBEHEK —E-—F —E-EF
(Tonnes of CO, equivalent) (E—E{tREE MBEE PBEE
Scope 1 Direct Emission HENEEENR 11,850.05 31,532.35
Scope 2 Energy Indirect Emission #[E| 282 IR E R BER 62,465.64 60,229.44
Total GHG Emission BE RS BBER 74,315.69 91,761.79
Intensity (Tonnes per employee) =EW,&E) 28.10 44.33

In addition, we minimise our carbon emission through
various indirect carbon sources, including business travel
and transportation. We do not only encourage centralised
management of vehicle use and the use of modern
communications tools, but we also prioritise local suppliers.
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Furthermore, the Group fully complies with the requirements
of environmental laws and regulations, including the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC and the
Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the PRC to minimize
the impacts brought by the Group operation. The Group also
fully complies with the requirements stated in the Ambient Air
Quality Standards of the PRC (GB3095-1996), the Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standard of the PRC (GB8979-1996)
and the Code for Design of Outdoor Wastewater Engineering
(GBJ14-1997) for all inevitable emissions, including
greenhouse gases and wastewater emissions, effectively
reducing the impact of the Group on both air and water quality.

Looking forward, we will reduce our emission gradually by
implementing more emission reduction measures. We will keep
adopting desulfurization and denitrification technology for our
boilers in the future.

Waste Management

Adhering to the hierarchy of waste management, The Group
strives to segregate and recycle waste wherever practicable
and properly handles and disposes of waste generated from
its business activities so as to reduce environmental impacts.
The major hazardous waste of the Group includes waste
mineral oil produced, general dust and waste oil drums used
while the main non-hazardous waste includes waste of boiler
and waste generated from cleaning process. In accordance
with the requirements of the regional Environmental Protection
Department, the Group’s mines have recycled all discarded
waste through professional recycling and disposal companies.

RiIE - HERERRE
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Due to the phase out of the desulphurisation and denitrification
boiler with the natural gas boiler, the total hazardous waste
of both mine has reduced over 50%. The major types of
hazardous waste of the Fengxi Coal Ming are waste mineral
oil and waste oil drum, which are recycled by qualified
organisation. Besides, the major types of the non-hazardous
waste are gangue produced in the washing process, the boiler
slag and domestic garbage. They are reused road repairing or
handled by the environmental officials for treatment.

Total hazardous waste refers to the total weight of hazardous
waste disposed by the Group’s operation throughout the year.

Hazardous waste intensity is calculated by dividing the total
hazardous waste by the total work force of the Group as at the
end of the year.

R EFIARARBIEEA B R AL AIE - ™ {E
BENEEEEMBRERPE50% £ - HAEKE
MEEERYETEREBEYMLEBR  HHE
BREEDY - 1IN BEEEEVEIZRBLE
BRRELNKRA  REBRKESF AR
EMBEIRREREDABRE

EERENREHREFAAEEELENFRE
MEERRNRES -

BERERNEBEENABERRMAERALAKHE
RERNEEBEFTESL -

FY2021 FY2020

—E-—F —TFF

Waste Disposal (Tonnes) EESE ) (WE) BRFEE FRFEE
Total Hazardous Waste BEEEEMRE 593.30 1,277.03
Intensity (Tonnes per employee) mEM &) 0.22 0.62

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of laws and
regulations related to waste treatment, including the Pollution
Control Standard for Hazardous Wastes Incineration of the
PRC (GB18484-2001), Standard for Pollution Control on
Hazardous Wastes Storage of the PRC (GB18597-2001) and
Standard for Pollution Control on Landfill Sites for Hazardous
Waste of the PRC (GB18598-2001), to handle and process
the wastes, regardless of hazardous or non-hazardous, before
disposal to minimize environmental impacts. Besides, in the
Reporting Period, the total amount of non-hazardous waste is
insignificant.
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Looking forward, we will reduce our waste disposal gradually
by increase resource efficiency and implementing 3R principles
(Reduce, Reuse and Recycle). We will simplify our operational
process and choosing raw materials that induce less waste in
the future. For instance, we have reduced a significant amount
of waste through the phase out of traditional boilers. Besides,
we have optimised the warehouse management system to
improve the turnover of materials and resource efficiency.
We have closely monitored our consumption and avoid over
purchase.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group believes that behaviour change and consistent
actions over time can minimise our corporate environmental
footprint. Therefore, we encourage our employees to adopt
a sustainable lifestyle by introducing green policies in our
operations for saving energy and resources and recycling
waste. We advocate 3Rs — Reduce, Reuse and Recycle
throughout our operation to boost resource efficiency and
reduce carbon emission. The Group remains steadfast
in the concept of resources conservation to achieve
green production. In pursuit of this vision, the Group has
implemented various measures to enhance energy efficiency,
as well as reducing consumption of paper and water. Diligently
monitoring and managing use of resources, the Group strives
to improve the efficient use of resources. Given the business
nature, use of packaging materials is irrelevant to the business
of the Group. Set out in the following section are details of
consumption of energy and water resources.
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In the Reporting Period, the resources directly consumed by RBEHR - AEBAREENERERERD
the Group for operations are as follows: T
Resource Consumption Unit FY2021 FY2020
—B-—F —BCTHF
ERHF By MREE MTBFER
Electricity MWh 71,055.05 62,220.50
£ KRS
Oil MWh 7,473.58 3,782.23
A KB
Natural Gas Cubic metre (m?®) 3,184,187 -
RAR SR
MWh 34,434.36 47,957.27
KBS
Total Energy Consumption MWh 112,962.00 113,960.00
BRMEEFER JKEL R
Intensity MWh per employee 42.71 55.05
=R KR EE
Water Consumption m3 90,532.00 89,127.00
A7k TR
Intensity m?® per employee 34.23 43.06
Note 1: Water consumption data covers both mining sites only as the water ~ KisE1: FKBIEERSMEERE - LIYAREMNFAZHNA

Note 2:

114

consumption of Guangzhou office is controlled by the property

management and there is no sub-metering available.

The conversion from activity data to energy value is based on the lower

calorific value of the energy source.
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We have continuously upgraded our mining equipment to
enhance energy efficiency. The original 400 kW front and
rear conveyor motors were replaced with an 855 kW inverter-
integrated motor. The power of the motor was increased by
455 kW, and the cumulative load was be increased by 3,640
kW. In addition, the 90204b main and auxiliary transportation
channels was in the process of excavation. 9 sets of 150 kW
belt conveyors were deployed to cater for the long excavation
distance. In addition, an additional excavation team was
added during the construction of one of the mining faces, and
the cumulative load increased by 500 kW.

Looking forward, we aim to reduce our energy consumption
gradually by enhancing energy efficiency of our equipment.
In addition to phasing out the existing lightings with more
energy-saving lightings, such as LEDs, we will give priority to
equipment with energy efficiency labels. Besides, we are keen
to nurture conservation awareness of energy and resources to
our employees, minimising unnecessary power consumption in
workplace.

The Group knows that severe environmental issues can be
resulted from excessive use of resources. As such, the Group
continuously cultivates the environmental awareness of the
employees. With an aim to promote environmentally benign
actions in our operation, the Group has pushed forward several
environmental management practices, including green office
guidelines. Besides, we will continue to adopt and replace
energy efficient machine to lower our energy consumption.
Below lists some of our measures to increase resource
efficiency.

Water consumption

The Group fully recognises the importance of water scarcity
to the environment and to the community. Water consumed
by the Group is derived from the water supply within the local
area and poses no difficulty in accessing to water sources. The
Group proactively focuses on promoting measures to conserve
water, including conspicuous signages to remind employees
of water conservation and maintain the momentum of water-
saving awareness. Looking forward, we aim to improve our
water efficiency by prompt maintenance of dripping faucets
and gradual replacement with water-saving equipment.
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group is dedicated to implementing prompt actions to
lift our environmental performance in the aspects of trimming
our overall greenhouse gas emission, resource and energy
consumption, and waste production through the GB/T24001-
2016/ISO 14001: 2015 certified Environmental Management
System (“EMS”) and GB/T23331-2012 Energy Management
System to identify, manage and mitigate the environmental
risks generated by our building and operational processes.
An environmental team has been set up for the establishment,
implementation, maintenance and continual improvement
of our EMS. The team is operated under the direction of
the CEO to examine the environmental key performance
indicators, such as violation of relevant laws and regulations,
safety rate of handling hazardous waste and environmental
training coverage. It is also responsible for raising staff’s
environmental awareness and participation in compliance
of environmental laws, waste and pollution reduction and
safety and environmental operation. Risk assessment and
environmental impact assessment on the production facilities
are conducted regularly to identify the Group’s strengths,
weaknesses, opportunities and threats of the emissions of air
pollutants, greenhouse gases, water, sewage, hazardous and
non-hazardous waste, noise and soil quality, and update the
stewardship approach.

The Group acknowledges that the respect for nature and the
environment has become an integral part of our social values.
As a socially responsible enterprise, whilst continuously seeking
to decrease resource consumption and environmental impacts,
the Group will look for means to improve profitability, and
continue with our commitments to sustainability development.
In addition to continuing to identify, assess, and manage
potential adverse environmental impacts, the Group will remain
committed to strike a balance between the business and the
ecology, and pursue long-term sustainability development.
The Group will continue to take environmental protection and
conservation of natural resources into consideration amid our
review and planning of operation strategies and development.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEEERAF
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CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change is one of the global threats of the world and it
will bring severe impacts to our business if we do not set up
strategy to deal with the changing climate promptly. Therefore,
our board and the sustainability committee assess and
evaluate climate-related risks and opportunities regularly.

The major physical risks identified of the Group is the threat
of extreme weather events which bring heavy rainfalls that
may lead to severe flooding and landslide. The Group has
formulated protocols for the safety of employees and the
minimization of impact on the Group’s operation. The protocols
include strict compliance with the extreme weathering
guidelines announced by the government and adjustment of
mining activities. In addition, we have formulated emergency
guidelines and measures to minimise the impacts brought by
natural disasters. The Group will review its policies on a regular
basis to ensure their effectiveness.

Besides, we have identified opportunities to enhance our
procurement procedures to enhance resource efficiency.
During the Reporting Period, we have thoroughly carried out
a comprehensive clearance and warehouse management
system. The upgraded centralised system can optimise the
management of inventory. Stock can be tracked timely in the
system to avoid over procurement and reduce wastage.

In addition, enhancing efficiency of transportation, production
and distribution is also our opportunity under the changing
climate. During the Reporting Period, we have smoothed
the transportation process of coal production and trade
through the consolidation of delivery stations in Shanxi,
Hebei, Inner Mongolia and other places. We strive to optimise
and coordinate the supply chain of our coal products, from
production to sales to achieve a high degree of integration of
production, transportation and sales. We have also reduced
internal transportation costs and improved market adaptability
and efficiency with this measure.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group believes winning trust from the communities
where we operate and winning their recognition of the
Group’s contribution are essential to our sustainable business
development. As a socially responsible enterprise, we
undertake the mission to promote the harmonious development
of community in a greener environment. We encourage
employees to participate in volunteer work and support
investment in community development. Our care for the
community, contribution to the society and development in the
industry are considered as core responsibilities that form part
of the Group’s long-term development.

The Group will continue with regular reviews of its objectives
for and direction of community investments, sponsorship and
donation activities. Moreover, the Group will examine whether
its social performance aligns with its community investment
policy and community objectives, while overseeing and
improving its team capacity to ensure the implementation of
community investment policies.

During the Reporting Period, we supported students from
low income and underprivileged families and people that
are affected by natural disaster through approximately
RMB1,049,000 donations.

OUTLOOK

The Group believes that the currently implemented measures
for environmental and social responsibility are sufficient for
our compliance with the relevant laws and listing rules, but
necessary reviews and amendments are required from time to
time to meet the requirements of various laws, listing rules and
internal management. Looking forward, the Group will continue
to review and develop corresponding ESG policies and targets,
as well as optimising the ESG reporting disclosure in order to
pursue continuous improvement in our ESG performance in
future.
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPls

BRESGHREESIN—REBRBFRAKER

Explanation/
Reference Section

e SHEMH

Aspect A Environmental

RS AR IR IRAT 1 BE TR SR AR P B -

EHARE
A1 Emission Information on: Organisational
A1BERR YD - the policies; and Footprint — Emissions
- compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a | && ¥ — HE)
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes.
BABERIMOBERBER  MKRTHOEDS  BEREZRE
BYELESH
- BX: R
- BTHZETABERZENHEBEZRALNER -
KPI A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Organisational

Footprint — Emissions
LERY - BEY

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
R A IEIZEAT .2 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BEREEERE U8 R(ER)ZE(WNEESE
I - BIBREATE) o

Organisational
Footprint — Emissions

EERY - B

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
BRI BUEIEAS appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FTEXBEEEMBRE UE) RER) ZE(MUABEE
B - BERGETE) -

Organisational
Footprint — Emissions

2B - BRI

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and where
AR ERIBIZA1 4 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FFEAEEEEMREUEAE)R(WERZE(MUEES
B BERGETE) ©

Organisational
Footprint — Emissions

BERY - By

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
BB E IR IRAL achieved.
f U EBER B R HE A R PTIS AR -

Organisational
Footprint — Emissions

EEEY - B
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BRXFFESGHREIESIN—RWERBAREARIER

Explanation/
Reference Section

e SHED

KPI A1.6
FASEMIEIRATE

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HEBEEREEEEYNTE  REEEENEERAE
B -

Organisational
Footprint — Emissions

EERY - B

A2 Use of Resource

Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water

Organisational

A2ERfERA and other raw materials. Footprint — Use of
ERERER(BIEER - KEEMEMED)BUR Resources
LERY -BRER
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. | Organisational

BSR4 R IRA2.1

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

RENESWEER SEZEROE - Bk /Eﬂ)i@ﬁi(uﬂF
BFEEAE RREMAGESSEN - BHEHERHBTE

Footprint — Use of
Resources

BERE - ERER

KPI A2.2
RSB MIEIRA2 2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BREKEREE(WMABES B - BARMETH) °

Organisational
Footprint — Use of
Resources
BETY -BRER

KPI A2.3
RABAAUIEIRA2.3

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved

ol B IR0 P Ak s 5T &I R TS AR ©

Organisational
Footprint — Use of
Resources

BERN - BERER

KPI A2.4
RABAENIBIZA2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
it SKEGE A KR E R BRI RE
FRISECR ©

AR et ke st & &

Organisational
Footprint = Use of
Resources
EETY -BIRER

KPI A2.5
RAREMIEIRA25

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes),
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

SR mATAEEMBAE AN &) K ER) 8L EEMG

EO

We do not consume
packaging materials
due to industry
nature.
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BRFFESGHREESIN—RWERAREARIER

Explanation/
Reference Section

e SHEMD

A3 The Environment

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the

Organisational

and Natural environment and natural resources. Footprint — The
Resources BIRBEITABRIBRRRERENERLEBHBE Environment and
ASRIER RREIR Natural Resources
EERY -RER
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the | Organisational

RAS AR IR 1RAB.1

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

MM EDHIRBERAAERNEAFEROHKNEEEH
SEMNITE -

Footprint — The
Environment and
Natural Resources
BRI -RER
RAEIR

A4 Climate Change

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-

Organisational

AARRE 1L related issues which have impacted, and those which may | Footprint — Climate
impact, the issuer. Change
BRIREHERRAIRGHETAEELXENEARKERSE | €ERD - RIRE(L
HHBUR -

KPI A4 .1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have | Organisational

RS A8 IR IR A4 1

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

B DA R ARG HBITAEATENEARGHEEEE &
JEEITTE o

Footprint — Climate
Change
EERD - REEL

Aspect B Social
EEBHE

B1 Employment
B1{E{E

Information on:

-  the policies; and

—  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

EBAFHEFE  BEREA IR R FEHKe -

Ztt ~ RIEAR A R E M RAERH

- B &

- BTHETABERZENHEBERLRPINER

Responsible
Employment —
Employment and
Labour Practices
BEEER-ERK
BITEHR
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BRXFFESGHREIESIN—RWERBAREARIER

Explanation/
Reference Section

e SHED

KPI B1.1
B AE IR IRB.1

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region.
ZIER - EREEL - FEARIRMEES D8 E S B -

Responsible
Employment —
Employment and
Labour Practices
BEEERE-EREX
BITER

KPI B1.2
RABAAIEIRB1 .2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

RIER -~ FiAR SRS DMBERKLE -

Responsible
Employment —
Employment and
Labour Practices
BEEER-ERR
BTER

B2 Health and Information on: Responsible
Safety —  the policies; and Employment —
B2fZEEZ 2 - compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a | Occupational Health
significant impact on the issuer and Safety
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting | B & EEE —
employees from occupational hazards. BERRERZ S
ERARBRZETIIEFRERREEERABEEFEY
= B R
- BTFHBRITABEAFZENHBEERBANNER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of | Responsible
R B B 1EB2.1 the past three years including the reporting year Employment —
BEA=F(PRERFE)EFEITHABKILE - Occupational Health
and Safety
BETER-
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Responsible
BRAEIEEB2.2 ETHBERTIERS - Employment —
Occupational Health
and Safety
BEEER-
BERRRLZ S
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures | Responsible
RSB MIEEB2.3 adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. Employment —
HHMRMNBERFEEL2EE - UWRBEBEHNTRERS | Occupational Health
VA o and Safety
AEFRERE-
BERRRERZ S
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Explanation/
Reference Section

BRTESGHRERESIN—RIEERBRERER e 2HED
B3 Development Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for | Responsible
and Training discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. Employment —
B3 & K& 3 BRRMTEERIT TERE MM B LEREMNER - #HIFFE | Training and
g o Development
BEEERE-
Bl kR
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee | Responsible
881 1R B 1EB3 A category (e.g. senior management, middle management). Employment -
EURIREEEN(NERERERE - PAEERE)EHSHWZIEE | Training and
Bk e Development
BEEERE-
Bl R R
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender | Responsible
SR E N E1EB3.2 and employee category Employment —
RURINEEFERIE D - BREETKIIINFIIRE - Training and
Development
BEEER -
Bl R R
B4 Labour Information on: Responsible
Standards - the policies; and Employment — Labour
B4% T %A - compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a | Standards
significant impact on the issuer BETERE -
relating to preventing child and forced labour. 25 T 28|
BRADILE TeioaH 4 Ta -
- BR K
- BTHBETARBERZENHEBERLRPINER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to | Responsible

RS AE IR 1RBAA

avoid child and forced labour.

ol R EHNERARRET RARHET

Employment — Labour
Standards

BETERE-
8 TR
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when | Responsible
RIS WIE1RB4.2 discovered. Employment — Labour

R EBIRERBRE HRBRB AR TR

Standards

BEERRE -
8 TR
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Explanation/
Reference Section

BRFTESGHRERESIN—RIEERBRERER R 2HED
B5 Supply Chain Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply | Product Quality
Management chain. — Supply Chain
B5{i fE fE 18 B EEARRE R SRERBECR Management
EmEE -
HpEsEE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Product Quality
RAB A A 1RB5.1 mwREDOHEREAE - — Supply Chain
Management
EmEE -
g E R
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number | Product Quality
RA4R 1A B 1EBS.2 of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how | — Supply Chain
they are implemented and monitored. Management
HOFHERERHERNEY mMERATEBENNHERS | EREE -
B AREBERITRERTE - HrERER
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental | Product Quality
RS AE WIE1EB5.3 and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are | — Supply Chain
implemented and monitored. Management
HRBEESRHEESERSNRREREGRARNED UKk | EREE -
EREMITRERITA - HERER
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally | Product Quality
RA4R 1A B 1EB5 .4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and | — Supply Chain
how they are implemented and monitored. Management
B REHRERRFREZARRERIRENED - AR\ | ERES -
FAITRESRFE - HrERER

B6 Product
Responsibility
B6EmEE

Information on:

—  the policies; and

— compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress.

FHRFRHERNMRENEREZS  BES  FEILESEHE

VAR AR 7 VB R

- R ¢ K

- BTHETARBEATENEBEZRROINER -

Product Quality —
Product/Service
Responsibility
EREE-ER/
RIS EE
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BRFFESGHREESIN—RWERAREARIER

Explanation/
Reference Section

e 2RED

KPI B6.1
RS AR IE1RB6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.
PEIEEXERAHTRATREREHMAR KN A H
e

Product Quality —
Product/Service
Responsibility
EREE-ER/
RS EE

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received | Product Quality —
RSB W IE1EB6.2 and how they are dealt with. Product/Service
BERBENERRRBIRFEE AREEHFE - Responsibility
EnEE-En/
RISEE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting | Product Quality —

PR AE M 1E15B6.3

intellectual property rights.
ot B A SRR AN B E RS V1B -

Product/Service
Responsibility
EnEE-ERS
RS EE

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. | Product Quality —

iR R IR 15B6.4 Wil E 2R THEERERBIKER ° Product/Service
Responsibility
ERBEE-ER/
RISEE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | Product Quality —

PR AE M E15B6.5

how they are implemented and monitored.
OB B E ERRERARBOR - ARBRBARITMERTE -

Product/Service
Responsibility
EnEE-ERS
RS EE

B7 Anti-corruption
B7RE&ES

Information on:

- the policies; and

—  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRM IEHRER - 9R - BEFROEREM ¢

- BE:R

- ETHETABEAZENHBERZNBEOINER -

Corporate
Governance —
Anti-Corruption
rEER-RES
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BRXFFESGHREIESIN—RWERBAREARIER

Explanation/
Reference Section

e SHED

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices | Corporate
RA 4R 1A BUEBIEBT A brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting | Governance —
period and the outcomes of the cases. Anti-Corruption
E’\EiﬁﬁﬂW%ﬁ*ﬁ/\iﬁcﬁﬁé}%ﬂjﬂtaﬁ WESFARMGN | bEBR-RES
A RFDRER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing | Corporate
RS R IR IEBT.2 procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. Governance —
T E e e R R IRAE T - A RMBBRI T REER A o Anti-Corruption
rEER-RES
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and | Corporate
BRI UIBIEBT.3 staff. Governance —
HilmEERE TRHORESHEI - Anti- Corruption
TtEER-RES
B8 Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs | Community
Investment of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its | Investment
B8t E&RE activities take into consideration the communities’ interests. HERE
FRANME2ER THREEMELRFTENEREAXK LIPS
Z B BN SHOER
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental | Community
RS 4E B 1EBS. 1 concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). Investment
EIEREREWHE RRFE LIFR R Xt 8| HERE
B)-
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Community
MRANIEIEBe 2 | HEUTEEAE A LR (NS BN - Investment
HERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
China Qinfa Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 140 to
328 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

R Y

Moore Stephens CPA Limited %
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, B E
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, =
Kowloon, Hong Kong 7% E
o
T +852 2375 3180 b= ﬁ,_
F +85223753828 w
A=)
www.moore.hk = =

BHERREEMERATF
BRER 2B BERE
(RESFSZMAK LA ER LR

=R

BEEDERHIINE140E328EFHAEHEES
BRARTEARDREWBAR (GEIEEE]) M
REVBRE  ZERAVBBRREER-2Z=
—F+ A=+ ANREMERRREREZ
ALEEZHRAZABVAR  GAERIEHER
BABERER  URBAVBREZWE - &
FERSTBRERBE -

EERA HAVBREREREEKR S ER
BEEe (ARG EAIEEE])BMHNBERMB
BELN(BERFBRELENDEEMAABR
B EEER T —F+-_A=t+—HHEAS
MBARRAAREBEZ A ILFENEEMBERER
MiEaReRE - WEEREB (R AR &Y
BREZR/RER
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which highlights that the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB2,709,069,000. As at 31
December 2021, the borrowings and accrued interest
amounting to an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB1,428,514,000 and approximately RMB274,265,000
respectively had been due for immediate payment. In addition,
as at 31 December 2021, there were several unsettled
litigations against the Group mainly requesting the Group to
repay certain payables with interest immediately as set out in
note 39.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN (CONTINUED)

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence
of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

BB ®RE

ARFACENERTHBRE®

A EBERERGEMERRMEMANEME
B RAGEREIIRY BERERFELER
EXBARRNEATHARE - BSHEFS
HHE R EEFT o

REEZEE

FAREZSHIREESNEXRABEEZAY
RGN BERRERETHRAEENEH - FF
ERERGEMBRRLH A ERS AREEZ
EEH MIERXTFTRERERER - KA
AR B ENEXNTHARZ M ERN
EENH T EREE /BN ZBENREREZE
HBREZSH -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

[

AREZXEE®G)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EENERNNEEZEE

Impairment assessment of coal mining rights and related property, plant and equipment

BRRBERAABYE - BE R REZBETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had coal
mining rights and related property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB2,990,264,000
and RMB2,946,407,000 respectively, as disclosed
in notes 15 and 16 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements. Reversal of impairment losses of
RMB1,441,315,000 and RMB852,991,000 in relation
to coal mining rights and related property, plant and
equipment respectively were recognised respectively
during the year.

BAERE IS MARMF15R16D R BT RZTEZ—F
TZA=+—RH > EBESENERIEEEREEDE -
= K& E D R A AR2,990,264,0007T & A R
2,946,407,0007C ° FNE SRR ERAERE AR - R
B KRR B B R REE B R D A R¥1,441,315,0007T
& AR #852,991,0007T °

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

Our procedures to evaluate the impairment assessment
of coal mining rights and related property, plant and
equipment made by the management of the Group
included:

ERHE EREEEEMETHRREBELEED

¥ BEIRRERENER  SEHERTATRERF
° We assessed management’s identification of

individual assets and CGUs to test the assets
for impairment based on the Group’s accounting
policies and our understanding of the Group’s
business;

EERE EEENSFBERRE BEEEXK
BT AEERERANEEETTRERS ME
BHREEMRSEEBMETHRER

o We evaluated the competence, capabilities,
objectivity and independence of the external
valuer;

EERTHIN B ERM AR - 887 - FHEIE
JSE VAL

o We assessed the value-in-use calculations and
methodology adopted by management and the
external valuer;
EEMHEREE RN EEMETHEAERE
BERFIFRANT A



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter
BREZSBIR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR S

BAREFEZSEH®

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNNEREZSE

Impairment assessment of coal mining rights and related property, plant and equipment (continued)

BRR RBER AR - BE K RE 2R A )

For the purpose of management’s impairment
assessment, the recoverable amounts of the individual
assets or the cash generating units (“CGUs”), to which
the assets belonged were determined by management,
with assistance of an independent qualified external
valuer engaged by the Group, based on their values
in use using cash flow projections. In carrying out the
impairment assessments, significant management
judgements were used to determine the key
assumptions, including projected sales quantities, unit
selling prices, unit costs, gross margins, growth rates,
production plan taking into account the time required
for the renewal of coal mining rights, and discount rates,
underlying the value-in-use calculations. Accordingly,
the impairment assessment of these assets was
considered to be one of most significance in the audit
and therefore determined to be a key audit matter.

REBEBETHRENGMNS  EEEEXEEMED
ReEFBEU((ReEABLDHNKRESETHER
BE BEH£EZEMNBEVEEKRINDEMERR BT
RARenEENREERAEEETE - £ETREFN G
B EREEBELERABUNEFFERR  BREAE
FREBHRBENERES  BUEE  BAKA - E
o ERE - AEFEGIREERBEEMTNRRE) &
BRI « it - ZFEBEMNREN EHEEREZBIRESD
BRREENEE — WHETRBREZSEE -

° We assessed the reasonableness of key
assumptions (including projected sales quantities,
unit selling prices, unit costs, gross margins,
production plan, growth rates and discount rates)
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry; and
EERBRAFEZRBERITRORBE  fFAHEEZR
BHR(BIEERES  BUSEE  BUKE - E
M HERE  BRERBBEX)REAEE R

o We evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed
by the management and the external valuer in
respect of the growth rates and discount rates to
assess the extent of impact on the calculations of
the value in use.

EEMEERE RIMNBEERML IR K RALIR X
ETHHREST - U EHERABEFENY
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter
BREZSBR

AREZXEE®G)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNNEREZSE

Assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables and other receivables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade
receivables and other receivables of approximately
RMB182,421,000 and RMB208,201,000 respectively,
as disclosed in notes 22 and 23 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements. Net reversal of
impairment losses of approximately RMB12,305,000
and RMB2,233,000 in relation to trade receivables and
other receivables respectively were recognised in profit
or loss during the year.

WU AV IERERM T2 K230 RIHE RZZF =
—F+ZA=+—H > EBEEENEREIEREIRE
b B ER R D R A A AR 182,421,000 R AR
208,201,0007T - FAEBMEKWE 5 RN H it & Uk
RN IEZE D R ERH AR 12,305,000t R A R
2,233,0007C B (B B 1R B B F &8 o

The assessment process of credit risk involved high
level of estimation uncertainty and required exercise
of significant management judgement. Accordingly,
the assessment of loss allowance for expected credit
losses on trade receivables was considered to be a key
audit matter.
FEERBNFEBESAREMMATEEHLFTEER
BEHEARHE - At - BKBSRROBAMEEEE
ZE R BN ARRRRREREE -

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

EYRE SRR HEEERRNEREESR 2 BRBETE

Our procedures to evaluate the assessment of loss
allowance for expected credit loss on trade receivables
and other receivables:

EHGEREESEREEMERERNBREEERZ

IR ERTGE - BERIMTATER
o We obtained an understanding on the

management’s process for credit risk assessment
and assessment of loss allowance for expected
credit losses on trade receivables and other
receivables;

ZEHERENEEERR R HEKE SRR
EEMERERNEREEBR 2 BREENS
REG T

. We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
aging of trade receivables and other receivables
balances based on invoice date and due date
as at the end of the reporting period to the
underlying invoices; and
EEREFNERAH RN REH RO E H
BOB S B U E 5 BR TR N HL Ath 8 WA BR R A4 R Y BR e
WM R
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BB
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) BAREFEZSEH®
Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREZSBIR EENERNMEEZSE

Assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables and other receivables
(continued)

W E SRR R MR RRNERFEEE R 2B R RENE @

° We assessed the reasonableness of
management’s loss allowance estimates by
examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions
and forward-looking information and examining
the actual losses recorded during the current
financial year and assessing whether there
was an indication of management bias when
recognising loss allowances.
EETGEEEMELOEERBELFRES
B HACECEREBERERABKMANE
£ BRARBERNBIENERE - STEBRE
BEEXEDEKRAECENRRRATIEIEER T LA
BEABRYBEAMRFERSNERERE - )

MHEREATSRBTNEREARREREBR
FERR -

o For the collectively assessed expected credit
losses, we assessed the reasonableness of
the Group’s expected credit losses models,
including the model inputs, model design, model
performance for significant portfolios.
MEBNENEREEEENS :.#.%15 =1
SEMANEHEEFEREARS - B
A ABHE - BARE - EK%H’SE‘JTEﬁ%%EE g
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

[E 0 2

AREZXEE®G)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNNEREZSE

Valuation of new borrowings to be recognised on extinguishment of original borrowings

HEEREERETRIANMEEETHMGE

We identified the valuation of new borrowings
recognised on extinguishment of the original borrowings
as key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and the significant judgment involved by the
management in determining the fair value of the new
borrowings to be recognised.
EERHEEREERBRNTEEETNEHERRNS
BREZER  RARAUAREGSVBERRERM
ENEBEA EEBREEETK THRANFTEENAR
BERAEERERFIE -

As explained in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, there were modifications to the terms of the
Group’s certain borrowings which the management of
the Group had concluded that the modifications were
substantial modifications and hence should be treated
as extinguishment of the original financial liabilities
and recognition of new liabilities. The new liabilities
are measured at fair values on respective dates of
extinguishment of the original borrowings with the
difference between the carrying amounts of the original
borrowings derecognised and the fair values of the new
borrowings being recognised in profit or loss.
WERE R mKN 28 - ERESETEENK
REFE - BEEEEEERABEBEIINBEXN
&l - AMEREERSRMABNERNBEEIE - #
BERREENHBEERBRRAAENE - WHRER
$ﬁaaﬂ¢ﬁﬁﬁﬁgmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%m&ﬁﬁz
EH o

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

Our procedures in relation to valuation of the other
borrowings included:

BEEREMEEN[ERRT A TERF

o We obtained the settlement agreements and
assessed the appropriateness of management’s
judgement on extinguishment of original
borrowings and recognition of new borrowings
with reference to terms and conditions of the
agreements-

REEE R - WRE R @R RR&E
ﬁ%ﬁa@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁaﬁ%%%ﬂ%

= WA A .
ERRE

° We reviewed the legal opinion received by the
management in relation to the enforceability of
the modifications to the terms of the Group’s
borrowings;

ZEEHNEREY BESENEEGRREITRS
AR HAITMESHERER

° We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies and key inputs adopted by the
management in determining the discount rates
to be applied when determining the fair values of
the new borrowings;
EETGERECEETRAREECNAMEED
AAENRBEXRGHRABNMEETEREZ2HA

HIERERE
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Key audit matter
BREZSBIR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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BAREFEZSEH®

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNNEREZSE

Valuation of new borrowings to be recognised on extinguishment of original borrowings (continued)

HEEREERETRINMERETOMLEG

In determining the fair values of new borrowings
to be recognised on extinguishment of the original
borrowings, the management of the Group is required
to estimate a suitable discount rates. The management
of the Group had taken into account key inputs such as
risk-free rate, credit spread and illiquidity spread when
determining the discount rate applied to determine the
discount rates.

EETERREERKE THANINBENRIAE

B BEREEEEAGELEEMNMEAX EEER
REEAAENRRXE X BEEEEEECEZRER

N
NEE
SIS

i EEEERRIUETCEZEBETERABE -
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had
recognised gains on extinguishment of old liabilities
and recognition of new liabilities of approximately
RMB238,673,000, as disclosed in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ARG WSk 8 i - BEZE T =—F+_H
=+—HILFEE X ESECHEEREEGERERTE
& e R = 4 A R #238,673,0007T °

° We checked the accuracy of the calculations
prepared by the management for determining the
fair values of the new other borrowings; and
EEREEREEEETHEMEBEEN AR ERT
EITHEER S LR &

o We evaluated the sufficiency of the relevant
disclosures in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards in the consolidated
financial statements.

EEN GRS ERBEEMBRRNER ST E
A{ER B BRI EER
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021 of the
Group other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Sai Kit
Practising Certificate Number: P05544

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—8--F i St 322
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
By zE ARETR ARETT
Revenue [ 7 4,559,180 2,247,363
Cost of sales HERK (2,618,061) (1,892,048)
Gross profit E 1,941,119 355,315
Other income, gains and losses HibA - Jim REHE 8 377,506 (137,134)
Distribution expenses pakicliiFa (4,530) (2,261)
Administrative expenses IBAX (250,721) (208,376)
Reversal of impairment losses/ (impairment BRRERE CRERR
losses) on coal mining rights BR/(REER) 15 1,441,315 (1,869,716)
Reversal of impairment losses/ (impairment nE - BERREZREER
losses) on property, plant and equipment e/ (REER) 16 852,991 (2,069,252)
Reversal of impairment losses on trade B E 5 R BIEBBREFE
receivables, net 12,305 31,736
Reversal of impairment losses/ (impairment B RF R MERRR
losses) on prepayments and other REBERR/ (AESR)FE
receivables, net 5,394 (12,987)
Other expenses HiAx (44,522) (33,483)
Operating profitfloss) . gEENBR 4330857 . (3:946,158)
Finance income BT 0N 7,038 2,189
Finance costs IBAKA (367,799) (369,029)
Netfinancecosts . . ... mERARR 9 (Be0761) . (366.840)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BHATER/(F18) 10 3,970,096 (4,312,998)
Income tax (expense)/credit FERES)/ e 11 (782,186) 876,128
Profitiloss) forithe yeal SRR el FRERER) T80 (3.436,870)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hib2EBA /(B8
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ E&rlacEH D EZBERAER ¢
profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation differences for BINEBEE  INEREZS
foreign operations (2,374) (3,312)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for FREMZEAKA(BB)  BRBi%
_theyearnetoftax @34 (8312
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for FR2ERA /(R AHE
the year 3,185,536 (3,440,182)

140 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED +EEREEERAT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEBAX

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—B--F i St 322
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
By zE AR®T T ARETT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: EEERER/ (B8)
Equity shareholders of the Company AREEGRFEA 2,793,546 (2,901,499)
Non-controlling interests gD 394,364 (535,371)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERiER/ (F8) 3,187,910 (3,436,870)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for EEERZERA/(BE)EE
the year attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company AREERFBA 2,791,172 (2,904,811)
Non-controlling interests EaTig £ 394,364 (535,371)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for ER2EAKRA/ (BRAE
the year 3,185,536 (3,440,182)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to FREAFAERBEAELEER
the equity shareholders of the Company 27/ (&8)
during the year 14
Basic eamings/(loss) per share SREARF/ (B8) RMB111.8 cents  RMB(116.6) cents
AR¥111.8% ARE(116.6)7
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share SREFRFN/ (B8) RMB107.0 cents  RMB(116.6) cents
AR¥107.0% ARE(116.6)7

“E-—FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE B ESIR L R

31 December 2021 —E=-—F+=-_A=+—H

2021 2020
B —F —EZTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR®¥TR ARETFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Coal mining rights Bk R 15 2,990,264 1,942,800
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 16 2,946,407 2,371,686
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 17 30,562 9,218
Other deposit HEmize 23 25,503 34,264
Interest in an associate R—HEEE R e 2 s 18 = =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 5,992,736 4,357,968
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 217,533 55,635
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BRI 22 182,421 430,143
Prepayments and other receivables  JE15 BR 5k K H th g Uk BR 3¢ 23 419,246 298,872
Financial asset at fair value through B AR B ABENESREE
profit and loss 20,112 -
Pledged and restricted deposits B R SR S 17 3 24 2,103 403
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRREEEY 25 1,030,439 154,904
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,871,854 939,957
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERTE SRR 26 (320,464) (670,373)
Other payables and contract liabilites EfEREAMREHEE 27 (2,305,855) (2,295,605)
Lease liabilities MEaE 30 (8,833) (2,805)
Borrowings BE 28 (1,475,850) (1,970,990)
Tax payable FERIEIE (469,921) (204,933)
e (4,580,928) (5,144,706)
Netcurrent liabilities REEEFR 00 (2709069 (4204749
Total assets less current liabilities RE#ERZBHEE 3,283,667 - 153,219
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Accrued reclamation obligations TEIREZRER 29 (144,090) (133,920)
Lease liabilities HEEE 30 (6,925) (926)
Borrowings BE 28 (2,216,782) (2,625,364)
Deferred taxation IEREFR IR 19 (631,278) (289,093)
e (2,999,075) (3,049,303)
Net assets/(liabilities) EEFE(AEFH 284,592 (2,896,084)

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A BRI R

31 December 2021 —E=-—F+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F e 3
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR¥ET T ARETTT
Capital and reserves BAR#EE
Share capital [ 211,224 211,224
Perpetual subordinated convertible KA IR AR AT 2 R 3
securities 32 156,931 156,931
Deficit B4 32 (850,176) (3,636,488)
Total deficit attributable to equity =~ A AR EFHE AEGE M
shareholders of the Company e (482,021) (3,268,333)
Non-controlling interests FFERER 766,613 372,249
Total equity/(deficit) (R M 284,592 (2,896,084)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directorsof R-ZE-—F=A=+—HEFHEZLEBRFR

China Qinfa Group Limited on 31 March 2022.

Xu Da
Director
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Bai Tao
BHE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
B —F —EZTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR%T T ARBTIT
Operating activities RETE
Profit/(loss) before taxation BR&L AT R, (B518) 3,970,096 (4,312,998)
Adjustments for: BT SIEEL TR
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WEREEITE
equipment 10 304,340 267,143
Amortisation of coal mining rights R SRR R B 10 427,722 205,368
Depreciation of right-of-use asset CREEENE 10 5,664 4,362
Finance income U3 ON 9 (7,038) (2,189)
Finance costs BTSN 9 367,799 369,029
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE L& HE
plant and equipment (Uezs) /BERFE 8 (27,121) 95
Property, plant and equipment written-off 472 - Bi/= & 2% 5 # 10 - 1,245
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ xR ERE 2 R ERE
impairment losses on coal mining BE),/REEE
rights 15 (1,441,315) 1,869,716
Reversal of impairment losses on GFERBERBEED
inventories (7,000) -
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ Yz - BEREHEZ
impairment losses on property, plant  CR{EEGEE ), REEIE
and equipment 16 (852,991) 2,069,252
Reversal of impairment on trade FEWE 5 BR R 2 B B F 5E
receivables, net (12,305) (31,736)

(Reversal of impairment losses)/ TETERR R H A W AR SR 2
impairment losses on prepayments CRIEBERD), REEIE
and other receivables, net et (5,394) 12,987

146

Trade and other payables written off & 5 K H 4th & - BR 0 8 (8,269)
Gains on substantial modification REREARELEKRNERTZ

upon loan restructuring Iz 8 (238,673) =
Loss on non-substantial modification &£ & ~ JE& A& M E1E

of borrowings 8 - 194,351

2,483,784 638,356

Changes in working capital: LEESE
Change in inventories FE# (157,795) 3,815
Change in trade receivables FEULE B AR 260,027 (269,310)
Change in prepayments and other FEAST BR 5% B H il 1 Uy AR S

receivables (106,382) (17,427)
Change in trade payables EE SRR E (349,866) 336,499
Change in other payables and HEMmEMERRENEES

contract liabilities (24,487) (99,877)
Cash generated from operations RETHFBRS 2,105,281 592,056

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-—F e 3
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR%T T ARETTT
Interest paid EfTFE (42,401) (42,401)
PRC Corporate Income tax paid BT B EH (175,013) (22,574)
Net cash generated from operating EZ EBHFEBHELSFE
aetivitles e 1887867 527,081
Investing activities RETE
Interest received B U F 8 7,038 2,189
Net cash inflow from asset acquisition & B SDE (7€ #& F.Ff5E31)
of SDE (as defined in note 31) BERENRESRAFE 1,862 =
Deposits paid for proposed acquisition L& W ESDES {1 2 %4
of SDE - (34,264)
Deposits paid for other proposed L L fh 2 R W B AR TE B
acquisition of coal mine projects Sk (25,503) =
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HE¥E « FE LR E
plant and equipment FriSsK18 156,356 26
Payments for financial asset at fair RIERAREFTABRD
value through profit and loss SREE TR (20,112) =
Payments for property, plant and PV - B KA 2K
equipment (136,707) (68,129)
Payments for mineral exploration and Bt EHE Eh R & R #E 2 4 3K
mining rights - (54,327)
Placement of pledged and restricted 17 M E 3 & 2R #7770
deposits (1,700) (378)
Withdrawal of pledged and restricted 12U E #1252 IR Hl1F 3K
deposit - 15,204
Net cash used in investing activities REZBAAREFR  (18766) | (139,679)
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from borrowings BEFSIA 25 653,800 855,100
Repayments of borrowings BEEE 25 (1,629,721) (1,244,837)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEARE (13,804) (4,335)
Netcash used in financing activities REZBMAREHFE (989,725) (394,072)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERRESZEEY
cash equivalents #hn, (Rd) B8 879,376 (6,670)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—BZzE&
1 January RBEEZEEY 154,904 159,695
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSBHNTE
changes (3,841) 1,879
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=-A=+—-H2
31 December RERREEEY 1,030,439 154,904
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

148

GENERAL

China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (2007 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The directors of the Company consider
the immediate and ultimate holding companies of the
Group to be Fortune Pearl International Limited (“Fortune
Pearl”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and the ultimate controlling shareholder to be
Mr. Xu Jihua (“Mr. Xu”), the sole shareholder of Fortune
Pearl. The Company’s shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 3 July 2009 (the
“Listing Date”). The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and the principal
place of business of the Company is Unit Nos. 2201 to
2208, level 22, South Tower, Poly International Plaza,
No. 1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu District, Guangzhou
City, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are coal mining,
purchases and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal
in the PRC and shipping transportation.

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”). However, the presentation currency
of the consolidated financial statements is Renminbi
(“RMB”) in order to present the operating results and
financial position of the Group based on the economic
environment in which the operating subsidiaries of the
Group operate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB2,709,069,000
(2020: net current liabilities of approximately
RMB4,204,749,000). As at 31 December 2021,
borrowings and accrued interest (including default
interest) amounting to approximately RMB1,428,514,000
(2020: RMB1,808,207,000) and approximately
RMB274,265,000 (2020: RMB359,171,000) respectively
had been due for immediate payment, in which short-
term bank borrowings of RMB638,000,000 (2020:
RMB663,440,000) are short-term bank facilities that
have been rolled over upon respective maturities in the
past several years, other borrowing of RMB492,444,000
and related interest payable of RMB226,479,000
classified as current liabilities in respect of Settlement
Agreement of Loan Il (as defined and detailed in note
28) include carrying amount of only RMB51,575,000
payable within twelve months from 31 December 2021
if only based on the revised scheduled repayment
terms set out in the Settlement Agreement of Loan
Il (as explained in note 28), and other borrowings of
RMB298,070,000 are due to an asset management
company or other lenders with the status as detailed in
below note 2(ii).

In addition, pursuant to the settlement agreements
(as detailed in note 28) entered into during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2021, there are default
clauses that the asset management companies can
require the Group to pay the outstanding balance of
the original borrowings and interest payable in the
event of default. As at 31 December 2021, in respect
of the settlement agreements, other borrowings, which
had no event of default occurred so far up to the end
of the reporting period, with carrying amounts of only
RMB2,756,562,000 and related interest payable of
RMB227,833,000 were recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position. Please
see note 28 to the consolidated financial statements for
details.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Moreover, there are a number of litigations against the
Group of which the details are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements, mainly requesting the
Group to settle long outstanding payables with interest.
And the Group’s bank deposits of approximately
RMB2,103,000 were restricted for use in relation to
the litigation proceeding, as set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the assumptions that the Group will
continue to operate as a going concern notwithstanding
the conditions prevailing as at 31 December 2021
and subsequently thereto up to the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue. In order to improve the Group’s financial position,
immediate liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise to
sustain the Group as a going concern, the directors of
the Company have adopted several measures together
with other measures in progress at the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue, which include but not limited to, the followings:

(i) For borrowings which will be maturing before
31 December 2022, the Group is actively
negotiating with banks/lenders before they fall
due to secure their renewals so as to ensure
that the necessary funds will be in place to
meet the Group’s working capital and financial
requirements in the future will continue to be
met. The directors of the Company are of the
view that based on past experience and the
current communication with banks, no significant
difficulties are expected in renewing the banks’
short-term borrowings upon their maturities;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

In relation to those borrowings that have
been past due or those borrowings that
became immediately repayable due to cross-
default clauses set out in the respective loan
agreements, which are classified as current
liabilities and detailed in note 28, the Group is
in the process of negotiating with the relevant
banks and other lenders to extend the repayment
dates and to obtain waivers from banks. The
directors of the Company are of the view that
based on past experience and the current
communication with banks/lenders, it is not
probable that the banks will exercise the cross-
default clauses to demand immediate payment,
and new settlement agreements would be
reached in respect of other borrowings payable
to asset management company or other lenders
within reasonable time period, in which other
borrowing of RMB50,870,000 was subsequently
restructured and partially repaid in March 2022,
as detailed in note 41;

the Group will actively obtain additional new
sources of financing as and when needed;

Given the stability of coal market and uprising
coal prices, the Group will accelerate the coal
production of those coal mines currently under
production and apply for the renewal of those
expired coal mining rights of coal mines not
yet commenced production, together with
applying cost control measures in cost of
sales, administrative expenses and capital
expenditures, to increase the Group’s internally
generated funds and operating cash inflows in
coming years continuously. The Group recorded
a net operating cash inflow of approximately
RMB1,887,867,000 (2020: RMB527,081,000)
during the year; and
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(v) The Group has appointed external lawyers
and/or assigned internal lawyers to handle the
outstanding litigations, and to mitigate the risk
exposure from any legal claims. In respect
of some of the litigations, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group has
valid grounds to defend against the claims.

On the basis of the successful implementation of the
measures described above in the foreseeable future
and after assessing the Group’s current and forecasted
cash positions, the directors of the Company are
optimistic that the Group will be able to meet in full the
Group’s financial obligations as they fall due for the
twelve months from 31 December 2021. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared on the going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
to write down the carrying amounts of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. FE A ET T B AR 45 5T B BR Bt % 3R £ 2 Al
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (TEARR B T 3R 5 22 81 )

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective RAFERHEEMPVLETEBRT RS
for the current year 8|

In the current year, the Group has applied the following REBERBRRGEVBRERNEAEES
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International RERBBEERerElZEg ((BEEEE
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time, EARBEE])BEMAOT IS T BB B 7%
which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods WMEER  REEAR T _—F—F—
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation A3k 2 & AR FE BRfE SR 6l A K

of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform RIEFTBIR M SRS &R«  FIREERE -
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 ~Phase 2 REHAERIEI% - EREER

BB BREENETHR -
BRI B R SR A 45 1
BRM B HREEAFE 1657

Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent BT RS ERIE16%  Covid-191AH
Concessions HeRE

In addition, the Group has early applied the AN - AREEC IR T ER ST BRI %

Amendments to IFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent WEEFE16HRZZE=—FA=TH

Concessions beyond 30 June 2021” 1% 2 Covid-19t8EEH &R & ]

Except as described below, the application of the Br Tl E AN - RANF S I RIS 5T BIR B

amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no B EEREREBMNAFERBEFE

material impact on the Group’s financial positions and BB RRIR KSR e IS REA

performance for the current and prior years and/or on HEBRWEEALE o

the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendment to IFRS 16
“Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions” and early
application of Amendment to IFRS 16 “Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021”

The Group has applied the Amendment to IFRS 16
“Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions” for the first time
and early applied the Amendment to IFRS 16 “Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021” in the
current year retrospectively. The amendments introduce
a new practical expedient for lessees to elect not to
assess whether a Covid-19-related rent concession
is a lease modification. The practical expedient only
applies to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic that meets all
of the following conditions:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms

and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying IFRS 16 “Leases” if the changes
were not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver
of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application of these amendments has had no

material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance in the current and prior years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended
Use!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2018-2020"

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current”

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months from reporting date for
classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected
by management intentions or expectations
to settle the liability within 12 months; and

(ii) if the right is conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the right
exists if the conditions are met at the end
of the reporting period, even if the lender
does not test compliance until a later
date; and

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

3.

FE A ET R RS 5T BBR B 35 3R 45 2 Al
(TEARR B TR 5 22 81 |) (&)

B AR 15 R A AT RT R LS 7T Bl BR B
iR EZER (@)

B T XAt e 37 7] S R AE R BIFR A TS 3R
RGN RABEFEHEAMB M
] R AR A& BT B B 75 i 5 2R IR AT R # 2KR
TEHRAVBRREREATE -

BISETEIBRE T ERIE 1K M EES R

TE B

ZEEI RN ERRESEEKERE
HEEERE LT EEE S+ @A
MmGEEIERRBKIERE - (EET
EERkmaigs - B

. ERBAEI BERRBNIEREE
ERERSHRFENERN - A58
mE @ ZFEFEBT ¢

(i) PETEXEEERGSEE
FHER+_ERAREEE
EATE Rk

(i) FEEANZIRARERETRHE
MIﬂT fis A ¥R 5 B R
BOETHEBKG(BEER
mAF?&E%Ww&E
BEFE B - RIEF
FE: R

m%

\
’

Y
/ lm]dr
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current” (continued)

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if
the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying IAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Presentation”.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

IAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.
If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure
material accounting policy information.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies” (continued)

IFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group but will affect the disclosures
of the Group’s significant accounting policies. The
impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the
Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting
Estimates”

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts
that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based
on the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting

estimates in |AS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use”

The amendments specify that the costs of any item
that were produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples
produced when testing whether the relevant property,
plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the
proceeds from selling such items should be recognised
and measured in the profit or loss in accordance with
applicable standards. The cost of the items is measured
in accordance with IAS 2 “Inventories”.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract”

The amendments specify that, when an entity assesses
whether a contract is onerous in accordance with IAS
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”, the unavoidable costs under the contract
should reflect the least net cost of exiting from the
contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and
any compensation or penalties arising from failure to
fulfil it. Costs of fulfilling the contract include incremental
costs and an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling contracts (for example, an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract” (continued)

The amendments are applicable to contracts for which
the Group has not yet fulfilled all its obligations as at the
date of initial application.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018—-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the
following standards:

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of
assessing whether modification of terms of original
financial liability constitutes substantial modification
under the “10 per cent” test, a borrower includes only
fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or the lender on the other’s behalf.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the example
the illustration of reimbursement relating to leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to remove any
potential confusion.

The application of the amendments is not expected to

have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable IFRSs,
which collective term includes all applicable individual
IFRS, IAS and related Interpretations, promulgated by
the IASB and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non- controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2021, the Group can elect to
apply an optional concentration test, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The concentration test is met
if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset
or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the
effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test
is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not
to be a business and no further assessment is needed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the International Accounting Standards Committee’s
“Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting” issued in September
2010).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes” and IAS
19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in IFRS 16) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which
(a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

EX

=R G

EBEHREERE®

EBEHE

RUEE B H - PR AT S8R B 2 N P IR
BEREAARBETARER I :

EXEHRBEEXARBNRARERR
Mz BEXARD D HIRIEE
BRERTERIE 125k PriS ) R BIRR
SETEAF19%R[EEBA IR

E

B M AR MR A PAR A7 75 B RE ) 5 53R
LA BB A AR B &
MV R 2 BE M AT S22 A S B LA B
D RERNNR L 2 BEIBEA
TARBRMBREEF2H/RN
WEABTIAGFE(R TX &K
®)

BRI 15 3R S R 55 [ #FF i
EZHRDEENCRIELEE
BINnBABHEHEZEE(HHE
BRNRZER TG E : R

HERBRAMKBEENR(EER
BIRR B 75 ¥R 5 RIS 1657) WO R (B
R LETE - M EEERN K
BERMEE - E(EEHRNK
BHB12EAABR  H(b)IHE
BEREEENHEERIN - EHE
BEREHBEERERRNEH
R KGR - WHETHREARBRE
5 R AR L A B H9 B RS 6

Eo
A °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirers previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non- controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirers
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit, the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described below.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of the associate used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. Changes
in net assets of the associate other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long- term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of IFRS 9/IAS 39, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Iltems of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to a working condition for its intended use, the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located and capitalised
borrowing costs and changes in the measurement of
existing liabilities recognised for these costs resulting
from changes in the timing or outflow of resources
required to settle the obligation or from changes in the
discount rate. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as
part of that equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

When proved and probable coal reserves have been
determined, costs incurred to develop coal mines are
capitalised as part of the cost of the mining structures.
All other expenditures, including the costs of removing
waste materials, the cost of repairs and maintenance
and major overhaul, are expensed as they are incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different estimated useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item)
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced component is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
incurred.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

BEAESHEE®

ME - BERSEE®
R R A E (8)

HE T RARGFRRFEE - AR
BERBENERERNMERRBREENK AR Z
—ﬁB" PIAEM S (BIEREEANE

BT B R DA R KPR N EE A X2
ﬁ%i °

HWYE  BELREEE T2H D OMGE
AERFEHIR - MEAWE - BEER
fRHEL IR R (EEJ D)5 -

ME - BERRBEERHERRERFE
ERZEED ERMN B RELNEER
SBPUHER - hEWE - BFE RRIBA
B MU as s B 1B (IR E IS R F 8
HIFANEREEZZBTE)NGEEEZER
ARPHER -

REHE

HERYE BMEMRERBEHIENA
BRAEE S REERN S - TEATRA]
AR Seibat & RIEARASIZZIA B MR
EE R - B R E8D # Bk H (B 45 BUR #E
RoME  BEERENBERBEAE
REELERAEGS EEPARTER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its
residual value. Significant components of individual
assets are assessed and if a component has an
estimated useful life that is different from the remainder
of the asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of each component
of an item of property, plant and equipment, other than
mining structures.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative years of significant items of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Plant and buildings 10-30 years
Machinery 3-30 years

Electronic and other equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-15 years
Vessels 10-30 years

Mining structures are depreciated using the units-of-
production method, utilising proved and probable coal
reserves in the depletion base.

No depreciation is provided for assets under
construction until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and available for intended use. Assets under
construction are transferred to the relevant categories
of property, plant and equipment upon the completion
of their respective construction.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted if appropriate, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Coal mining rights

Coal mining rights represent coal mining rights
acquired from the government or through a business
combination. Coal mining rights are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Coal mining rights are amortised using the units-of-
production method, utilising proved and probable coal
reserves in the depletion base.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets (including
right-of-use assets) with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing
them to their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as cost of sales in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write- down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as cost of
sales in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period the write- down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write- down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as cost of sales in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Obligations for reclamation

The Group’s obligations for reclamation consist of
spending estimates at both surface and underground
mines in accordance with the PRC rules and
regulations. The Group estimates its liabilities for final
reclamation and mine closure based upon detailed
calculations of the amount and timing of the future
cash spending to perform the required work. Spending
estimates are escalated for inflation, then discounted at
a discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability such that the amount of provision reflects
the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The Group records as
additional costs of the mining structures in property,
plant and equipment associated with the liability for
final reclamation and mine closure. The obligation and
corresponding asset are recognised in the period in
which the liability is incurred. The asset is depreciated
on the units-of-production method over its expected life
and the liability is accreted to the projected spending
date. As changes in estimates occur (such as mine plan
revisions, changes in estimated costs, or changes in
timing of the performance of reclamation activities), the
revisions to the obligation and the corresponding asset
are recognised at the appropriate discount rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares, net of any tax effects, are recognised as a
deduction from equity.

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities issued
by the Group gives the right to the holder to convert
these securities into a fixed number of the Company’s
shares at any time at a fixed exercise price per share.
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities with
no contractual obligation to repay its principal and
no contractual obligation to pay any distribution are
classified as equity. Respective distributions if and
when declared are treated as equity dividends.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in
which they are declared.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives or
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are transferred to
customers which are taken to be the point in time when
the customer has control on the goods and thus, the
performance obligation was satisfied. Revenue from
the sales of goods in the course of ordinary activities is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and value
added tax.

Charter hire income

Income from time charter, which is of operating lease in
nature, is recognised in accordance with IFRS 16 on a
straight-line basis over the period of each charter.

Income from voyage charter is recognised over time
by reference to the progress of which the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
when the voyage charter service is provided by the
Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Subsidies that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as other income in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Subsidies that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the estimated useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non- monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies IAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs comprise borrowing costs, which are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the
cost of non- monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement plan obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
MPF Scheme) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme as specified by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the

Group to reduce existing level of contributions for each
of the years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Binomial
Model and Binomial Lattice Model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it
is transferred to share capital and share premium
accounts) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings or accumulated losses).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except
that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of
the financial asset. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under IFRS 9 (including trade receivables and other
receivables). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on the past due analysis of the trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward- looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instruments
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtors ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due with reference to
the historical payment pattern of customers of
the Group, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 1 year past due with reference to
the historical payment pattern of customers of
the Group, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event; the lender(s) of the
borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

BEAESHEE®

$RMIA®

TEEE(E)

A B E R B ()

(i) EEREcREE
TREEE—EHAULENSEH
(HzemEEMTARKRRERE
BRI E)BEEREIBEER

B cREELREERENER
BRABTIIEHNAIBRREE

TARERANEKH

B s

. BRENMEOBHE
) ERANERARE
FERAMRKELALN
I8 i i A A SR A R B RA
“ERTTEBNER

. fERA R IR A] BEFA AT EE 3L
HibfAfE#A 3

. R RS Z R EER
HREMS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the basis
of:

o nature of financial instrument;

° past-due status;

° nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceed received. Any interest in such transferred
financial assets that is created or retained by the Group
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

(continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms
result in a substantial modification from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. When the contractual terms
of financial liability are modified such that the revised
terms would result in a substantial modification from
the original terms, after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors,
such modification is accounted for as derecognition of
the original financial liability and the recognition of new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of financial liability derecognised and the
fair value of consideration paid or payable, including
any liabilities assumed and derivative components
recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.

If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the
Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid
net of any fees received, and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment, and any costs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

(continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial liabilities’ original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial
liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks and financial institutions
on behalf of subsidiaries to secure interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Company’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with IFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where

appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Where guarantees in relation to interest-bearing bank
borrowings of subsidiaries or associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment in the financial statements of the
Company.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Lessee accounting

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Lessee accounting (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term is depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

BEAESHEE®

HE®
REA B EE R L (8)
FHEEE

EREEEXRARLE :

HERBEIRTESR

. RFtE B g 2 pIfEL 2 EFHE
MR BEERCWEEHE)

. AEBELEZEMARERKA
K

. AEBYEFOREBHBEE -
IREAERA A EPME B S IR B AE
BEREE R R ZERZMRR
ZAEFTRCAS - BRIFZFRATIE &£
EFEMES -

8 P 7 DA AL 25 1 R 47 6 TR
EEEHE - AHEEREHEEN
B{FiHEE -

AEBESERENEEH AR ESHE
MHEEERGRZEREEE  HAM
M= EAFERTETERE - Rtz
Sh - EREEEREG AT ERFHRE
SFEHRBEE  UEREERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Lessee accounting (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

206

(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Lessee accounting (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets unless the adjustment to the right of use assets
results in the carrying amount of the right of assets
becoming zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, in which case, any
remaining amount of the remeasurement is recognised
in profit or loss) whenever:

o there is a change in the lease term or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the date of reassessment.

o there is a change in future lease payments
resulting from changes in an index or rate used
to determine those payments, including for
example a change to reflect changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or
there is a change in the amounts expected to
be payable under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
As a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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208

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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210

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires the directors of the Company to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are described as follows:

(i) Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
other receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for the trade receivables. The provision rates
are based on nature of goods provided to the
customers as groupings of various receivables
that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(M)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
other receivables (continued)

The Group makes periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information.

In addition, trade receivables and other
receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables and other receivables
are disclosed in note 35. As at 31 December
2021, the carrying amount of trade receivables
and other receivables are approximately
RMB182,421,000 and RMB208,201,000 (2020:
RMB430,143,000 and RMB117,522,000)
respectively, net of impairment loss allowance
and impairment loss allowance of approximately
RMB36,302,000 and RMB338,670,000 (2020:
RMB55,657,000 and RMB344,768,000)
respectively.
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5.

212

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Impairment assessment of coal mining rights
and property, plant and equipment

When there is indication that coal mining rights
and property, plant and equipment may be
impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amounts of the relevant assets or the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belong. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit in which the relevant assets are
attached to, which is the higher of the value
in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units projected with
reference to the projected sales quantities, unit
selling prices, unit costs, gross margins, growth
rates and discounted at a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. The
estimated uncertainty mainly includes production
plan taking into account the time required for
the renewal of coal mining rights, gross margin,
discount rate and growth rate. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which results
in downward revision of future cash, a material
impairment loss or a further impairment loss may
arise.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

5.

EREFHB R A5

(i)

B RRER K « B R A
B

HBE I RBRRIRRBEERDE
BE KRR e IRRE - AEH
ME R EERZ T EERBNR
TELEMNATKREEEE o i AA
REEFHEREEMAIKE S - A
SEGHEBREERBOREES
BUmr i mERE - BEREESK
RABERHBERARMEZFHERS
FoFTEEREER  AREFE
AR ELBMBHELHRK
Reng(2ZHEHAHEE  BUE
B - BRA - EF - BREMmE
TR LES T IR EFR) - A
AAERE BN TEEEEE
BREEES G REEREEMN
FHRRE) EHN - FARXRIER
o HERARRASREREHD
ZEERBERABEZEUBAKR SR
THE  AAEEELEEARERS
BEGE— PRRERE °

o
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iif)

Impairment assessment of coal mining rights
and property, plant and equipment (continued)

As disclosed in the notes 15 and 16, reversal of
impairment loss of coal mining rights amounting
to RMB1,441,315,000 (2020: impairment
loss of RMB1,869,716,000) and reversal of
impairment loss of related property, plant and
equipment amounting to RMB852,991,000
(2020: impairment loss of RMB2,069,252,000)
were recognised as at 31 December 2021, and
the carrying amounts of coal mining rights and
property, plant and equipment of coal mining
cash-generating units are RMB2,990,264,000
and RMB2,870,088,000 respectively (2020:
RMB1,942,800,000 and RMB2,219,033,000
respectively).

Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 15.

Depreciation

Other than mining structures and assets under
construction, property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. The management
periodically reviews changes in technology
and industry conditions, asset retirement
activity and residual values to determine
adjustments to estimated remaining useful lives
and depreciation rates. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic
reviews could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation expenses in
future periods. As at 31 December 2021, the
carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment, other than mining structures and
assets under construction, was approximately
RMB1,101,105,000 (2020: RMB1,138,818,000).
Further details are disclosed in note 16.

5. EAXRSEHERMAT@®

(ii)

(iif)

“E-—FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BRERFMS @

B E1s5R16MEE - &
REBEREBERDARE
1,441,315,000c (ZE=FF :
REEEARK1,869,716,000
L) RABBEME - BE K& ER
EEERR ARES852,991,000
T(ZEZZTF  BEBEBARE
2,069,252,00070) ERN = E = —
+ZA=+—H®R - mMEXKEK
TBHEIR & 2 A B AL A E IR BRI %
W BERZENEREEDS A
AR#2 990,264,0007T & A R
2,870,088,000C(ZZE=FF : %
Bl A AR #1,942,800,0007 X AR
2 219,033,0007T) °

A E & A EF B RHE 15

e

et REEFBRERBE WX -
R B K 3% 48 1 A 51 AT 8 A 4 HR A
BEHEETUNE  MHEREZEY
REZEERI - ERETHRF
Bt RITEAMNES) - & EREEA
MFNF R EE - ABETEE GG T
AFAFHERNEERNAE - &
B EF R RE BT AT E A F
TR - TR URERNESF
AR BZBEMNTERSE - B
—F-—FtZA=1t—H8 P
¥ BEAIRBOERBEEZEYRE
BEERIINNEEENAARE
1,101,105,0007c(ZZ=ZFF : A
R¥1,138,818,0007T) ° #—#&F
SRR 163 -

213



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

5.

214

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(iv)

Coal reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s coal
reserves are inherently imprecise and represent
only approximate amounts because of the
subjective judgements involved in developing
such information. There are authoritative
guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that
have to be met before estimated coal reserves
can be designated as proved and probable
reserves. Proved and probable coal reserve
estimates are updated on a regular basis and
have taken into account recent production
and technical information about each mine.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change
from year to year, the estimate of proved and
probable coal reserves also change as adverse
changes in prices and cost levels would affect
the cost-effectiveness of mining the coal
and hence may cause reclassifications from
reserves to resources categories. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis
in related depreciation and amortisation rates.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these
engineering estimates, these estimates are used
in determining depreciation and amortisation
expenses and impairment loss. Depreciation
and amortisation rates are determined based
on estimated proved and probable coal reserve
quantity (the denominator) and capitalised
costs of mining structures and coal mining
rights (the numerator). The capitalised cost of
mining structures is depreciated and coal mining
rights are amortised based on the units of coal
produced.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(iv)

(v)

Coal reserves (continued)

At 31 December 2021, the net carrying amounts
of the Group’s coal mining rights and the Group’s
mining structures recognised in property,
plant and equipment were approximately
RMB2,990,264,000 (2020: RMB1,942,800,000)
and approximately RMB660,794,000 (2020:
RMB566,544,000) respectively. Further details
are disclosed in notes 15 and 16 respectively.

Obligations for reclamation

The estimation of the liabilities for final
reclamation and mine closure involves the
estimates of the amount and timing for the future
cash spending as well as the discount rate used
for reflecting current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The Group considers various factors,
including production volume and development
plan, the geological structure of the mining
regions, to determine the scope, amount and
timing of reclamation and mine closure works
to be performed. Determination of the effect
of these factors involves judgements from the
Group and the estimated liabilities may turn
out to be different from the actual expenditure
incurred. The discount rate used by the Group
may also be altered to reflect the changes in
the market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability, such
as changes of the borrowing rate and inflation
rate in the market. As changes in estimates
occur (such as mine plan revisions, changes
in estimated costs, or changes in timing of the
performance of reclamation activities), revisions
to the obligations will be recognised. As at
31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
accrued reclamation obligations approximately
RMB144,090,000 (2020: RMB133,920,000).
Further details are disclosed in note 29.
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5.

6.

216

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(vi)

Discount rate for lease liability

In determining the discount rate for lease
liabilities, the Group is required to estimate
and determine the discount rate (being the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rates) taking
into account the nature of the underlying assets
and the terms and conditions of the leases at
the commencement date or at the date of initial
application of IFRS 16, as appropriate.

SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

The Group has two operating and reportable
segments which are the Group’s strategic
business units, as follows:

o Coal business: Coal mining, purchases
and sales, filtering, storage and blending
of coal in the PRC.

° Shipping transportation: Time charter and
voyage charter of vessels.

These strategic business units offer different
products and services, and are managed
separately because they require different
technology and marketing strategies. For each of
the strategic business units, the Chief Executive
Officer (the “CEQ”) reviews internal management
reports on a monthly basis.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the CEO monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following basis:

o The measure used for reporting segment
profit is adjusted profit before net finance
costs and income tax expense. ltems
not specifically attributable to individual
segments, such as unallocated head
office and corporate expenses are further
adjusted.

o Segment assets include all tangible
assets, coal mining rights, right of
use assets, interest in an associate
and current assets with the exception
of other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade payables, other
payables attributable to activities of the
individual segments, accrued reclamation
obligations and borrowings managed
directly by the segments.

° Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference
to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those
segments.

No operating segments have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

2 EBEE (90

(a) HEE BEREE®

Coal business Shipping transportation Total
RIRER mEES @t
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--% _ZT-TE ZBC-§  “ZT-TFE ZBI-F “ZCTE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETRH
Revenue from external RPN
customers 4,498,980 2,190,112 60,200 57,251 4,559,180 2,247,363
Inter-segment revenue DRI - - - - - -
Reportable segment THED Pl
revenue 4,498,980 2,190,112 60,200 57,251 4,559,180 2,247,363
Reportable segment profitt A% 2 HEH A
(loss) before taxation wA/ (E8) 4,323,732 (3,898,160) 19,875 (31,810) 4,343,607  (3,929,970)
Depreciation and HEREH
amortisation (733,131)  (468,722) (4,595) (8,151)  (137,726) (476873
Net gainf(loss) on disposal ~ {HENE * BER
of property, plant and Rk
equipment (BR) 8 404 (92) 26,717 @) 27,121 (95)
Reversal of impairment VER T ET
losses/(impairment ZRERE
losses) on property, BB/ (R
plant and equipment BB 852,991  (2,057,757) = (11,495) 852,991  (2,069,252)
Reversal of impairment BrigEe
losses/(impairment REBRED/
losses) on coal mining (RfaER)
right 1,441,315 (1,869,716) - - 1,441,315 (1,869,716)
Reversal of impairment EWE S8R
losses on trade HEBEED
receivables, net e 12,305 31,736 - - 12,305 31,736
Reversal of impairment BENERRRAY
losses/(impairment R 2B
losses) on prepayments EREE/(RfE
and other receivables, net  E#8) %8 5,394 (12,987) = = 5,394 (12,987)
Additions to property, RENE BER
plant and equipment B 157,788 M7 63 7,108 157,851 48,225
Reportable segment assets WHREIBEE 8,633,282 5,519,793 75,422 256,626 8,708,704 5,776,419
Reportable segment TRESPEE
liabilities (6876293) (7814045)  (391289)  (432935)  (7,267,582) (8,246,980

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF



6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE2—_Z-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6.

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment

2 EBEE (90

(b) FHEDWWE - RBEADEF -

revenue, profit before taxation, EEREENEER
assets and liabilities
Revenue Wan
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Total of reportable segments ATRE D F =B
revenue 4,559,180 2,247,363
Elimination of inter-segment 2 RIS H 5
revenue = =
Consolidated revenue fralas 4,559,180 2,247,363
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AE R (E51E)
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT
Total of reportable segments AR5 2 BOBR T AL
profit/(loss) before taxation wmH (B 18) 4B 5E 4,343,607 (3,929,970)
Unallocated head office and KoEBRAEIRATRRE
corporate expenses (12,750) (16,188)
Net finance costs B TG R AN R (360,761) (366,840)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before RABRBRNER,(E18)
taxation 3,970,096 (4,312,998)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6.

220

(b)

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. oHHRE®
Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) THESBWE - BRBAUER -
revenue, profit before taxation, EEREENEHER®
assets and liabilities (continued)
Assets BE
2021 2020
=B —F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Total of reportable segments assets A ¥R & 7 S0 E E 4258 8,708,704 5,776,419
Elimination of inter-segment 5 BB [ FE AR 3 2 $1 48
receivables (917,326) (483,798)
Unallocated assets ROLEE 73,212 5,304
Consolidated total assets EEERE 7,864,590 5,297,925
Liabilities BfF
2021 2020
—EZ—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFTT
Total of reportable segments AmEDE B FEERE
liabilities 7,267,582 8,246,980
Elimination of inter-segment 7 BB R BR 3R 2 $9 88
payables (807,570) (564,062)
Tax payable FEIHLIR 469,921 204,933
Deferred taxation EERIA 631,278 289,093
Unallocated liabilities ROEBE 18,787 17,065
Consolidated total liabilities e REResE 7,579,998 8,194,009

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(c)

Geographic information

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total
assets are primarily dominated by assets
handling its coal business and shipping
transportation business. The coal is sold
primarily to the PRC domestic customers and
investments in all coal mines are physically
located in the PRC. Therefore, related assets are
almost all located in the PRC. The vessels are
primarily deployed across geographical markets
for shipping transportation throughout the
world. As a result, the directors of the Company
consider that it will not be meaningful to allocate
the Group’s assets and their related capital
expenditure to specific geographical areas.
Accordingly, geographical segment information
is only presented for revenue, which is based on
the geographical location of customers.

6. ZIE®mE®

(c)

EEER

RZEBE-_—F+-A=+—H 'K
SEMNBEAETBALCEEERE
HRMBERESNEE - BikE
BETHREBEARE  TEKE
WEEE FAMNPE - Bt - 154
MEELT2PMANTE - EME
DREREBE AN EMET S A
B2 o Mt AR EERERAE
wEEsAEBEEREHEBER
A WEEE - Al - RIREFH
BB EN RS2 HE D
HER -

Revenue from external customers IEBE W
2021 2020
—E-—%F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
PRC Fha 4,543,591 2,217,289
Other countries EmBER 15,589 30,074
Total et 4,559,180 2,247,363
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6.
(d) Information about major customers
During the year, revenue derived from the
following customers in coal business segment

with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue are as follows:

7 EB 7 (8)
(d HFRAZEEFZEH

RER - EXSEAEBKFEBA
10% 2 LA T B ok 275 50 B0 P A9 UK

WO
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETTT

Customer A EPEA 1,706,523 749,769
Customer B =FB 1,097,486 N/A* i@
Customer C gFC N/A* T 38 B * 286,966
Customer D EFD N/A* 8+ 284,854
Customer E %FE N/A* T3 F* 228,870
* Revenue from relevant customer was less than 10% * DRSSl €Y lapa NS )i

of the Group’s total revenue for the respective year.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

REVENUE 7. Uk &
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with ERBEEISHNEP &AM E S FN
customers by service lines is as follows: N
2021 2020
. —F-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBETTT
Sales of coal Bk iHE 4,498,980 2,190,112
Charter hire income EeUA 60,200 57,251
4,559,180 2,247,363
Revenue from sales of goods are recognised at a point P ERERNEmER TEPRER -
in time when the goods are transferred to customers. P R TR E A B AR TEK o 1R EAAE AR
The performance obligation is satisfied upon the BN S H A B AR o IRHEM
delivery of the goods. Revenue from rendering of time RSB B 2 E AL B IR HIZHE RS A
charter services is recognised on a straight-line basis HERBERE R o 2R T B4
over the period of each charter. Revenue from rendering EERTEAK ©

of voyage charter services is recognised over time by
reference to the progress of the voyage charter services
provided by the Group. The performance obligation
is satisfied upon the completion of the voyage charter
services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

8.

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMlA - WEREE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Foreign exchange loss, net i 5 B 18 F 5E (7,909) (5,974)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE - BERE&H#EZ
plant and equipment Wz (E518)F 58 27,121 (95)
Gain on substantial modification upon loan MREREARELERERTZ
restructuring (note 28) Wz (Fit7E28) 238,673 =
Loss on non-substantial modification of BEEEEXNIEFTNEE
borrowings (note 28) (Ft3E28) = (194,351)
Government subsidies (note (i)) BB & (B RE()) 115,673 43,954
Insurance claimed B ={ERE = 8,717
Others HAfth 3,948 10,615
377,506 (137,134)
Note: B5E -
(i) The government subsidies of RMB115,673,000 (2020: (i) BF#EE ARE115,673,0000 (=2 =%

RMB43,954,000) were granted and received/receivable as
financial subsidies on the Group’s business development for
the year ended 31 December 2021 with conditions that the
respective entities would maintain their principal places of
businesses at the designated area for the same year, which
were fulfilled.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

NET FINANCE COSTS 9. 3 R AN R BE
2021 2020
- —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Interest income R EUA (7,038) (2,189)
Interest on borrowings EEFE 111,767 130,927
Penalty interest k=N 42,783 46,008
Interest charge on unwinding of discounts EaRIR 2 FI B A (BEEG)
(note (ii)) 213,249 192,094
Less: Interest capitalised into property, W E - R RERET
plant and equipment (note (i)) EERMEAE ) - -
Financecosts MBRA 367,799 369,029
Net finance costs R ID W = 360,761 366,840
Notes: B3
(i) No borrowing cost has been capitalised for the years ended 31 (i) HE_T-—FR-T_FF+-R=+—
December 2021 and 2020. HILEE  MEERERADEANL -
(ii) This item represents the unwinding of discount for the following (ii) WIEEEF A ERF KRR AT & &8
liabilities using the effective interest rate: i
2021 2020
B —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Borrowings (note 28) & & (FizE28) 202,225 181,907
Lease liabilities HEBRE 854 277
Accrued reclamation obligations (note 29) TERR1RZR B A (K17E29) 10,170 9,910
213,249 192,094
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

10.

226

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 10.

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BRBEATE R, (E518)

BB AR, (BR) EMBRIATSIE :

2021 2020
—B-—F —TCTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTT
Cost of inventories (note (i) FERA (B EE()) 1,534,600 1,143,794
Short-term leases payment REEERN R 1,780 1,376
Depreciation of property, plant and Mm% - BERREITE
equipment 304,340 267,143
Amortisation of coal mining rights (included & % i £ $5
in cost of sales) GON %) 427,722 205,368
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 5,664 4,362
Property, plant and equipment written-off ~ ¥13 « E K& R HEHEE
(note 16) (FtzE16) = 1,245
Reversal of impairment losses on FEZRERERE
inventories (included in cost of sales) (FFASHERKA) (7,000) =
Auditors remuneration Z SN &
- audit services - &% RTE 2,235 2,137
~ non-audit services - EEZRG 1,150 700
Employee benefit expenses (excluding BERIAZ(TRIEEER
directors and chief executives =ETHRA B¢
remuneration (note 12)) (F¥5E12)
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in -¥He  EMBREVETF
kind 437,041 370,869
— Contributions to retirement benefit — RIRE R EIME K
schemes 13,777 3,482
450,818 374,351
Note: BREE -

(i) Cost of inventories included approximately RMB1,096,567,000
(2020: RMB750,086,000) relating to employee benefit
expenses, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of coal mining rights which amounts are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above for each of these types of expenses.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR A

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

Income tax expense/(credit) in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

1. FiEBiAxX (E%)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

RAEZERARANPISHES(ER)
E, .

2021 2020
. —F-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTIT
Current tax expense BN EAR TE i 2
~ PRC Corporate Income Tax - PR EMER 439,609 8,408
- Underprovision of PRC Corporate - BEFEPRCEMSH
Income Tax in prior years BETR 392 =
_.ZHongKong profittax . TERRGR T %
440,001 8,453
Deferred tax (note 19) EAERIE (BT EE19) 342,185 (884,581)
Income tax expense/(credit) FTSHifsx (%) 782,186 (876,128)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

11.

228

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (CONTINUED) 11.

Income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be

FrigBipasz, (%) (@)
FRRMEHRAS(HR)BRIEEREE

reconciled to the profit/(loss) before taxation per the WA R BRF AR T (EB18) 5 8k

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as ™

follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETTT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BriiAE A, (B518) 3,970,096 (4,312,998)
Notional tax expense on profit/(loss) before £7 i A K+ & /B B AT
taxation, calculated at the applicable tax &,/ (E18) 2 & 518
rates 2 1,004,154 (1,075,243)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not PN ;.,uZﬂ@jJFHmIEFETEZ
recognised BB e 13,906 75,236
Tax effect of expenses non-deductible for  NATHIF B 2 TR FE &
tax purpose 22,734 33,981
Tax effect of income non-taxable for tax HRMBMAZ BTGB
purpose (13,049) (28,766)
Tax effect of deductible temporary PN ulb\Z—JTﬂﬁgﬂ%%gﬁz
difference not recognised g 96,551 275,463
Utilisation of tax loss and deductible AR FERER TG
temporary difference not recognised in R RN SR ERE
prior years (342,446) (156,799)
Underprovision of PRC Corporate Income @GS EREDEFRER
tax in prior years BRER 392 =
Effect of additional tax deduction enacted &% 7514 B8 48 o B8N BB %2
by tax authority a7 (56) -

Income tax expense/(credit) ISR ER (Kke) 782,186 (876,128)

Notes: B 5

0) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands (i) RERSHERABERHESNAA KRR
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any Bl AEEBAEAFRNRAESEHS R EBR B
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands ENERMEH(CE_ZF  §) -

(2020: nil).

(ii) Provision for the Hong Kong Profit Tax was based on the (ii) BEBNE %RB$EFF§/%T¢E$%%%ZW§
statutory rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the assessable profit Al EARBG AR EERE16.5%(ZE-F
of subsidiaries which carried on business in Hong Kong. F : 16.5%) TR -

(iii) Provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax was based on the (iii) REEMEHEIRER TR EES 2K
statutory rate of 25% (2020: 25%) of the assessable profits of BAR 2 EABR IR EERER25% (=T =
subsidiaries which carried on businesses in the PRC. TF ¢ 25%)FTIREAE -

(iv) Provision for the Indonesia Corporate Income Tax was based (iv) ENfe R EFTS B AR EDE 18 = 275 2 T
on the statutory rate of 22% (2020: 22%) of the assessable BRR 2 ERB MR EER 2% (ZF =
profits of subsidiaries which carried on businesses in the TF : 22%) 5T R EME - BRAKERBZEZ
Indonesia. No provision for Indonesia Corporate Income Tax T FR-F-TEF+-_A=F+—RHILF
has been made in the consolidated financial statements as ERENEI &R - E LR RE MK
the Group had no assessable profits in Indonesia for the years WERPHETIREDEREMEHEE
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EERRESTHAE#ME
REMUNERATION
Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows: EEMEe BT

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to retirement
and benefits benefit Share-based
Directors’ fee in kind schemes Sub-total payments Total
iR BHER DR A

EEHE  LEUEF HE:S N BEZAR &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Name of directors £32 AREBTRL  ARMTR AR%Tn ARETn ARETn ARMTR
For the year ended BE-B--F

31 December 2021 TZBZt+-ALEE
Executive directors yEs

Mr. Xu Da hELYE 793 1,614 122 2,529 = 2,529

Mr. Bai Tao (note (i) BELE ) 793 1,737 97 2,627 = 2,627

Ms. Wang Jianfei(note (i) T AR L (i) 306 403 10 719 = 719

Mr. Fung Wai Shing (note (i)~ /&{ZRk 264 (&% i) 174 342 4 520 = 520

Mr. Tan Yingzhong (note (iv)) B4 (I (V) 584 1,296 121 2,001 = 2,001
Independent non-executive ~ BUXHTES

directors

Mr. Lau Sik Yuen )i 324 = = 324 = 32

Prof. Sha Zhenquan DIREAS 240 = = 240 = 240

Mr. Jing Dacheng BARLE 20 = = 240 = 240

3,454 5,392 354 9,200 - 9,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EBERBETBRAEMEW
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances o retirement
and benefits benefit Share-based
Directors' fee in kind schemes Sub-total payments Total
e 2 RINER IR &
B2e  REWEA HE s Pt ERZAR @z
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of directors EE3E ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETR ARETR
For the year ended BZE-2-%F
31 December 2020 TZA=+-HLEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Xu Da RERE 1045 1647 48 2740 = 2740
Mr. Bai Tao (note (i) BER S A (R3E() 1045 1569 48 2,662 = 2,662
Ms. Wang Jianfei (note (i)) FRIR AL (3E(i) 471 491 2 984 = 984
Mr. Fung Wai Shing (note (i) /(&A% 2 & (R &k (i) 933 1611 16 2,560 = 2,560
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen ABREE 325 = = 325 = 325
Prof. Sha Zhenquan DREHER 240 = = 240 = 240
Mr. Jing Dacheng BAMEE 240 = = 240 = 240
4,299 5318 134 9751 - 9751
Notes: fEE -
(i) Mr. Bai Tao, an executive director of the Company, is also the (i) ARRRITEETABEENAARRRARST
chief executive of the Company. BAR °
(if) Ms. Wang Jianfei resigned as executive director of the (i) FRRELER=—ZE=—FNA T BHEITAE
Company on 16 August 2021. NRABITES -
(iii) Mr. Fung Wai Shing resigned as an executive director of the (iii) BEREENR_T-_—F=ARBEHEAR
Company on 5 March 2021. AIMITES -
(iv) Mr. Tan Yingzhong appointed as an executive director of the (iv) ERELEENR T -_—FNA—BEZTA

Company on 1 April 2021.
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

There were no amounts paid during the year (2020: nil)
to the directors in connection with their retirement from
employment with the Group, or inducement to join.

Director’s fee, salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind paid to or for the executive directors are
generally emoluments paid or receivable in respect
of those persons other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the year include three (2020: three) directors of the
Company, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 12 above. Details of remuneration for the year paid

12.

13.

EENRESTHRAEME @

FA - AAFLEAEEMEMERS
B A S EREA B2 RIA A 082 22 R
ZEITF )

EXNTHOTEFAATEFTNESTA
T FE o RUNEDEN-—RERZE
ATEERARRBRAKRENEHRBEHE
REM N FEEALHZEALER
S -

B FATEFNMES BEFELSN
NEEEAREREER

BERSREEAESHH

1 8 % A

FR - AEEREEEFHZATEEAR
RAZZH(ZE_TF  ZRH)BF |
L2 HMAHBHINN EXMIE12 c AL
EEHME(ZE_ZF WA &= 5

to the remaining two (2020: two) highest paid individual AL HBFBOT
of the Group is/are as follows:

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #& -« 28R EWEA 2,462 2,138
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes :RK4EFl 5T 2] ¢4 2 135 65
2,597 2,203
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

13.

232

EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 13.

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Employees’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of the two (2020: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

HKD

BT

EBEREREBEAETGM@®

EE&HM @

ME(CE_ZF : MB)ESFMHALZ
HE DM

1,000,001-1,500,000

1,000,001-1,500,000

1,500,001-2,000,000

1,500,001-2,000,000

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A ANER

1 2
1 _

There were no amounts paid during the year (2020: nil)
to the five highest paid employees in connection with
their retirement from employment with the Group, or
inducement to join.

Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments of the eight (2020: nine) senior
managements of the Group who are not directors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
within the following bands:

P 3 T A RO R X (A
2162 5 3 2SR BB £ .2 OB AE A 1
MW (—F T H) -

SREEAETHH
HE-_Z-_—®+-_A=+—8HLFE -

AEBNEB(CE-ZF : L R)SRER
ABAEARRER) ZFHMA M T

2021 2020

= —F_FF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HKD BT AE AE
Less than 500,000 500,000LA - -
500,001-1,000,000 500,001-1,000,000 3 3
1,000,001-1,500,000 1,000,001-1,500,000 4 6
1,500,001-2,000,000 1,500,000—2,000,000 1 -

Of the senior management of the Group, eight, including
two directors who resigned (2020: seven, including
one director who resigned) were the directors of the
Company, whose emoluments are included in note 12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14,
Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculations of basic earnings/(loss) per share
is based on the profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

The calculations of basic earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 respectively are based on the following data:

ZREFN(HE)
SREFBRF (KB

FRERARN, (BB HERFARRE
ETRERSAARGERTN,(BR) REE%
TEBBRMIEFSHEE -

BE-_ TR -_ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+
—BHIFEARREREREEADRIE
I ERRERAF,(EE) THER AT 8E
EE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to RRAAIERFER NELFA
equity shareholders of the Company swmH (B 18) 2,793,546 (2,901,499)
Less: Distribution relating to perpetual W BN AR ZKA
subordinated convertible securities KRB AR FE S 2 7K
classified as equity (note 32(c)) (BF5E32(c)) (4,860) (4,942)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable BRETESREARRT
to ordinary equity shareholders of (E518) 2 NN B A s
the Company used in calculating basic BEAEBRLERREF,
earnings/(loss) per share (E518) 2,788,686 (2,906,441)
Weighted average number of ordinary SEEREARRR(EE)

shares for the purpose of basic earnings/  FT /3 & &@ R INAE F19 2

(loss) per share

2,493,413,985 2,493,413,985
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 14. BR (B8 @
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share SREBERF(BHR)
The calculations of diluted earnings/(loss) per share H=z T‘-i& ZEF+ZA=+
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the —HIEFEAR %\ BEADRIRE

Company for the years ended 31 December 2021 and

TEHQ%%EW/(FE?E) TYERIA T &R

2020 respectively are based on the following data: TE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTIT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable ARG EERERRT
to ordinary equity shareholders of (E518) 2 NN R Ak
the Company used in calculating basic BEABRGFERRF,
earnings/(loss) per share (E518) 2,788,686 (2,906,441)
Add: Distribution relating to perpetual m: BESERER Zﬂ<7\
subordinated convertible securities IRB AR FES 27 N/A
classified as equity (note 32(c)) (B 5E32(c)) 4,860 N iE A
Adjusted profit/(loss) for the year BRETESREERT
attributable to equity shareholders of (E518) 2 RN A=A A
the Company used in calculating diluted {5 F R FEEF],~
earnings/(loss) per share (E518) 2,793,546 (2,906,441)
Weighted average number of ordinary STESREERA(EER)
shares for the purpose of diluted PR & m AR e 19 2

earnings/(loss) per share

St EEREERT,(BR)
TR TR
IR AR IR RE 55

Adjustments for calculation of diluted
earnings/(loss) per share:

Perpetual subordinated convertible
securities

2,493,413,985

118,000,000

2,493,413,985

N/A
i H

AESREERN(BR)
PR D R RE s R D
EEEDEE RSl

Adjusted weighted average number of
shares classified as equity for the
purpose of diluted earnings/(loss) per
share

2,611,413,985

2,493,413,985
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (CONTINUED)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share has not
assumed the exercise of the Company’s outstanding
share options since the adjusted exercise prices of
these options were higher than the average market
prices of shares for the outstanding period during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for
the year ended 31 December 2020 has not taken into
account the potential ordinary shares on perpetual
subordinated convertible securities as assumed
conversion would result in a decrease in loss per share.

14.

B (&)@
SREBERA(FE) @)

BE_ZE_—FR-FT_FF 1 ﬁ —I-
—BIEFE - EEEAﬁFﬁ@%Hx%ZZ‘“
ﬁ{ﬁmﬁ’\%zi_i:—i)}_g_gi—#
_H—Jr B E &R T BRI 2 15
miE  SAESREERN, /(BRI AR
REEAR B ZRITEBIEETRE -

AERE_T_TF+_A=+—HLHF
EEk#EgRr (BRI &E BKA
RMAT AR ESHBEE SRR RRRR
R EHBRERRD
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15.

236

COAL MINING RIGHTS 15. BRI ERERE

RMB’000

AR¥T T
Cost R
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and Eﬁ‘ 2_ TFE—H—AH -
1 January 2021 ZZEEF+A=+—8kK
T —F—H—H 4,776,872
Additions NG 33,780
Exchange differences X =5 91
At 31 December2021 . R=F=_—%t-A=t—-H 4,810,743
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RitBEREEEE
losses

At 1 January 2020 RZZEZTF—H—H (758,988)
Charge for the year F (205,368)
Impairment loss for the year FRREEBE (1,869,716)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_EF+=-_A=+—H (2,834,072)
Charge for the year FEH (427,722)
Reversal of Impairment loss for the year FRREREE[D 1,441,315
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H (1,820,479)
Net carrying amounts EEEEE
At 31 December 2021 R-BE-_—F+-_HA=+—H 2,990,264
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZE_ZTF+_A=+—H 1,942,800

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The balance represents the rights to conduct mining
activities in Shanxi Province. All the mine sites are
located on lands in the PRC to which the Group has no
formal title of ownership, hence none of the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets (see note 17) relate to
these lands. The Department of Land Resources of
Shanxi Province issued and renewed several mining
rights certificates to the Group. Details of the Group’s
coal mining rights are as follows:

Coal mining rights Expiry date
Shanxi Province, PRC
Xingtao Coal Mine
Fengxi Coal Mine
Chongsheng Coal Mine
Xinglong Coal Mine
Hongyuan Coal Mine

15 September 2022
24 January 2034

09 December 2022
29 November 2019
28 December 2020

Kalimantan, Indonesia

SDE Coal Mine 14 May 2024

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s coal mining rights
in the PRC with net carrying amount of approximately
RMB2,956,393,000 (2020: RMB1,942,800,000) were
pledged for the Group’s borrowings (note 28).

In respect of the expiry of coal mining rights of Xinglong
Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the renewal of mining
rights certificates by the relevant government authorities
is highly probable as long as the Group submits the
relevant regulation documents and fully settles the
mineral exploration and mining right expense, and
the renewal of the mining rights certificates can be
completed at minimal cost. In addition, with reference
to the legal opinion from an external lawyer engaged
by the Group, the Group will be able to continuously
renew the mining rights and the business licenses of
the respective mining subsidiaries at minimal charges.

15.

R R RE (1)

BRERIEN LTS R IRIE RGN o B
BRESHNNTEEL - NEBWEE
R - B INE %S T AR A A
REEMREERME7) - WAEEL
BEREAASERENEES HDRBEEE
£ ARBERRIRBEDFBAT -

RiximE ZIHA

L FEE

S ) R A —E-_FNAA+AHA

R PO T —E=-F—A=+WmA
SH R —E-F+=ZANH

[ IR —E-hF+—A=+NAB
RIRETE —E-FF+ A -+ )\H
HI/E h1 £ £ 5%

SDE/ & —E &R A+MA

RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H8  K&EBK
EREL) A AR2,956,393,000T(=F
—ZTF . AR¥1,942,800,0007T) HY R
IR B IR IR A S AL BB E (M
$08) °

AERRBERZERBNRBEEINDRSE
B ARAEERR  BEAKEZXIAMH
LB 1 0 7 B R R B R e BR R A
X HEABRNERRAFERAEEESE
REEEE  UARREEREEEER
ASRAKBCANTER © BEoh - RBEAREEE
FEONEDREDHDERB R - AEE SR Mk
BUARIKE RS EREE MR RENE
DR ERHR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, with the continuing significant
favourable coal market circumstances of the coal
business segment, the directors of the Company,
with the assistance from an independent professional
qualified valuer, namely Apac Asset Valuation &
Consulting Ltd, to assess the recoverable amounts
of the Group’s coal mines and related property, plant
and equipment. Each of the Group’s coal mines
and the related property, plant and equipment are
considered as an individual cash-generating unit. The
recoverable amount of each of the cash-generating unit
was estimated based on its value in use calculation
which uses cash flow projections based on the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors
of the Company covering a five-year period, and
discount rates ranging from 15.87% to 23.25% (2020:
13.75% to 20.14%), and the available coal reserves
of approximately 48.45 million tonnes (2020: 57.97
million tonnes), which comprise approximately 14.25
million tonnes (2020: 17.09 million tonnes) in Xingtao
Coal Mine, approximately 5.07 million tonnes (2020:
8.86 million tonnes) in Fengxi Coal Mine, approximately
5.17 million tonnes (2020: 8.06 million tonnes) in
Chongsheng Coal Mine, approximately 13.50 million
tonnes (2020: 13.50 million tonnes) in Xinglong Coal
Mine and approximately 10.46 million tonnes (2020:
10.46 million tonnes) in Hongyuan Coal Mine, together
with other key inputs including the estimated coal
prices of CGUs ranging from RMB543 to RMB669
per tonne (2020: RMB325 to RMB373 per tonne) and
production costs etc.. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period have been extrapolated using an estimated
1.80% (2020: 2.22%) growth rate which do not exceed
the average growth rate for the relevant markets. With
the assistance from Apac Asset Valuation & Consulting
Ltd, the directors of the Company concluded that the
estimated recoverable amount of each of the following
cash-generating units as at 31 December 2021 was
higher than the respective carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit. As a result, reversal of impairment
losses on the Group’s coal mining rights and the
related property, plant and equipment, amounting to
approximately RMB1,441,315,000 and RMB852,991,000
respectively, were recognised for the year ended 31
December 2021.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

15.

PR R RE (1)

R-Z-—F+—_A=+—H BRAERX
¥BoENERMIBIRBEFEBRERN LT -
AR EEEBTEESERMHEMEXR
BEFGENMEBRERARMNWBET » &
AEEKERBEAYE - BEREKENT]
WEle5E - AEESEELBBEDE - K
EREREHW R ABIY IR EABEN -
BHREEABMNAWE B HIREES
FAEEMGE  MmErEEAEERERT
BIBEARREERAEATHERE A FH
BB EEENIREREREA  UENTF
15.87%£23.25% MR K (Z T T F :

13%%Im1ww&7ﬂ%M@m1;
#4845 HEM (T T F : 57.97TE S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE2—_Z-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED) 15. BHREREE®)
As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amounts of RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H " HDEBEEF
coal mining rights and property, plant and equipment in Bl R IR RE R - R E R BRI ATk

the PRC had been allocated as follows: ESEEOT ¢
As at 31 December 2021
R-B=--f+=-A=+—H

Recoverable
Recoverable amount
amount allocated
Pre-tax Recoverable allocated to to property,
discount rate amount coal mining plant and
of CGU of CGU rights  equipment
PEWE
ReEE ReEE 2WME  UE-BE
=L Bf BrBEEEN REBHEH
BAMRE AhELE THELE THELHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥BTT AR%¥TR
(Note 16)
CGU BeELBN (MtzE16)
Xingtao Coal Mine L 1 23.25% 2,942,697 2,144,119 798,578
Fengxi Coal Mine IR PR 22.10% 1,466,857 584,479 882,378
Chongsheng Coal Mine SHETE 15.87% 1,261,417 647,566 613,851
Xinglong Coal Mine FE 1R 16.90% 1,146,644 566,604 580,040
Hongyuan Coal Mine PN YA 16.06% 1,154,387 159,832 994,555
7,972,002 4,102,600 3,869,402
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15.

240

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the coal mining right and
related property, plant and equipment of each of the
Group’s coal mines in the PRC as at 31 December 2021
are equivalent to the respective net carrying amounts
after reversal of impairment losses as disclosed in
tables below.

15. BREEE®

W—_E—

—ft+t-A=t—H8 AKELX

R R R R R R R AR R - BE
R EHREESN NRMKEERR

B} (B &5 18 12 FORREDFHE -

As at 31 December 2021
R-ZB=-—-5+=ZHA=+—H

Net carrying

Net carrying

amounts of Reversal of amounts of

coal mining impairment coal mining

rights before losses rights after

reversal allocated to reversal of

of impairment coal mining impairment

losses rights losses

B ERE B R B

EEATH PEE BEEN

BB RRREEN 1R R R RE

REFEE RESERD BREFE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

CGU REELEN AR¥ET T AR®T T ARBT T
Xingtao Coal Mine g 808,480 792,027 1,600,507
Fengxi Coal Mine ViR 223,732 169,474 393,206
Chongsheng Coal Mine SR 177,460 257,116 434,576
Xinglong Coal Mine R R 224,539 166,485 391,024
Hongyuan Coal Mine TRIRETE 80,867 56,213 137,080
1,515,078 1,441,315 2,956,393

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

15. COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

15. BREEE®

As at 31 December 2021
R=F=—-%+=A=1+-8

Net carrying
amounts of
property, plant
and equipment
before reversal
of impairment

Reversal of
impairment
losses
allocated to
property, plant

Net carrying
amounts of
property, plant
and equipment
after reversal
of impairment

losses and equipment losses

BERE PEE BERE

& B AT Y WE BiEEN

/E 1 REBEN Y BWE

REBEERDEE HESERE RRIEERDEE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AR¥TR ARBT T

(Note 16)

CGU HEELEEN (Fizx16)
Xingtao Coal Mine S ) 392,129 203,981 596,110
Fengxi Coal Mine IS PR LR 488,055 105,562 593,617
Chongsheng Coal Mine SR 385,509 26,440 411,949
Xinglong Coal Mine S T 230,880 169,417 400,297
Hongyuan Coal Mine R RE 505,376 347,591 852,967
2,001,949 852,991 2,854,940

During the production in late 2020, the mining team of
the Group had doubted that the coal reserves of all the
Group’s coal mines might be less than the previously
estimated amounts in accordance with Australasian
Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral
Resources and Ore Reserves (the “JORC Code”).
The directors of the Company were of the view that
the reasons for the changes in estimates were due
to revision of modifying factors including mining,
economic, legal, environment, and governmental
factors.

RZZEZZFRNEEBREF - XEEH
KREERERAEEMEEBNEAHS
ATREERRIRBRMNELER  BEE
REMEAREREER(JORCERINE
HREETHE -  ARRBEEZERE © Ht#
FNRERHMNERERMELE - BFEK
" &F - RE - BERBNEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The directors of the Company then appointed a
competent person, namely SRK Consulting China Ltd
(“SRK Consulting”), to re-assess the coal reserves of all
the Group’s coal mines as at 31 December 2020 under
JORC Code. Based on the competent person report (the
“CPR”) issued by SRK Consulting in 2021, the directors
of the Company were of the opinion that the estimated
amounts of the coal reserves were required to be
adjusted downward.

With the abovementioned facts and circumstances, the
directors of the Company, with the assistance from an
independent professional qualified valuer, namely BMI
Appraisals Limited, assessed the recoverable amounts
of the Group’s coal mines and related property, plant
and equipment. Each of the Group’s coal mines and the
related property, plant and equipment were considered
as an individual cash-generating unit. The recoverable
amount of each of the cash-generating unit was
estimated based on its value in use calculation which
used cash flow projections based on the assumptions,
basis and parameters disclosed above in note 15. With
the assistance from SRK Consulting and BMI Appraisals
Limited, the directors of the Company concluded
that the estimated recoverable amount of each of the
following cash-generating units as at 31 December
2020 was below the respective carrying amount of the
cash-generating unit. As a result, impairment losses on
the Group’s coal mining rights and the related property,
plant and equipment, amounting to approximately
RMB1,869,716,000 and RMB2,057,757,000
respectively, were recognised for the year ended
31 December 2020 to reflect the Group’s change in
estimate about the coal reserves.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

15.

PR R RE (1)

RARREEHEBEEZEAER/AISRK
Consulting China Ltd(ISRK Consulting])
KERJORCE R E T (b A= B B B
RZTEZTEF+ZA=1+—BMEKRE
£ o RBIESRK Consulting® =& = —F
PENEGEBALTHRE([EEBALTR
%) ARRAESFRAERFEENEFZ
BHETT A ©

SN

FELEREERBEAT  RNARESEBY
BELEBREEMAPMBBEFEERA
ANBT  FHAEEREBEREBRY
¥ BEMZENITKESE AEEZ
HERBEDE - BEREEDES S
YRR CELESMN - SREEEBEMAT]
WEeBDIREEEAERMBE - MAE
EFREERRKRANBESRER B THR
BWE15MEEMNRRE  RERDBH -
FESRK Consulting X R M A BFEBR A
RAMBET  ARFESERE - TIEH
SEABMN T -_TF+-_A=1+—H
T ESEERBEREEESN
WEREE - At - 82T -_FTF+=A
=+ —BIEFED RIS B A B R F
BEIEEADE  BEERKEERRE
BB 4 AR 1,869,716,0007T A R
2,057,757,0007T * LA I B AN 52 [ S0 o
SHFTHES o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED) 15. R ERTERE (50
The carrying amounts of the coal mining right and RZZEZTF+_A=+—8 FEEZ
related property, plant and equipment of each of the AR R R R SRR R AR - R
Group’s coal mines in the PRC as at 31 December 2020 REBEHERESN TRAAFEENABY
were equivalent to the respective recoverable amounts W Bl &8 o
as disclosed in tables below.
As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amounts of RZE_TF+_A=+—H0  HEEEH
coal mining rights and property, plant and equipment in Bl RKERERYZE - BRE KRB AT
the PRC had been allocated as follows: ESFEAT -
As at 31 December 2020
RZBZZEF+_A=+—H
Recoverable
Recoverable amount
amount allocated
Pre-tax Recoverable allocatedto  to property,
discount rate amount  coal mining plant and
of CGU of CGU rights equipment
DEEE
ReEs ReEs PEE  VE EE
v BH) HERREED R
BARRE  AKEeE AkEEeE  AREDe®
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFT ARETRT
(Note 16)
CGU ReELEN (Fi5E16)
Xingtao Coal Mine EiapeRiEd 20.14% 1,404,452 969,810 434,642
Fengxi Coal Mine 5 PR 19.15% 988,593 390,952 597,641
Chongsheng Coal Mine SH R 13.75% 734,622 276,632 457,990
Xinglong Coal Mine RS 14.61% 453,032 224,539 228,493
Hongyuan Coal Mine RERETE 13.89% 581,134 80,867 500,267
4,161,833 1,942,800 2,219,033

—E-—F4%3 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 243



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

15.

244

e
E-ETC

—F A= t—ALFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

15. HERIREE@

As at 31 December 2020
RZEZTF+=ZA=+—H

Impairment

Impairment losses allocated

losses allocated

to property,

to coal mining plant and

rights equipment

Az

Sz M - WE

R ER AR Y FAER

WIEE B B E R

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

(Note 16)

CGU REEEEN G,
Xingtao Coal Mine £ i) 1 T 950,075 425,344
Fengxi Coal Mine iy s 296,141 452 705
Chongsheng Coal Mine SR 400,802 662,700
Xinglong Coal Mine S R 166,485 169,417
Hongyuan Coal Mine R ETE 56,213 347,591
1,869,716 2,057,757

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERRE
Electronic Assets
Plant and and other Motor Mining under
buildings ~ Machinery equipment  vehicles  Vessels structures construction Total
BER EtR bt |

g7 BE ARG nE &k REH RREE it
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD  RMB0OO ~ RMBOOD  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOQD
ARETR ARRTR ARMTRL ARETRL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Cost A&
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZE-F—B 1143607 1218129 55003 250250 81719 2158845 1133686 6,301,338
Addtions HE 7231 26,685 572 928 6,982 = 5827 48225
Transfer g5 101 = = = = = (101) =
Disposals & = = (272) (314) = = = (586)
Written-off ik = = (263) = = (1,168) = (1431)
Exchange differences EizE (75) (65) (4) (266)  (15981) = - (16391
At 31 December 2020 RZE2%%

+-h=t-H 1150954 1,304,749 55036 250607 272720 2157677 1139412 6331155
Additions AE 78271 83318 2912 17,752 = 804 45238 157851
Disposals e (535) (1) (50)  (1898)  (2673%3) (765) - (27058)
Written-off ot (367539)  (464051)  (24560)  (86992) - (1,031623) - (1,974,765)
Exchange differences EREE (25) (98) 1 (105) (5,397) = (142) (5,774)
At 31 December 2021 S

+-h=t-H 790682 923903 33331 179364 - 1126003 1184508 4,237,881
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
At 1 January 2020 R-E-ZE-F—B  (75425) (675948)  (45252)  (134.988)  (132465)  (368,145) - (1632.223)
Charge for the year CES (45670)  (83718)  (2518)  (0440) (5675  (109,122) - (27,143)

Impairment losses (note 15) BEEEIE1) (312936)  (141453) (5687)  (10727)  (11.495) (1,113866)  (473,088) (2,069,252)
Disposals e = = 258 27 = = = 465
Written-off ik = = 186 = = = = 186
Exchange differences EizE 48 - - 188 8,262 = = 8498
At31 December 2020 S

+-h=t-H (633,983)  (901,119)  (53013)  (165760)  (141,373) (1591,133)  (473,088) (3,959.469)
Charge for the year FhiE (5952)  (60,103)  (1786)  (15248)  (1722)  (19952%) - (304340)
Reversal of impaimment losses/ ~ REFEERE,/

(impairment loss) (note 15) (REER) (is5) 39,482 47617 1534 (2470) - 203740 473088 852,091
Disposals e = = 41 1337 130073 = - 143
Written-off i 37538 464,052 24,561 86,991 - 1031623 - 1974765
Exchange differences EREE 20 5 1 80 3,122 = = 3,228
At31 December 2021 RZBZ-%

+-B=1-R (50895)  (449548)  (28662)  (95,070) - (465,299) - (1.291474)
Net carrying amounts FEFE
At 31 December 2021 N-F-—F

t-B=1-R 537787 474355 4,669 84,204 - 66074 1184508 2946407
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE

+-B=1-R 516971 403630 2023 84847 131347 5GB544 666324 2371686
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group does not have the title certificates for certain
items of plant and buildings with an aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RMB512,677,000 as
at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB498,700,000). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy and
use the above mentioned properties and therefore the
aforesaid matter does not affect the ownership rights
of the Group over these assets and hence did not have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial position
as at 31 December 2021.

As described in note 15, the directors of the Company
estimated the recoverable amounts of each of the cash-
generating units to which coal mining rights and related
property, plant and equipment have been allocated. As
a result, reversal of impairment losses on the Group’s
coal mining rights and the related property, plant and
equipment in the PRC, amounting to approximately
RMB1,441,315,000 (2020: impairment losses of
RMB1,869,716,000) (see note 15) and RMB852,991,000
(2020: impairment losses of RMB2,057,757,000)
respectively, were recognised for the year ended 31
December 2021. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amounts of coal mining related property, plant and
equipment in the PRC amounted to RMB2,854,940,000
(2020: RMB2,219,033,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
conducted a review of the Group’s assets in relation
to the shipping segment and determined that the
recoverable amount of certain asset which was based
on the fair value less cost of disposal were lower than
its carrying amount and accordingly, impairment loss
of RMB11,495,000 had been recognised in respect of
such asset.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

16.

ME - BEREZE®

AEETEFENR -_Z=-_—F+=-A=+
—HRERMFAENAREKS512,677,0007T
(ZZ=ZF : AR¥498,700,0007T)H)#E
THEREFEHENEEREE - AQAE

REAEBHESEREREE RER
FiipE o Bt P EBESRAFERE
B ZEEEZMBERETHAEER =
T+ A=+ BHNFHRRLET
AIERFE -

BANKTEE1SPTIL - A AR ESHETH K
RiEERBEEME - BERZREDE
ENZRESELEEMNNARESHE -
I BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLF
&5 B 5 2N 55 B /9 A B B ok SRR AR K AR
W BELXBEERREBEREROA
R#1,441 315,000 (ZE=_ZF : HE
B8 AR #1,869,716,0007T) (R 3£ 15)
M AR¥852,991,000t (T T 4F :
EEBARK2057,757,0007T) c R=F
——F+-A=+—8 EREEBEH
FEME BEARENEEEAAR
#52,854,940,0000L(Z 2 =FF : AR
2,219,033,0007T) °

RE-T-BE+-A=+—HILFE -
ARBENT AXBAMGED BOHE
B wREETAENTRESHEYRE
RA I A ) B SR
AEEREBEERRAESEARS
11,495,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s property, plant and equipment with net
carrying amount of approximately RMB377,517,000
(2020: RMB590,361,000) were pledged for the Group’s
borrowings (note 28), as follows:

16.

YME - BEREZE®

AEBKRB@FELHAREEI77,517,0007T
(ZZE=-FF : AR¥590,361,0007T) 8%
% BEMREHRKFLNESAEBEER

(H15E28) » AN PR -

2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-EF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Plant and buildings 5 RAEF 150,473 157,782
Machinery 23 35,193 49,968
Electronic and other equipment BT NREMEE 186 425
Motor vehicles B 4,649 8,722
Vessels B = 103,686
Mining structures R EEY) 187,016 269,778
377,517 590,361
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

17.

248

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FERAEEE
Leasehold Office
lands* Machinery  buildings Total
HE i HEs WRAEF HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREBTIT ARETRT AR®ETT
At 31 December 2020 i e
+=-—A=+—H
Carrying amount FREE 4,513 = 4,705 9,218
At 31 December 2021 JrA
+-—A=+—H
Carrying amount BRMEE 4,373 15,420 10,769 30,562
For the year ended HE_T-TF
31 December 2020 +=A=+—H
WFE
Depreciation charge TEBR (140) = (4,222) (4,362)
For the year ended HE-_T-_—F
31 December 2021 +=-—A=+—H
WFE
Depreciation charge TEER (140) (892) (4,632) (5,664)
2021 2020
- ZE-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Expense relating to short-term leases and 242 #iFH & M FHF R
other leases with lease terms end within 1218 A A fEm 8
12 months HitniHEB AR 1,780 1,376
Total cash outflow for leases HERS R LR (16,438) (5,988)
Additions to right-of-use assets NEFHEEE 24,977 2,752

use.

Being land use rights located in the PRC for the Group’s own

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

B AR B B A RIS AP B B - {8 R AE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. ERAREE®
For both years, the Group leases various offices for its PREFE  AEEHEZEARAZTAR
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed EE o  HEANNBEFEHB1E3FE]AL ©
terms of 1 year to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated AEGRTIEE R AR LER - BIESE
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of NEMER R - REE BB R ETA
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease BOBENRER  AEEEAGLMNT
terms and assessing the length of the non-cancellable FEWETE S AP R EIFRITH AR -
periods, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. RN—EBEQAT KR
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTTT
Unlisted investment: JELETIRE :
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LTS - ERKANE 49,000 49,000
Share of post-acquisition loss and other Sl EEEBEEREMEE
comprehensive loss 18 (2,433) (2,433)
Impairment loss RIEBE (46,567) (46,567)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

18.

250

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 18. R—EBELTz2ER@®

The following list contains the particulars of the Group’s TRHEJAEE-FBHERTIR T —
associate at the end of the reporting period of 2021 and FERZZBZTFRERRFTS

2020:

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERERRLLH
Principal
Group’s Held Held activities
Place of effective by the bya and place of
Name of associate establishment interest Company  subsidiary operation
H—E
r&EE HALDTF HEBLAR TEEH
BENT BB PR 37 3t B B ER B8 BE REE#H
Tongmei Qinfa (Zhuhai) Holdings PRC 49% - 49%  Sales of coal
Co, Ltd. (“Tongmei Qinfa”) (2020: 49%) (2020: 49%) in the PRC
RERE G ERERAF 2lEd 49% = 49% BIRIHE
(TRE=E]) (Z2=FF: (Z2=ZF: HHE
49%) 49%)
Tongmei Qinfa sells coal in the PRC and is a strategic RERENFBRIEEERK - WRAEEE
partnership for the Group for its coal business. IREFS TR EIERY -
The Group had discontinued recognition of its share AEBEEBE_T—~"F+_A=+—
of losses of Tongmei Qinfa since the year ended 31 HEFEERRIEBREDIGREREE
December 2016 because its cumulative share of losses B TDHRARBE QAR ZEEIGEE
in the associate had exceeded its investment cost DA EREN R RFIREEE o fHi
less accumulated impairment losses. The amounts of BEEARIEBEEERERE cANFE KRR
unrecognised shares of the associate, extracted from SMEBE AR EHRERL LT -
the relevant management accounts of the associate,
both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETT

Unrecognised share of (profit)/loss of an  AFE D5 —E 2 A R
associate for the year (&) EEHRERS D (1,131) 18,414

Accumulated unrecognised share of loss of 25t 15 —EHE & A Rl EIE R
an associate RNIERERD 42,873 44,004

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

19.

IEFE R IR

RRGAMBRARZIINE TS - 5
TEEBAAERA BN - LT A
RIS B AT OEERAR B D
#

2021 2020
- —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 457 4,094
Deferred tax liabilities EREFIBAE (631,735) (293,187)
(631,278) (289,093)

—Z— %3 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 251



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

Bt 75 R 2R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

19.
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DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 19. EEBE®)
The following are the major deferred tax assets/ NTAERAFERBTFERRNEEZR
(liabilities) recognised and the movements thereon EHBEEE (BB REZE) :
during the current and prior years:
Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation in excess of
Impairment Revaluation surplus  the related
allowance arising  arising from  depreciation
of trade Sales from loan business and
receivables Cut-off restructuring combinations  amortisation Total
FEUEZ £ byl
FE BEAR EHEA EEH  HERES
RERE By  EENMEf EffBR  HRERG @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETE ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZE-F5-F-H 374 (65,829) (73,798) (904,139) (130.282)  (1,173,674)
Credit for the year ERES 3,720 30,778 8,975 771,757 69,351 884,581
At 31 December 2020 “TCTF
Jr_ﬂ =+-H 4,094 (35,051) (64,823) (132,382) (60,931) (289,093)
(Charged)/credit for the year FR(@H) /s (3,637) 35,051 60,554 (451 244) 17,091 (342,185)
At 31 December 2021 i —
+ZA=1-H 457 - (4,269) (583,626) (43,840) (631,278)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of RMB374,475,000 (2020:
RMB466,092,000) available for offset against future
profits and has deductible temporary differences
of RMB386,206,000 (2020: RMB1,101,852,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the tax losses and the deductible temporary differences
due to the unpredictability of future profit stream. The
tax loss will expire within five years.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

RIPEER - AEEESE ﬂiﬁﬁﬁmlﬁréﬁ
BAR®374,475,000(ZE -8 F :

AR#466,092,0007T) @ A A A K
KIHF - RESATMREEZBAR

#386,206,000 L (T _ZTF : ARK
1,101,852,0007T) © & i 7 18 &548 Ko A]
MBERNEZEERECHREESE - AR
AR AR ] FEBE - FRIEEE R
AFREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has direct
and indirect interests in the subsidiaries, all of which
are private companies. The particulars of the major
subsidiaries are set out below:

REBRRZRE

R-ZE-—F+-A=+—H  AQXAR
THWBAREREEEEEER - T
WEB AR AMARE - ZEXTEWNBEAR
AIRFEBEHSIIT

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERLLA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
R/ A5H HEAT HNEAR 2R IEEBR
AAER R ERER 2] 2] MR /EREs EERY
Qinfa Investment Limited British Virgin 100% 100% - USD4,801/  Investment holding
(“Qinfa Investment”) Islands (2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) USD50,000 in the PRC
FURERRAR(RERE) ABRAES 100% 100% - 4801%7/ RERR
(CRZTE100%)  (ZFZFF:100%) 50000%7 hEl
Hong Kong Qinfa International Trading ~ Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD689,635,000/ Sales of coal and
(2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) N/A investment holding
in the PRC
EARLERESERAT B 100% - 100% 68963500087/ BRHERKARR
(ZEZTE 100%) (ZEZTE 100%) iR hE
Qinhuangdao Development Zone Qinfa The PRC 100% - 100% RMB68,000,000/ Sales of coal
Trading Co., Ltd. (i) (2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) RMBE8,000,000 in the PRC
REERERREEHARAA) hEl 100% - 100% AR %68,000,0007T/ RIRHE
(ZTZZF:100%) (ZBZTE0100%)  AEH680000007 hE
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/ Sales of coal
(2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) RMB5,000,000 in the PRC
WAREBSARAH() i 100% = 100%  AKH5,000,0001/ BR#E
(“B-TE 100%) (CEZTE00%  ARHES50000007 hE
Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% HKD315,000,000/ Sales of coal
(2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) HKD315,000,000 in the PRC
WAREMRARAR() i 100% = 100%  315,000000%87,/ EREE
(CB-FE: 100%) (ZZZZF :100%) 315,000 00047 hEl
Shuozhou Guangfa Energy Co., Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB10,000,000/  Investment holding
("Shuozhou Guangfa”) (2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) RMB10,000,000 in the PRC
MBS RRRABRAA) hE 100% - 100%  AR%10000,0007/ RERR
(TBME%) (ZFZFF:100%) (ZEZZE100%  ARE10,0000007 i
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20.

KRB AR ZRE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERLLA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
R/ 50 BEAT BEAR 2Rk TZEER
AAER R {0 5 2:) 22} BR/ERER EERY
Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group Co., The PRC 100% - 100% RMB300,000,000/  Investment holding
Ltd. (i) (*Huameiao Energy’) (2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) RMB300,000,000 in the PRC
LAEXREREERRAA) hEl 100% - 100% AR300,000,0007T/ REBR
(E=3-5750) (ZBZ2E:100%) (ZBZFE:100%)  ARM3000000007 hE
Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 100% RMB129,590,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Xingtao Coal Co., Ltd. (i) (2020: 80%) (2020: 100%) RMB129,590,000  operation in the PRC
(“Xingtao Coal")
LAAHTEREXRARRS hEl 80% - 100% AR%129,590,0007T/ RRARREE
BRAR) ((RRZ) (ZZ25F:80%) (CBZFE0100%)  ARE129590,0007 hEl
Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 100% RMB32,000,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Fengxi Coal Co., Ltd. (i) (2020: 80%) (2020: 100%) RMB32,000,000  operation in the PRC
(“Fengxi Coal")
LAAHTEREXRBRRS HEl 80% - 100%  AR%32,000,0007/ RRARREE
RRAR) (5EHZ) (ZB2FF:80%) (ZBZFE:100%)  ARM320000007 hEl
Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 100% RMB107,290,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Chongsheng Coal Co., (2020: 80%) (2020: 100%) RMB107,290,000  operation in the PRC
Ltd. (i) (‘Chongsheng Coal")
LEANTEREXASRS hEl 80% = 100%  ARH#107,200,0007/ RIXFRREE
BRAR) (F7H5E) ) (CB-TE0100%)  ARE07,.2000007 hE
Xinglong Coal (i) The PRC 80% - 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining and
(2020: 80%) (2020: 100%) RMB100,000,000  operation in the PRC
BERX() hE 80% a 100%  AK%100,000,0007/ RRFARREE
(ZE-5E:90%) (ZZZFF:100%  AKH100,0000007 i
Hongyuan Coal (i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining and
(2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) RMB100,000,000  operationin the PRC
TREX() HE 100% = 100% AR 100,000,0007,/ BrARREE
(ZZZZF:100%) (ZBZFE100%)  AKRH1000000007 hEl

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF



20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20.

KRB ARZERE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERLLA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation  effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
R/ A5H HALR i) P BRR IZERR
AAER R {0 5 2] 2} BR/ERER EERY
Super Grace Enterprises Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% USD50,000/  Goods transport and
(“Super Grace”) Islands (2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Super Grace Enterprises Limited RERAES 100% = 100% 5000057/ EREERMT
([Super Grace)) (ZZ2FF 100%) (ZZ22F 100%) 50,000% T HRERBE
g3
Oriental Wise Group Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% USD1/ Goods transport and
(“Oriental Wise") Islands (2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Oriental Wise Group Limited AERAHS 100% - 100% 1%/ BREERR
(TOriental Wise]) (ZTZZF:100%) (ZTZZF: 100%) 50000%7 HREMHTEE
g3
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% USD1/ Goods transport and
Islands (2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Qinfa Shipping Group Lirited LBRLES 100% - 100% %1/ BRESRIR
(ZZZZF: 100%) (ZTZZF: 100%) 50000%7 HREMHEE
2
Hong Kong Qinfa Shipping Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD10,000/  Goods transport and
(2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) N/A~logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
BERLMERRAR &% 100% - 100% 10,0007,/ BnER IR
(ZZZZF: 100%) (ZZZZF: 100%) el HREHEE
g3
Perpetual Goodluck Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD1,000/  Goods transport and
(2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) NJ/A~ logistics, and charter
hire in the PRC
Perpetual Goodluck Limited Bk 100% = 100% 1,007/ HmEk R
(ZZZZF: 100%) (ZZZZF: 100%) ol HREHEE
hEl
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
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20.

KRB AR ZRE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERLLA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
R/ 50 BEAT BEAR 2Rk TZEER
AAER R {0 5 2:) 22} BR/ERER EERY
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Ca., Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/  Goods transport and
(2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) RMB100,000,000  logistics, and charter
hire in the PRC
HEREMERRAR() hE 100% - 100%  ARM5,0000001/ BREERR
(CBZ2F:100%) (ZBZZF:100%)  AR%1000000007 NREMEE
i
Ordos City Lianhang Trading The PRC 100% - 100% RMB1,000,000/ Sales of coal
Co,, Ltd. (i) (2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) RMB1,000,000 in the PRC
IBLHTHTESERAR() il 100% - 100%  AR¥1,0000001/ RiR#E
(CBZ2F:100%) (ZBZE 1000  ARH1,0000007 i
Qingdao Qinfa Energy Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000/ Sales of coal
(2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) RMB100,000,000 in the PRC
BEREMRERAA() HEl 100% - 100%  ARE100,000,0007T/ RiREE
(ZTZZF:100%) (ZBZZE:100%)  AR%1000000007 hE
Qingdao Qinfa Material Supply Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% NA/ Sales of machine
(2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) RMB50,000,000  materials in the PRC
EERUMAHEARLA) hEl 100% - 100% R/ SHERHITH
(ZZ5F 1 100%) (ZEZBF100%  ARE50,0000007 i
Qingdao Qinfa Changsheng Equipment The PRC 100% - 100% NAl - Machine Repairing
Maintenance Ltd. (i) (2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) RMBS,000,000 in the PRC
EERLERRBREARLR) hEl 100% - 100% AR/ RhkE
(ZZ5F 1 100%) (Z2ZZE:100%)  ARM50000007 i
Qinfa Overseas Investment Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD10,000/  Investment holding
(2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) N/A in Indonesia
FUHMRERRAD & 100% - 100% 10,0087/ RERR
(ZZ25F 100%) (ZZ25F 100%) R e
PT. Qinfa Mining Industri Indonesia 100% - 100% NA/ Coal mining and
(2020: 100%) (2020: 100%) USD1,000,000  operation in Indonesia
PT. Qinfa Mining Industri 0 100% = 100% rag/ RRARREE
(ZTZZF:100%) (ZBZZE:100%) 1,000,000%7 1

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20.

KRB ARZERE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERELA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation  effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
R/ A5H BELT i) P 2R TZERR
AAER R ERER 2] 2] BR/ERER EERY
Shanxi Qinfa Changsheng Equipment The PRC 100% - 100% RMBS,000,000/ Sales of machines
Maintenance Co., Ltd. (2020: 100%) - (2020: 100%) RMBS5,000,000 Inthe PRC
WERSBERBAEERART ket 100% = 100%  ARM5,000,0007/ BHAE
(ZEZTE 100%) - (ZECEF100%  ARB50000007
Shanghai Pusheng Trading Company The PRC 100% - 100% RMB50,000,000 Coal mining
Ltd. (2020: Nil (2020: Ni) In the PRC
LERRBSERAR HE 100% = 100%  AR%50,000,000% BERER
(Z2-%%:8) (Z2-%%:8) hE
Guangzhou Silk Road Energy The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000 Coal mining
Investment Co., Ltd. (2020: Nil (2020: Nil Inthe PRC
EM&H#ERERAR e 100% - 100%  AEE100,0000007 RRRR
(CB225:8) (C2225:8) hE
Guangzhou Lisheng Supply Chain The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000 Coal mining
Management Co., Ltd. (2020: Nif (2020: Nif Inthe PRC
EMMRHERERARAA e 100% = 100%  AEE100,0000007 RxRR
(C2225: 8) (C2225: 8) hE
(i) These entities were established in the PRC as domestic (i) ZEERBANTEKINRNER ZEE
companies. The type of legal entity of these entities is limited B iEERELAEREAR T
liability company.
(ii) These entities were established in the PRC as wholly foreign- (ii) ZEEBANF lﬁilmﬁ\\ﬁhémi
owned enterprises. The type of legal entity of these entities is SERBNEEERERABREEIR

limited liability company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

ERINHEZTRAHAEEFAREERK

EAFEIBRAKEEEFEEERD

MARFIMNBAR - EFERA - WIIHE

B RARNER - &
EO
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s
borrowings are secured by the Group’s equity interest
in Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal,
Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal,
Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace and Oriental Wise
(note 28). As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa, an associate of the
Group, are secured by the Group’s equity interest in
Yangyuan Guotong Coal Trading and Transportation
Co., Ltd (Yangyuan Guotong, which is a subsidiary
within the Group). As at 31 December 2021, the
carrying amount of net assets of Yangyuan Guotong
before any inter-company elimination amounted to
approximately RMB36,154,000 (2020: RMB21,827,000).

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

The following tables list out the financial information
relating to Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and Chongsheng
Coal, subsidiaries of the Company which have material
non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. AKBARZERE®
Xingtao Coal L Bl 4 2
2021 2020
—E-—F —TEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT R ARBTIT
As at 31 December R+=A=+—H
NCI percentage FEIE IR A 5 171 20% 20%
Non-current assets IEREEE 3,301,230 2,509,404
Current assets MENBEE 3,071,885 2742114
Current liabilities mENBE (3,965,255) (3,764,191)
Non-current liabilities EmEatE (495,542) (287,055)
Net asset B ERE 1,912,318 1,200,272
Carrying amount of NCI TR R EE 382,464 240,054
During the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1+—HBLEE
Revenue Was 870,941 373,597
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment  #1% = LR E 2B E
loss) on property, plant and equipment BiERECREEE) 203,981 (229,214)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment B R ERERE 2 BB 518
loss) on coal mining rights R, CREEER) 792,027 (514,747)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FRRF (BB RER
expense for the year 7 48 %8 712,046 (1,214,848)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive DB RIS AR T
income/(expenses) allocated to NCI (BBE)R2EKA(FAX)
PR 142,409 (242,970)
Cash flows generated from/(used in) KREFEBME (FTRBES
operating Activities e 19,738 (11,519)
Cash flows used in investing activities KEGSHAARESRE (17,332) (22,595)
Cash flows generated from financing BB EBFBHRESRE
activities - 35,470
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. RHBATZRE®
Fengxi Coal BT
2021 2020
—B-—F —TCTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTT
As at 31 December R+t=A=+—H
NCI percentage FEIE IR A S b 17 20% 20%
Non-current assets EREEE 986,822 988,593
Current assets MENEE 943,763 168,682
Current liabilities mEBE (744,814) (683,461)
Non-current liabilities EmEaE (121,336) (54,612)
Net assets B ERE 1,064,435 419,202
Carrying amount of NCI IR ERRAEE 212,887 83,840
During the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1+—BLEE
Revenue s 1,181,462 331,148
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment %13 - &= L& 2R E
loss) on property, plant and equipment EiERECREEE) 105,562 (452,705)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment & i R IE#E 2 B
loss) on coal mining rights EiERE(REER) 169,474 (296,141)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FR®F (BB RE2E
income/ (expenses) for the year WA/ (FX) @58 645,234 (597,364)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive DR E IR R
income/(expense) allocated to NCI wmAL (B8 k2m|
WA (FA%) 858 129,047 (119,473)
Cash flows generated from/(used in) KREFEBME (FTRBES
operating activities mE 54,651 (7,705)
Cash flows used in investing activities KEGBFARESRE (53,147) (7,746)

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. RHMBATZHRE®
Chongsheng Coal SHEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —TEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT R ARBTIT
As at 31 December R+=—BA=+—8
NCI percentage FEIE IR A 5 171 20% 20%
Non-current assets IEREEE 846,526 735,621
Current assets MENEE 790,219 150,274
Current liabilities mENBE (610,500) (577,004)
Non-current liabilities EmEatE (121,721) (18,908)
Net assets BEFE 904,524 289,984
Carrying amount of NCI SRR ERRAEE 180,905 57,997
During the year ended 31 December BE+T-A=1+—HLEE
Revenue & 883,149 305,448
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment %1% - = LR 2R E
loss) on property, plant and equipment BiERECREEE) 23,780 (437,314)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment B R ERBRAE 2 (&
loss) on coal mining rights EiERE(REEE) 257,116 (1,762)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment & T2 2 A
loss) on CIP BEEE, (REES) 2,660 (265,554)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FREA, (R K2R
income/ (expenses) for the year WA ()58 614,541 (864,645)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive DAL E IR
income/(expense) allocated to NCI wm A (B8 k2E
WA (FAX) @5 122,908 (172,929)
Cash flows generated from operating KEFSHAERERE
activities 16,346 5,424
Cash flows used in investing activities KEEBFARSRE (16,339) (4,421)

During the year, there were no dividend paid to the non-

controlling shareholders (2020: nil).

—E-F

— = —=

RER - I8 A IR B i SRR 35 AT RS
F|E) -
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21.

22,

INVENTORIES 21. ®BE
2021 2020
- —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Finished goods BIRK G 217,533 49,497
Fuel IR = 6,138
217,533 55,635

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s inventories
with carrying amount of approximately nil (2020:
RMB1,023,000) were pledged for the Group’s
borrowings (note 28).

R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H8 ~&EBK
HEHOAREZT(ZZ-_ZTF: AR
1,023,0000) 2 FEERAEERNEEE
LR (P 5E28) -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 22, FEREZFERX
2021 2020
- —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Trade receivables JEWE 5 BR K 218,723 485,800
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEEERE (36,302) (55,657)
182,421 430,143

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF



22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Ageing analysis

The Group’s exposure to credit risk related to trade and
other receivables are disclosed in note 35(b)(i).

An ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for credit losses) of the Group is as follows:

22,

EWE SRR @
B D AT

AEBEFERRE S N E Mt RK ARG
B 1S B R B O B 5E 35 (b ) (1) B 5% o

NEBMEWE S ERGIREEEREE
B)REBEOMITT ¢

2021 2020

—B-—fF —T_FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETTT

Within 2 months R 1E A A 123,103 363,580
Over 2 months but within 6 months F{E A BA_E B ERA SR A - -
Over 6 months but within 1 year NEAK EBRHER—F - 93
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F LA ETBBMRE = 10
Over 2 years (note) BB () 59,318 66,460
182,421 430,143

The ageing is counted from the date when trade
receivables are recognised.

Note:

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables aged over 2 years
amounting to approximately RMB59,318,000 (2020: RMB66,460,000)
were due from customers which the Group has trade and other payable
balances with amounts not less than the respective trade receivables
as at the end of the reporting period. Based on past experience and
repayment history of the trade debtors, the directors of the Company
believe that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances.

Credit terms granted to customers mainly range from 0 to 60 days (2020:
0 to 60 days) depending on customers relationship with the Group, their
creditworthiness and past settlement record.

Details of credit policy impairment assessment of trade receivable for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out in note 35.

“E-—FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FEMERRRHEMEVERER
2021 2020
- T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Included in non-current assets STAERBEE
Other deposit (note (v)) Hobiz e (V) 25,503 34,264
Included in current assets SFARBEE
Other deposits and prepayments (note (i)) HAbi&k & M IB BRI EEG)) 230,491 282,198
Amounts due from non-controlling JRE L S 28 AR AR R TR
shareholders (note (ii)) (B=E(i)) 322,703 322,703
Other non-trade receivables (note (iii)) HAthIEE 5 FE W AR 3k (T 5E (i) 207,660 86,693
760,854 691,594
Less: Allowance for credit losses (note (iv)) ¥ : 15 & B84 (31 (iv) (341,608) (392,722)
419,246 298,872

Notes:

(i) Prepayments for purchase of coal and transportation
fee amounting to approximately RMB104,957,000
(2020: RMB104,115,000) and RMB30,810,000 (2020:
RMB31,420,000) respectively are included in other deposits
and prepayments. The remaining amount of RMB94,724,000
(2020: RMB146,663,000) are mainly prepayments for the
supplier services to support the Group’s ordinary business.

(ii) Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of Huameiao
Energy are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of
repayment. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
approximately RMB322,703,000 (2020: RMB322,703,000) were

fully impaired in prior years.

(iii) Other non-trade receivable mainly represented the government
grant receivables of RMB106,700,000 (2020: RMB21,400,000)
and value added tax recoverable of RMB70,391,000 (2020:

RMB28,793,000).

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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PR R T BR R A AR %104,957,0007T
(ZZ==4F : AR104,115,0007T) KB
BB IR NH AR 30,810,000 (= =%
. AR¥31,420,0007T) Bt AEAMIZ S R
FERERR - B T2 ARE4,724,0007T (=
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Bl EXRAERIEERRRNIB A EE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —E-—F+-A=+—HILFE

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FMRRRHEAMERERG®
(CONTINUED)
Notes: (continued) BEE - ()
(iv) Allowance for losses of prepayments and other receivables are (iv) TR BER R E MR R RN EREENT
as follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —Z==F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR AREF T
Other deposits and prepayments Hithiz & RIEMIRR 2,954 47,954
Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders FEURIE IR AR AR B 5K TE 322,703 322,703
Other non-trade receivables HEh3IEE 5 EIRIRRK 15,951 22,065
341,608 392,722

As at 31 December 2021, other receivables (net of
credit allowances) amounted to RMB208,201,000 (2020:
RMB117,522,000). Details of impairment assessment of other
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
are set out in note 35.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 13 May
2021, a series of agreements, including heads of agreement
dated 12 May 2021 and addendum of heads of agreement
dated 31 December 2021 (collectively, the “Proposed
Acquisition Agreements”) were entered by the Group for
proposed acquisitions of 70% equity shareholding of PT
Indonesia Multi Energy (“IME”), PT Persada Berau Jaya Sakti
(“PBJS”), PT Tansri Madjid Energi (“TME”) and PT Vipronity
Power Energy (“VPE”) companies (collectively refunded to as
the “Targets”) duly established under the laws of Republic of
Indonesia that are engaged in coal mining and trading at coals
in Indonesia, from five independent third parties (the “Five
Sellers”) at an aggregate consideration of IDR1,925,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB859,000). Pursuant to the
Proposed Acquisition Agreements, the Five Sellers (as non-
controlling shareholders of the Targets after completion of the
proposed acquisition) would be entitled to 15% of the total
saleable coal production of the Targets as profit distributions
and such Five Sellers’ entitlements are secured by the deposits
of aggregate USD4,000,000 (equivalent to RMB25,503,000)
paid by the Group. The aforesaid deposits paid by the Group
are secured by Five Sellers’ approximately 25% equity interest
in SDE and one of the Five Sellers’ 99% equity interest in
PT Widyanusa Mandiri until the completion of the proposed
acquisitions.
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24,

25.

266

PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2021, bank deposits of
approximately RMB2,103,000 (2020: RMB403,000) were
restricted for use in relation to the litigation proceedings
as disclosed in note 39(a).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the Group performed impairment assessment on
bank balances and concluded that the probability of
defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and
accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged and
restricted bank deposits for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are set out in note 35.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details change in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

25. BHEeRBEEEY®

REBMEZTHNRENER®

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
BE HEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®ET T ARMF T
At 1 January 2020 RZE—TF—H—H 4,336,124 5,314 4,341,438
Changes from financing cash EEBEESREZ B !
flows:
Proceeds from borrowings BEEMEHRT 855,100 = 855,100
Repayments of borrowings/lease (€& %“‘/?ﬂfﬁ E
liabilities (1,244,837) (4,335) (1,249,172)
(389,737) (4,335) (394,072)
Non-cash changes: FRSEH !
Transfer of agreed borrowings 7S 7k 2 48 5 55 3
upon loan restructuring EHmERE 273,709 = 273,709
Loss on non-substantial BEIFEXEFTZEE
modification of borrowings 194,351 - 194,351
Interest charge on unwinding of  #Fr&EBLIR 2 M B FL
discounts (note 9) (F3E9) 181,907 = 181,907
New leases entered into IR EES = 2,752 2,752
649,967 2752 652,719
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZE_TF
+=-—A=+—H 4,596,354 3,731 4,600,085
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 25.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

ReERASEEY®

REMETBNEENHR®

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
BE HEEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR®T ARMF T
Changes from financing cash FERERE-EH :
flows:
Proceeds from borrowings BEEME 653,800 = 653,800
Repayments of borrowings/lease (EEHE /ﬁ"ﬂfﬁﬁ
liabilities (1,629,721) (13,804) (1,643,525)
(975,921) (13,804) (989,725)
Non-cash changes: 3FTE$@§J :
Extinguishment of other NEREEEEE
borrowings upon loan HEmEE FED)
restructuring (note) (788,183) - (788,183)
Recognition of new other RE R E AR R
borrowings upon loan Hitnfa & (P 5E)
restructuring (note) 658,157 - 658,157
Interest charge on unwinding of  #TEBLIR 2 F| B>
discounts (note 9) (F3E9) 202,225 854 203,079
New leases entered into HINVE vk = 24,977 24,977
72,199 25,831 98,030
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB——%F
+=-—A=+—H 3,692,632 15,758 3,708,390
Note: In respect of Settlement Agreement of Loan Il and Mz : BMASEERBEZ-_T-_—F+=A 7+*
Settlement Agreement of Loan Ill (as defined and detailed IFFEITUNES II%EWJ : R E RN

268

in note 28) entered by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group derecognised the original
borrowings outstanding of RMB788,183,000 in total and the
relevant outstanding interests (including penalty interests)
of RMB370,292,000 in total. The Group recognised new
borrowings and interest payables measured at fair values
amounting to RMB658,157,000 in total and RMB261,645,000 in
total respectively as at the respective dates of extinguishment.
The differences between the aforesaid carrying amounts
of the borrowings and interest payables derecognised
and the aforesaid fair values of the new borrowings and
interest payables recognised amounting to approximately
RMB238,673,000 are recognised as other gains for the year
ended 31 December 2021, as set out in note 8.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group

26. EREZERN

AEBERBEZARNEMNE ZEROK

based on invoice date is as follows: BRI -
2021 2020
. —F-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTIT
Within 1 year —F R 126,026 484,063
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F EETBBAME 96,357 76,307
Over 2 years ES- 98,081 110,003
320,464 670,373
OTHER PAYABLES 27. HEFERR
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Current BNEg
Accrued expenses EETF X 463,276 510,706
Contract liabilities (note (i)) A HAaETEE>) 42,248 94,746
Amount due to ultimate controlling FE A A AP R AR 3R R TE
shareholder 161 161
Amount due to ultimate holding company & & ARIERL A RIFIE 15,216 10,673
Amount due to an associate FES — BB A R FUE 215,276 215,275
Amounts due to directors of the Company  JEf AR R EEFHIA 1,382 1,565
Amount due to a related party FEfS — B BEE T 5RIE 141 141
Amount due to a related company FEfT—REIREE R R IE 100 100
Other payables (note (ii)) L th [ A5F BR SR (B (i) 1,568,055 1,462,238
2,305,855 2,295,605
Non-current JE BN HA
Other payables (note (ii)) A~ BR SR (B 5E (i) - -
2,305,855 2,295,605
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27.

270

OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 27. HMEMSERR@®
Notes: B 5E
(i) (i)
2021 2020
S —z-zf
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFIT
Contract liabilities EHNaE
Sale of coal RS 42,248 94,746

All contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as income within
one year from dates of receipts.

The Group typically received 100% payment from customers for sales
of coal before the customers obtain the control of coal products which
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised upon the pass of controls.

Fi A & H B ERIR R B — F AR A

REEBENE P ISR IR E @RIZ 6 A 2 R R
ERBEF100%H0 5 - BMRNAORBBELAH
BE  BEERENERIRE RN ERR

Movements in contract liabilities are as follows: AREEZENAT -
2021 2020
== —ETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
At 1 January R—A—H 94,746 44,850
Revenue recognised that was included in the REPEFFAELHAREDN
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year B RS (94,746) (44,850)
Forward sale deposits and instalments received FRARBMBERAEE RS R
during the year P2l N EN 42,248 94,746
As at 31 December W+=ZRA=+—H 42,248 94,746
(if) Construction payables of approximately RMB653,297,000 (ii) HtENERBEREMNEERIHAR

(2020: RMB848,073,000) and payables related to
mineral exploration and mining rights of approximately
RMB260,785,000 (2020: RMB292,428,000) are included in
other payables.

The amounts due to ultimate holding company of
the Company, ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company, an associate, directors of the Company, a
related company and a related party are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed term of repayment.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BORROWINGS 28. f&&
2021 2020
- —E-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B E ARBT R ARETTT

Bank loans IRITER
— Unsecured — AR 3 (i) 638,000 910,640
638,000 910,640
Other borrowings HEmgE (ii)
- Secured Loan | (as defined - BEBRERI(EER T
below) 2,145,073 2,788,147
—Secured Loan Il (as defined - BEFERIN(EER T30
below) 119,045 -
- Secured Loan Ill (as defined -~ BEBEFINEERER T
below) ) 492,444 =
- Secured others - BEHEM = 846,697
- Unsecured — KT 298,070 50,870
3,054,632 3,685,714

Total borrowings EEBE 3,692,632 4,596,354

Notes: PEE -

(i) Unsecured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from (i) RZE-_—F+_A=+—H  EEBRT
5.70% to 8.80% (2020: 5.70% to 8.80%) per annum as at 31 BERIBREFENT570%28.80% (=T =%
December 2021. F 1 570%%8.80%) 58 °

(if) Other borrowings bear interest at rates ranging from 5.66% to (if) RZTE=-—F+=-—A=+—8 HEE
7.28% (2020: 3.90% to 7.28%) per annum as at 31 December BEFENT5.66%E7.28%(ZF_FF :
2021, 3.90%E7.28%)5t 5 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28.

As at 31 December 2021, borrowings of the Group were
repayable as follows:

BE @

RZFB-_—F+-A=1t—8H XKEE
EMERBRAT

2021 2020
. —F-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETTT

Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIZRERK 1,475,850 1,970,990
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FA L ETBAMSE 2,216,782 362,679
Over 2 years but within 5 years MEL BT BBEAF = 2,262,685
2,216,782 2,625,364
3,692,632 4,596,354

Due to breach of loan covenants and/or occurrence
of default events (including the breach of cross
default clauses), certain bank and other borrowings
with the aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,428,514,000 (2020: RMB1,808,207,000), in
which the aggregate amount of RMB790,514,000 (2020:
RMB1,144,567,000) was past due, and aggregate
amounts of RMB577,000,000 (2020: RMB663,640,000)
and RMB61,000,000 (2020: nil) were repayable within
one year and after one year respectively from the end
of reporting date based on the agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the respective loan agreements,
had been due for immediate payment.

272 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED +EEREEERAT

HRERERZHER,RBEEENZHE
RERRXEHEGEN @ BEEENAEA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The interest payables of borrowings not yet past due
but due for immediate payment due to occurrence
of default events (including the breach of cross
default clauses) and of borrowings that have become
past due amounting to approximately RMB176,000
(2020: RMB3,188,000) and RMB274,089,000 (2020:
RMB355,983,000) respectively were included in the
other payables.

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured bank loans,
secured other borrowings and unsecured other
borrowings of approximately RMB638,000,000
(2020: RMB910,640,000), RMB492,444,000 (2020:
RMB846,697,000) and RMB298,070,000 (2020:
RMB50,870,000) respectively had been due for
immediate payment (including those overdue or those
due to breach of loan covenants and/or occurrence of
default events (e.g. breach of cross default clauses)).
These borrowings carried interest at rates 4.91% to
8.80% (2020: 3.9% to 8.80%) per annum and also
carried additional penalty interest at rate 2.26% to
3.50% (2020: 1.95% to 4.40%) per annum after past
due. Those secured borrowings that had been due
for immediate payment are secured by coal mining
rights and property, plant and equipment with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB2,956,393,000
and RMB377,517,000 as at 31 December 2021
respectively (2020: coal mining rights and property,
plant and equipment with RMB1,942,800,000 and
RMB590,361,000 respectively).

28.
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RBHEARBEENEHBRIEERRZX
BB MALIMEENEE RD B
BEENEMNFESRI4 A ARE176,000
T(ZE=ZF : AR¥3,188,0007T) XA
R#274,089,000L(ZE=_FF : ARK
355,983,0007T) ' ELET AHMEARK ©

R_ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—8 - BIEKF
BITER FEFHEOEERERFH
g E 5 54 AR #638,000,0007T (=ZF
—EHE : AR¥910,640,0007T) * AR
492 444 000L(ZF_ZF : ARK
846,697,0007T) & A R # 298,070,000
—T-FTF : AR¥50,870,0007T)E |
HENKEEZ(RECAPEIRERE
REHEN RELEEHNEHWERRX
EROKR)E)  c ZEEERFFEL91%
£8.80%(—ZFT-_ZF : 3.9%%8.80%) T
B BHRINE2.26% 2 3.50%(— T - &
F 1 1.95%Z4.40%) W EFRFE5EINE
B - 25 HAENREENFIRFEER
WA —ZE-—F+-_A=+—HEHEED
R4 A AR 2 956,393,0007T & A R
377,517,0007C &) 5 iR BRIBAE LA R D 2
WEREE(CE_ZTF  DRNBARKE
1,942,800,0007T & A R #590,361,0007C
MR R IERTERE LA M~ R ek ) 1R R
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Settlement Agreement of Loan | (as defined below)
and its supplemental agreements

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
entered into a legal binding settlement agreement (the
“Settlement Agreement of Loan |I” or “Loan I”) with an
asset management company in the PRC, to reduce the
outstanding principal amounts of bank loans assigned
by two banks and the relevant outstanding interests
(including penalty interests) amounting to approximately
RMB4,027,188,000 and RMB582,028,000 in total
respectively. The management of the Group considers
that the terms of the Settlement Agreement of Loan |
are substantially different as the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms discounted
using the original effective interest rate is different from
the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability by more than
10 per cent, and the Settlement Agreement of Loan
| (with revised repayment schedules, revised loan
principal amounts, default clauses, change of lender,
etc.) superseded the respective original bank loan
agreements. Accordingly, such modification of terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Therefore, the Group derecognised the original
borrowings and interest payables outstanding and
recognised new borrowings measured at fair value as
at the date of extinguishment. The difference between
the aggregate carrying amount of the borrowings and
interest payables of RMB4,609,216,000 derecognised
and the fair value of RMB2,704,363,000 of the new
borrowings recognised amounting to approximately
RMB1,904,853,000 was recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Settlement Agreement of Loan | and its supplemental
agreements (continued)

In March 2020, in respect of the above-mentioned
borrowings, the Group further entered into a legally
binding supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Settlement Agreement of Loan I”) with the asset
management company to revise and extend the
repayment schedule for year of 2020 and 2021.
The repayment schedule for year of 2022 remained
unchanged. The management of the Group considers
that the terms of the Supplemental Settlement
Agreement of Loan | are not substantially different from
the Settlement Agreement of Loan | as the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the revised terms
discounted using the original effective interest rate
is different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability by
less than 10 per cent. Accordingly, such modification
of terms was accounted for as non-substantial
modification, and the adjustment of approximately
RMB10,700,000 to the carrying amount of the financial
liability was recognised as other losses as set out in
note 8 at the date of modification.

28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Settlement Agreement of Loan | and its supplemental
agreements (continued)

In December 2020, the Group further entered into
a legally binding supplemental agreement (the
“Supplemental Settlement Agreement Il of Loan 1”) with
the asset management company to revise and extend
the repayment schedule for December 2020 and year of
2021. The repayment schedule for December 2020 has
been changed to 2023. The management of the Group
considers that the terms of the Supplemental Settlement
Agreement Il of Loan | are not substantially different
from the Supplemental Settlement Agreement of Loan
| as the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the revised terms discounted using the original
effective interest rate is different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability by less than 10 per cent. Accordingly,
such modification of terms was accounted for as
non-substantial modification, and the adjustment of
approximately RMB183,651,000 to the carrying amount
of the financial liability was recognised as other losses
as set out in note 8 at the date of modification. As at 31
December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s
borrowings from the asset management company was
approximately RMB2,145,073,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB2,788,147,000).

The Settlement Agreement of Loan | contained a default
clause which the Group will be required to repay the
outstanding balance of the original borrowings and
interest payable of approximately RMB4,027,188,000
and RMB373,014,000 (2020: RMB4,027,188,000 and
RMB868,900,000) respectively if the Group fails to
repay the borrowings by instalments in accordance
with the respective revised repayment schedule as
stipulated in the Supplement Agreement Il of Loan
I. There is no occurrence of event of default under
the Settlement Agreement of Loan |, Supplemental
Settlement Agreement of Loan |, Supplemental
Settlement Agreement Il of Loan | as at the end of
the reporting period (2020: no occurrence of event of
default).

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Settlement Agreement of Loan Il (as defined below)

In May 2021, the Group entered into another legally
binding settlement agreement (the “Settlement
Agreement of Loan II” or “Loan I1”) with the asset
management company to reduce the outstanding
principal amounts of bank loans assigned by two
banks and the relevant outstanding interests (including
penalty interests) amounting to approximately
RMB295,739,000 and RMB108,647,000 in total
respectively. The management of the Group considers
that the terms of the Settlement Agreement of Loan Il
are substantially different as the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms discounted
using the original effective interest rate is different from
the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability by more than
10 per cent, and the Settlement Agreement of Loan
Il (with revised repayment schedules, revised loan
principal amounts, default clauses, change of lender,
etc.) superseded the respective original bank loan
agreements. Accordingly, such modification of terms
was accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Therefore, the Group derecognised the original
borrowings of RMB295,739,000 and interest payable
of RMB108,647,000 outstanding, and recognised
new borrowings measured at fair value amounting to
RMB165,713,000 as at the date of extinguishment.
The difference between the aforesaid carrying
amounts of the borrowings and interest payables
derecognised and the aforesaid fair value of the new
borrowings recognised amounting to approximately
RMB238,673,000 is recognised as other gains as
set out in note 8 at the date of modification. As at 31
December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s
borrowings from the asset management company
in respect of Settlement Agreement of Loan Il was
approximately RMB119,045,000.

28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Settlement Agreement of Loan Il (continued)

The Settlement Agreement of Loan Il contained a
default clause which the Group will be required to repay
the outstanding balance of the original borrowings and
interest payable of approximately RMB295,206,000
and RMB104,027,000 (2020: N/A) respectively if the
Group fails to repay the borrowings by instalments in
accordance with the respective repayment schedule
as stipulated in the Settlement Agreement of Loan Il.
There is no occurrence of event of default under the
Settlement Agreement of Loan Il as at the end of the
reporting period (2020: N/A).

Settlement Agreement of Loan lll (as defined below)

In December 2021, the Group entered into a legally
binding settlement agreement (the “Settlement
Agreement of Loan III” or “Loan III”) with an asset
management company to reduce the outstanding
principal amounts of bank loans assigned by a bank
and the relevant outstanding interests (including
penalty interests in arrears) amounting to approximately
RMB492,444,000 and RMB261,645,000 in total
respectively. The management of the Group considers
that the terms of the Settlement Agreement of Loan Il
are substantially different as the Settlement Agreement
of Loan IlI (with revised repayment schedules, default
clauses, change of lender, etc.) superseded the
respective original bank loan agreement. Accordingly,
such modification of terms was accounted for as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability.
Therefore, the Group derecognised the original
borrowings of RMB492,444,000 and interest payables
of RMB261,645,000 outstanding, and recognised
new borrowings and interest payables amounting to
RMB492,444,000 and RMB261,645,000 respectively
based on the terms of Loan IIl, as at the date of
extinguishment. Therefore, no gain or loss arising
from the loan restructuring was recognised at the
date of modification. As at 31 December 2021, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings from the
asset management company in respect of Settlement
Agreement of Loan Il and the related interest
payable were approximately RMB492,444,000 and
RMB226,479,000 respectively, which are included in
current liabilities.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28. fBE®W
Settlement Agreement of Loan I (continued) BERMEEBZR®
The Settlement Agreement of Loan Il contained a ERNEEBRE S —BEGEGRR - 8
conditional clause which the Group, unless otherwise BRIEEZEEEBRARBANEREERE
notified by the asset management company to repay ENREEEHRRENTE  kAEE R
the outstanding balance of the original borrowings BRIREEBIEREEREN - TAIREEH
and interest payable or the Group fails to repay in ERBHRBLEITERSGBR Y BEESE
accordance with the revised repayment schedule, B Ml ERINEE HZEFTRIR - o 8
should repay the borrowings by instalment in BERNAEERREENREBEHRRIE
accordance with the respective revised repayment HFE - At - RZT=Z—F+=ZA=+
schedule and the total sum of the instalments is less —H - BREBEERINGEEHZAENLISET
than the outstanding balance of the original borrowings FrEIEFIERUMBRZEEERE AR —A
and interest payable, as stipulated in the Settlement EREEREBENREELERRENTE
Agreement of Loan Ill. Therefore, as at 31 December A RS E A R IR BT BN RER
2021, the carrying amount of Loan Ill and its related EBRNEAFE  FHSEENERIIRE
interest due for repayment, based on the revised EER EMREmENT
scheduled repayment terms set out in the Settlement
Agreement of Loan IIl and without taking into account
the effect of any demand by the asset management
company to repay the outstanding balance of the
original borrowings and interest payable and the
Group’s potential failure to repay in accordance with the
revised repayment schedule, is as follows:
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Within 1 year —FRN 51,575
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F LA ETHBIBRE 50,602
Over 2 years but within 5 years MEL BT BBRF 219,918
322,095

Due to the above-mentioned conditional clause and
the conditions have not been satisfied so far up to the
end of the reporting period, new borrowing and interest
payable with carrying amounts of RMB492,444,000 and
RMB226,479,000 respectively in respect of Settlement
Agreement of Loan Ill were recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021.

MR _E A RGN EB BIREEER
SHRMAER AR =_FT=—F 1+
—A=t+—8 BEERIZEEREER
BEDRIAANRE492,444,0007T & A R
226,479,0007T K31 & & & & Fl| B AR
EBFAVERRKRPFER -
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BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Settlement Agreement of Loan Ill (continued)

There is no occurrence of event of default under the
Settlement Agreement of Loan Ill as at the end of the
reporting period (2020: N/A).

Other

Of the Group’s borrowings, aggregate principal
amounts of RMB298,070,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB691,848,000) had been defaulted
with lawsuit filed by banks and asset management
companies against the Group to demand immediate
repayment. Pursuant to the final court judgements in
prior years, the Group was ordered to make immediate
repayment of the aforesaid balances. In March 2022,
one of the aforesaid borrowings with principal amount
of RMB50,870,000 was subsequently restructured as
detailed in note 41.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain
banks assigned their bank loans and interests (including
penalty interests) due from the Group with aggregate
amounts of RMB295,739,000 and RMB101,313,000
respectively, which had been past due and with lawsuit
for one of the loans, to an asset management company
in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a bank
assigned its bank loans and interests (including penalty
interests) due from the Group with aggregate amounts
of RMB247,200,000 and RMB27,873,000 respectively,
which had been past due and with lawsuit to an asset
management company in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, the terms of the above
assigned loans remained unchanged. The Group is still
in the process of negotiating with the banks and asset
management companies to renew the terms (including
the repayment schedule) of the outstanding loans and
loans assigned.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28. fBEE®)
Other (continued) Hfth ()
The Group’s secured borrowings (including those due AEEMEEMREE(BIEC I EENRE
for immediate payment and those not due for immediate BERNAIBANSEER B TIAE
payment) are secured by the following assets of the B E A
Group:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & ARET ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment #1% - = L& 15 377,517 590,361
Coal mining rights Bk B AR 16 2,956,393 1,942,800
Inventories FE 21 = 1,023
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s total RZEZ—FRFE_FTF+_A=1+—

borrowings are also secured by other receivables of a
related company of which Mr. Xu is the shareholder,
a property held by Mr. Xu, Fortune Pearls equity
interest in the Company and the Group’s equity interest
in Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal,
Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal,
Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace and Oriental Wise. As
at 31 December 2021, total borrowings of approximately
RMBS3,692,632,000 (2020: RMB4,596,354,000) were
guaranteed by the Company, certain subsidiaries of the
Company, related parties and/or Mr. Xu (note 38(b)).

B AEENBEETHA —HAREER
ERERMBER R R EKARR - 1R5E
ERBN—ENE  BRNARRNE

RAEEREZRER  WEEKE  5A
B SR EERE  REKE

W E 3 - Super Grace X Oriental Wise
RREEER - R - —F+ A=+
—H ﬂ@fﬁiéi’]/\ﬁﬁ%s 692,632,0007T
(ZZ—FTF : AR¥4596,354,0007T) &
ARAE)  ARRNETHEBAR - BERS
K/ SR VTR IR (M 5E38(b)) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBEmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

29. ACCRUED RECLAMATION OBLIGATIONS 29. FEIREZEEHN
2021 2020
- —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARET T

At 1 January w—A—H 133,920 124,010
Interest charge on unwinding of discounts BRI 2R BRX
(note 9(ii)) (B & 9(ii)) 10,170 9,910
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 144,090 133,920
30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30. HEAE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

Within 1 year —FR 8,833 2,805
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F LA ETBIBRSF 6,925 926
15,758 3,731

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 & : BB EE NRE
months shown under current liabilities 1218 A R BB E R
KIE (8,833) (2,805)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months  3EREN B &EIE N FI/RHY
shown under non-current liabilities 1218 B2 B HALE E A
HIig 6,925 926
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 3 January 2020 and 7 August 2020, a series of
agreements, including heads of agreement (“HOA”)
dated 31 December 2019, addendum of HOA dated
11 March 2020 and conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 6 August 2020 (collectively, the
“Acquisition Agreements”) were entered by the
Group for acquisition of 70% equity shareholding of
PT Sumber Daya Energi (“SDE”), a company duly
established under the laws of Republic of Indonesia
that is engaged in coal mining and trading in Indonesia,
from two independent third parties (the “Sellers”) at
a consideration of IDR385,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB171,000). Meanwhile, pursuant to
the Acquisition Agreements, deposits of USD4,000,000
and USD1,000,000 were paid by the Group to one of
the Sellers, who held 99.82% of SDE before completion
of the acquisition, on 13 March 2020 and 13 August
2020 respectively. After completion of the acquisition
on 25 May 2021 (“Acquisition Date”), the Seller
became the non-controlling shareholder of SDE and
is entitled to 15% of the total saleable coal production
of SDE as profit distributions and such entitlement
are secured by the aforesaid deposits of aggregate
USD5,000,000 (equivalent to RMB33,133,000 and
RMB34,264,000 as at 25 May 2021 and 31 December
2020 respectively). The Group considered that the
aforesaid deposits of USD5,000,000 became non-
refundable upon Acquisition Date and will only be offset
with profit distributions to the Seller for its 15% of the
total saleable coal production of SDE until the aforesaid
deposits are fully offset, and therefore such deposits
of USD5,000,000 were also considered as part of the
purchase consideration of the acquisition. Accordingly,
the aggregate purchase consideration of the acquisition
amounted to IDR385,000,000 and USD5,000,000
(equivalent to RMB33,304,000 in total).

31.

W R Y R A 7

BUARARBHA-_T-_TF—A=ZAK
—E-ZEFEN\ACBEMAHAEE - A%
EI— X5 G BREAHA-Z—
NE+=A 7+ EIE’JT%S%,ZHAE(H%%?H
AEJ) BfAE-—ZT_ZF=A+—HH%H
EMT@&EHHJ%_Y_?E)\H/\
Elmﬁﬂﬂ%ti‘éizfﬁz’;;%( cEIBERZ]) -
NmmEBLE=A(EH])KEPT
Sumber Daya Energi([SDE] »+ — 1R #&E
ERADEMBIERZIERKIZIHAT + R
et EHRARRE S)BN70%#E - K
& 4385,000,000E0/E & (FH&E R4 AR
171,0007T) ° Bt EEF - RIBRE R -
AEFBRHRR-_E-_EE=A+=AK
—E-TENAT=ZHREF—REH
(E R Y BE 5E A BT #E B SDERY99.82% 1 7
7 £F 4,000,000 7T & 1,000,000 JT 1%
& o WBR-_Z-_—FHEA-_t+HBA(K
BHAE K - BB H K ABSDERIIE
THARER 0 I F A S SDER] $5 5 K K A
EEMN15%EA T D EEMEF - Ak
REF) 5 A it A 5H5,000,0005 7T (R =
T FRA-t+HREER-Z-_ZTF+_-A8
=+—HSRHEZER AR33,133,0007T
M AR #E34,264,0007T) 1% & 1B A H
AEBRA - Eilt#£5,000,0003& TR
WEEBHERATARE - I JaEEES

@ M D BLAs T %% B 7 HISDERA] S5 & FR
REBM15%EE  BEE FMRSHER

A IE > #5,000,0003 TTRIR & IR
EEZWEHNBEREN—IBD - AL
Z U BRI B R B 42%E A 385,000,000E]
JEJ& %5,000,000E 7T (& EHEEZER AR
33,304,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

31.

284

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 3. WEMEBAR®@
The primary reason for the acquisition was for the ETZREIERER TERARNSEEBAL
expansion of the Group’s business and to increase AR R IR o
returns to its shareholders.
The directors of the Company were of the opinion that RKAREERE ' RUWESDEMERSIR
inputs acquired from the acquisition of SDE did not AW NBIE—S HHAHY EHESDER FH
include an organised workforce that has the necessary REEMTREE  NBFRE&ROITER
skills, knowledge and experience to perform coal B ARHEMMFZRA - mEESDEYL T
production of SDE and other necessary inputs, and RS AT BB O B i &5 2RI 35 35 [ £ 7%
the acquisition of SDE did not constitute a business EHIFMERNERSH - Atz
combination as defined in IFRS 3 (Revised) “Business NEEWBAR - RIKERBFENE
Combinations”, and therefore the acquisition was ENFTEAENEENT :
accounted for as asset acquisition. Assets acquired
and liabilities assumed upon Acquisition Date are as
follows:
RMB’000

AR¥ TR
Coal mining rights B R A 33,780
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB k& 5,631
Prepayment and other receivables TEAST BR 5K Fe H A FE U BR 3R 3,274
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESFEY 2,033
Other payables o Ath FE A BR 5K (11,414)
Net assets BEFE 33,304

The net cash inflow arising on the acquisition for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

BE-F-—F+-A=t—BLTER
IREEI B R R AFRIT

RMB’000

AR®T T

Cash consideration paid EfReRE (171)
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B FTBEER e MRS EEY 2,033
Net cash inflow from the acquisition REWEERIR R A 1,862

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 32. EX - -REERRE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) HERIBIEH
The reconciliation between the opening and REEEF DG =AY & H
closing balances of each component of the RO RN G E R F T K -
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
(b)  Share capital (b) BE
Amount
&%
No. of share RMB’000
R AR¥T T
Ordinary shares of EREE0I0ETHNEER
HKDO0.10 each
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2020, RZE_FTF—H—8 -
31 December 2020 and —E-TF+=-A=+—H
31 December 2021 M_F—_—%F
+=ZRA=+—H 20,000,000,000 1,763,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ZER BRITRAR
fully paid
At 1 January 2020, RZE_FTF—H—H8 "
31 December 2020 and —E-TF+=-A=+—H
31 December 2021 rZZTE——4F
+=ZR=+—H 2,493,413,985 211,224
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32.

286

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

On 31 December 2012, the Company issued
convertible securities to Fortune Pearl with a
principal value of HKD194,700,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB157,872,000). The direct
transaction costs attributable to the convertible
securities amounted to approximately
RMB941,000.

The convertible securities are convertible at the
option of the holder of convertible securities
into ordinary shares of the Company at any time
after 31 December 2012 at the initial conversion
price of HKD1.65 per ordinary share of the
Company (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments).
While the convertible securities confer a right
to receive distributions at 3% per annum, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to
defer a distribution pursuant to the terms of the
convertible securities.

The convertible securities have no maturity
date and are redeemable at the option of the
Company at 100% or 50% of the principal
amount of the convertible securities each time,
on any distribution payment date at the face
value of the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible securities to be redeemed plus 100%
or 50% (as the case may be) of distributions
accrued to such date.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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(c)
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RZBE——F+-_A=+—H ' &
NEIEEITALEEA194,700,000
BT (HEERLHARE157,872,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

32. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

(continued)

As the convertible securities have no contractual
obligation to repay its principal nor to pay any
distributions, they do not meet the definition for
classification of a financial liabilities under IAS
32. As a result, the whole instrument is classified
as equity, and respective distributions if and
when declared are treated as equity dividends.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group elected to distribute payments of
approximately HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,860,000) in respect of
current year (year ended 31 December 2020:
elected to distribute payments of approximately
HKD23,364,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB21,166,000) in respect of the year (which
amounted to HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,942,000)) and prior years
(which amounted to HKD17,523,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB16,224,000)). As at 31
December 2021, no accumulated deferred
distribution payments (31 December 2020: nil)
are included in the reserves of the Company
available for distribution.

32. BEX - REEERE®

(c)

“E-—FF# ANNUAL REPORT 2021

KA IRBATIR R 38 FH (@)

HRARRESSEECAEERS
BAXMEADIRENAER T -
A E BIER &5 E RIS 325% A
HERMABHEMNNRE - Bt - 2
WRBEeR T A ERER - M
EDIRERE R EREmIRE R
e

HE—_2-_—F+-_A=+—81
FE AEBRERAFEDIK
#95,841,000% 7L (FEE RO AR
4,860,000 MR E(EHE-_ZT =
TFE+-_A=Z1+—HILFE : B2
FLAZFE (5,841,000 7T FEE R
ANE® 4942 0007T)) RBAEE
(17,523,000 7L (FHERH AR
16,224,0007T)) 7 Ik 4923,364,000
BIT(HERHARE21,166,000
TLKFIE) - RZZE=—F+=1
=+—8 " TEZRFELEHK(=
E_ZFE+_A=+—8 : &)
ARRRAME D IRFEES o
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32.

288

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Deficit

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group
includes: (i) the premium arising from
the issue of new shares in prior years; (ii)
the expense incurred in connection with
issuance of new shares in prior years;
(iii) dividends declared and paid in prior
years; and (iv) amount transferred from
share-based compensation reserve upon
exercise of share options.

On 6 January 2016, 215,000,000 shares
were allotted and issued to the Creditor by
capitalisation of part of the Payables. The
excess of the fair value of shares issued
totalling HKD33,325,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB27,822,000) over
the nominal value of the total number
of ordinary shares issued was credited
to the share premium account, after
deducting the issuing expenses.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference
between the aggregate amount of paid-
in capital of the subsidiaries of the
Company and the amount of share capital
of the Company transferred and issued to
Fortune Pearl in exchange for the entire
equity interests in all members of the
Group as part of a reorganisation on 12
June 2009.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Deficit (continued)

(iii)

Reserves
Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC
regulations applicable to wholly-foreign-
owned companies, certain entities
within the Group are required to allocate
certain portion (not less than 10%), as
determined by their Board of Directors,
of their profit after tax in accordance with
PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve fund
(the SRF) until such reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than
in the event of liquidation and, subject to
certain restrictions set out in the relevant
PRC regulations, can be used to offset
accumulated losses or be capitalised as
issued capital.

Specific reserve maintenance and
production funds

According to relevant PRC regulations,
the Group is required to transfer an
amount to specific reserve for the
maintenance and production funds and
other related expenditures based on coal
production volume. The movement of
specific reserve is as follows:

32.

BEX - BERKRE®

d) Eae

(i)  FE
FEEFEL

RIEINEIEE QR B AMNE
B EARG - NEBETH
ETERERESSRTR
FEARSHT R SRS
FEF &% R (2R 10%)
zrTRES(ETHE
&)  EEZREBEZME
KH50% A 1E ©

EERBERTANIK - HE
HIRBRIE N MAREAAR F
B 5 B PR E T BR il A A R
HHRBEEIBERELRR
EEITARARIERIN -

ERFHBEEREEES

RETFEEEMRTE  A5HE
ARBRRESE  H—EK
TR ARG EBIERE R
EEEASNANREMEBR
X o BIAMKBESHWT

RMB’000

ARBFTT

At 1 January 2020 RZEZTF—H—H 176,557

Provision for the year F N 175,296

Utilisation for the year FHNHHA (112,817)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZBZEF+A=FT—8K

1 January 2021 R—_EBE-_—F—HA—H 239,036

Provision for the year FNEE 216,736

Utilisation for the year FHNENA (119,523)

At 31 December 2021 R-ZBE-_—F+-_H=+—H 336,249
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32.

290

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Deficit (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations.

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve
represents the value of directors and
employee services in respect of share
options granted under a Pre-IPO share
option scheme and a share option
scheme as set out in note 33.

Distributability of reserves

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in share premium account and
contributed surplus are distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company
did not have any distributable reserves
(2020: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

32. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

(U]

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at
a reasonable cost. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from that of prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
net debt, which included net of cash and cash
equivalents, borrowings, as disclosed in notes
25 and 28 respectively, and equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company, comprising
share capital, perpetual subordinated convertible
securities and deficit, as disclosed in note 32.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Dividends

The directors of the Company do not recommend
the payment of any dividends to its ordinary
shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: nil).

32. BEX - REEERE®

(e)

(U]
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33.

292

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholders written
resolutions passed on 12 June 2009, the
Company adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme (the Pre-IPO Share Option) whereby the
grantees were granted the rights to subscribe for
shares of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option is 8,400,000 shares
which were granted on 12 June 2009 with the
subscription price of HKD2.52 per share.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option has a vesting period of one to three
years commencing from the Listing Date and
the options are exercisable for a period of 10
years. The Company has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the option in
cash.

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants

33.

RESEEURDABER 2 IR

(a)

BR AR EABREE

BREE-—BRRR_ZTAF AT
“ABBENERRESR  ARFAK
MERARBEEMBERESS(E
RARBEERBRE]D - Bt - &
BARRTRBARRRMDME
o

BIEE X AFEERBRER TN
B ERBETER TEITHR
D #E58,400,0008% - RER—-F
TZAFENAT-BIEE  RBEA
FH2.52/87C °

BOHRBEERAABERBEREM
RbnEkEEBENRE LmEH
HEF—Z2=%F - MBERERN105F
HIBATTE - AR AU EETE i
EEENERESBEENBRE -

(i) B % 8 A A 15 3R I fiR 4 20

are as follows: TS 8

Number of Contractual
Date of Grant options Vesting conditions life of options
BREN
R B BREHE BBEHKRM4 BRI
12 June 2009 8,400,000 30% on both of the first and second 10 years

anniversary of the Listing Date, 40% on

the third anniversary of the Listing Date
—TTNF 8,400,000 LEMHHERE —REZHEFHIAE30% - 104

NA+TZH LT RBEE=BEF /40%
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(a)
(i)

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

33.

BRESEEURODAER ZAR@®

“3-2F:F+-H

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (@) BARXLAHREABRESTS®@
The number and weighted average (ii) BXRRNAEERERENE
exercise prices of Pre-IPO Share Options B RMEFHTEERAT
are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE=-—§+=AH
=t+—HLEFE
Outstanding number of options
GESHEES e 4
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2021 the year 2021
R=B=-%
RoB=-% tZA=t-Af
REAEH RiAH 8 8 -A-BhER EREN &8
HKD 000 000 000
ER T T T
Employees
[E&
Inaggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 1.26 - - -
11 June 2020
g “TEAERATCR CEEAEAATCAZ 126 - - -
ZEIEEART-H
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_ZT_ZF+ = A
=t+—HIEEFE
Qutstanding number of options
HATTRERES B
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2020 the year 2020
RZB_EF
WZZZFF TZA=T-A%
HEAER RHAH 118 e —A-BNER ERER g
HKD 000 000 000
A T T T
Employees
&8
Inaggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 1.26 - - -
11 June 2020
gt “EENERATCR CEEAERATOAR 126 4800 (4,800) =
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Bt 75 R 2R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average
exercise prices of Pre-IPO Share Options
are as follows: (continued)

During the year, no share option (2020:
nil) under the Pre-IPO Share Option was
exercised.

As a result of the bonus issue of one
share for every one existing share held
by the shareholders whose names are on
the register of members on 10 October
2011, the exercise price of the Pre-
IPO Share Options was adjusted from
HKD2.52 to HKD1.26, and the number of
the outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options
as at 10 October 2011 was adjusted from
7,800,000 to 15,600,000 thereupon.

The Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding
at 31 December 2020 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.5
years. The weighted average exercise
price for the outstanding Pre-IPO Share
Options as at 31 December 2020 was
HKD1.26 per share.

(b) Share option scheme
The Company has also adopted a Share Option
Scheme (the Share Option Scheme) pursuant to

the sole shareholders written resolutions passed
on 12 June 2009.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

33.

BRESEEURODAER ZAR@®

(a)

(b)

BRARBEMERESE W

(iy BRARBEBEHBERENE
B R FHITEENT ¢
(&)

REA - BEEBRXARAE
Al E%HX%IETE'JEH%HX*
WITH(ZEZTF  |\) o

BRERZZZE——F+A+
B &5 R A e R S #
B —RIRA B B — AL
BREBETAKR  BRARME
ERBRENTTEER252
BITHER/1.268T 0 MK
—E——FTA+THARERTT
EENEEPNNE Sl 3 g
2 B B7,800,0001) FHE A
15,600,00017 ©

AN _TF+_A=*+—
B ®WARTEERXAREE
AR AE M I RIR A
HHAR BO5F - R -T —
TFEF+ZA=+—H "  HX
TEE R ARSI ERE
BMETFEHITEERER
1.2678 7T °

B E

BREE-—BRRR_ZTAF AT
“HABBENERRESR - ARFIN
B R — IR B ST 8 (TR B =t
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options which then
has been granted and have yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not,
in the absence of the shareholders approval,
in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. Unless approved by
the shareholders, no option may be granted
to any person which if exercised in full would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the share options
already granted or to be granted to such person
(including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding
share option) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such new grant exceeding
1% of the total number of shares in issue as at
the date of such new grant.

An option under the Share Option Scheme may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period as determined by the board of directors
of the Company, which must not be more than
10 years from the date of the grant.

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants
are as follows:

33. EEmRFEUROGRERZAR@®

(b)

BRETE @

RITER BB AR 8| R AR BT
AEBEREFIERERDAER
RITEH AT B RBAER M Al e 31T
MERSRNEE - EERSEERL
EBERT  EXTHBEBTRDE
TN B HI30% ° BRFFACAR R L
M BA HEBITEEZERXA
PHERLEREE R (BEZA)A
128 AR MZ AL REES T
BREZBEREBEETR B
HRARTTEBRE) K  28%E
RO TRTNRDAEES S
MIRHBEREE ANERTRM AR
1% IR ERZALTREBKR
-

FEREST R T B R R RIERE
BETEGREIRARARIZEFEETE
HHE ARER1TE - MARBEA
BB HE TSBB10F -

(i) R IERRIEEFDT

Number of Contractual
Date of grant options Vesting conditions life of options
BREN
RHEBH BREHE HBEGRH BRHR
17 January 2012 20,751,196 40% on the grant date, 30% on both of 10 years
the first and second anniversary of
the grant date
—E——F 20,751,196 RE L AEA40% @ RIFHABREE K 1068
—H++tH FIRFIHIR30%
30 April 2015 157,500,000 40% on the grant date, 30% on both of 10 years
the first and second anniversary of
the grant date
—ZT-hF 157,500,000 PR B EIR40% @ RIRHBHRRE— K 106
MA=+H FIRFIHIR30%
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 33.

(CONTINUED)

BRESEEURODAER ZAR@®

(b) Share option scheme (continued) (b) ey e IC=))
(ii) The number and weighted average (ii) IS ET 2B B R NRE S
exercise prices of share options scheme BITEBHT -
are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEz_ZTT-_—%+=H8
=+—HLEFE
Outstanding number of options
HATRERESE
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2021 the year 2021
RZB=-%
R-B=-% tZA=t-AK
REAEH R A% iid 8 -A-BHER EREN &8
HKD 000 000 000
AR T Th T
Executive director
HiEes
Mr. Fung Wai Shing 30 April 2015 30 April 2015t 0.485 20,000 (20,000) -
29 April 2025
BEEE “T-R4EAZ+A  —F-REMAZTAZ
ZECIEMACTAR
Independent non-executive director
BUFHAES
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 10 0485 500 - 500
29 Apri 2025
AR E ZT-REMA=TR  ZE-RERA=TAZ
ZECRENACTAR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, A0 @m0
Employees
fE&
In aggregate 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 150 1,482 - 1,482
16 January 2022
] “E-—£-fAttE  ZE-—F-fttHE
It ik 2R N
In aggregate 30 April 2015 30 April 2015t 0.485 46,000 (2,000) 44,000
29 April 2025
] — - “E-RE¥mA=TAZ
F =
—2-ZFRA=TH ZZCREMAZTAR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ey e
67,982 (22,000) 45,982
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 33. REZZEHEUROGAEBRZAR®

(CONTINUED)

(i)

(b)  Share option scheme (continued) (b) BREE®
The number and weighted average (i) FEREEEIAEE RMET
exercise prices of share options scheme HITEENT « (8)
are as follows: (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_ZT_ZF+=A
=t+—HLEFE
Qutstanding number of options
HATTRERES B
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2020 the year 2020
i 2
i i _ i R-ZZ5F . TZA=t-BH
N KA i %8 —A-BH&ER ERER )
HKD 000 000 000
BT T T T
Executive director
HiEs
Mr. Fung Wai Shing 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 0.485 20,000 - 20,000
29 April 2025
EERLE “I-R4EEAZ+A  -F-REMAZTRZ
Z2CREMACTAR
Independent non-executive director
BUFHAES
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 30 April 201510 0.485 500 - 500
29 April 2025
i) i “Z-RfRAZTR  ZE-RFRAZ1AR
ZECRENACZTAR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L
Employees
&8
In aggregate 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 1.50 2,594 (1,112) 1,482
16 January 2022
] 5 E-AttA T —E-ATLRE
ZECE-R5H
In aggregate 30 April 2015 30 April 2015t 0485 56,000 (10,000) 46,000
29 April 2025
] “E-REMA=TE  —E-REMAZtHE
ZECRENACTAR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, N AL L B L.
79,09 (11,112) 67,982
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33.

298

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Share option scheme (continued)

(i)

The number and weighted average
exercise prices of share options scheme
are as follows: (continued)

At 31 December 2021, the number of
the exercisable shares under the Share
Option Scheme was approximately
45,982,000 (2020: 67,982,000) shares.

During the year ended 31 December
2021, no share option under the Share
Option Scheme were granted and
exercised (2020: nil).

The share options outstanding at 31
December 2021 had a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 5.2 years (31
December 2020: 5.2 years). The weighted
average exercise price for the outstanding
share options as at 31 December 2021
was HKDO0.52 (2020: HKDO0.52) per share.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

33.

BRESEEURODAER ZAR@®

(b)

B ET S8

(i)

FERERT S| BE KonwEF
BITERENT : (8

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+
—H BREFEET
AITEROHEEOA
45,982 000 (ZE ==&
£ : 67,982,0000%) °

BE-FT-_—FT-A=t
—amir %%%H%E

(_7_7¢ 4ﬂi)

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—
H i A 77 6 /9 B8 B #2 &9 n
TR GG DR A5.2
F(ZE=-ZETF+=-RA=+
—H :52F) RZT=——

F+-_A=+—HHKTE
RS AR MR DM 91 TE B
BER02ETL(ZE-F
£ :05287T) °
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 34. HMBEREYN
As at 31 December 2021, the Company has executed RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—8 X275
corporate guarantee to certain banks and other EETFTARABWEA G ERN—MKRRITE
borrowing creditors with respect to general banking BEREENHARKS,776,820,000T (=%
facilities and borrowings granted to certain subsidiaries —Z4F : AR¥5,936,820,0007T) [A%F F
of the Company of approximately RMB5,776,820,000 RITREMEEERASZIARER - It
(2020: RMB5,936,820,000). In addition, as at G BRA0FT FES8(C)FTINEE MZT = —
31 December 2021, the Company and certain FH+ZA=+—8 ' AR ERARAET
subsidiaries of the Company have executed corporate MEARH— e AR ERNEENA
guarantee to certain banks and one other borrowing R #265,000,0007c(ZE=ZFF : ARK
creditor with respect to borrowings granted to an 270,000,0007T) M & THRIT R —BEME
associate of approximately RMB265,000,000 (2020: EEEABZLRARER -
RMB270,000,000) as disclosed in note 38 (c).
The Group has not recognised any financial liability REBWRFLZEE R RN —RIRITEE
(2020: nil) in respect of the guarantees granted for EENERERTNEMAG(ZEZZ
general banking facilities of the associate as the F 8\ WBERARTEZRATEE
directors of the Company considered that the amounts REBENEBATEK o
of financial guarantee liabilities are immaterial.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. cREREERESMIAZAARE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) =RTAER
2021 2020
—B-—fF —T_FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFTT
Financial assets TREE
At amortised cost RE A E 1,417,377 702,972
Financial liabilities AN
At amortised cost tog E PN s 6,285,283 7,601,506
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35.

300

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk
and currency risk arises in the normal course of
the Group’s businesses. The Group’s exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis.
Credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. In view of the history of business
dealings with the customers and the
sound collection history of the receivables
due from them, management believes that
there is no material credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding receivable
balance due from the customers and
other debtors. Management makes
periodic assessment on the recoverability
of the trade receivables and other
receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there is any dispute with the
debtors. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL on
trade receivables individually or based
on provision matrix. In this regard, the
management considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risks on bank balances are
limited because the counterparties are
banks/financial institutions with high credit
rating assigned by internal credit-rating
agencies.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk
by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC, which accounted for 100% (2020:
99.9%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2021.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk
by customers is 41.9% (2020: 93.3%)
as at 31 December 2021. In addition,
18.59% (2020: 53.43%) of the net other
receivables was due from the five largest
other debtors as at 31 December 2021.
These five largest other debtors include
state-owned enterprise in the PRC and
companies with good past credit records
with the Group. Other than these, the
Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

Financial asset with credit risk exposure
Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowance for
trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significant different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

35.

TRERE

(b)

ErREEMIAEZARE®G)

BEREMREERERBEE®

(i)
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——F+=-—A=+—H15E
W E SR FRAEFER100% (=
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—H - EfEWEREFFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. SRIEREERSMIAZAAREBE®

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Financial asset with credit risk exposure

(continued)
Trade receivables (continued)
The following table provides information

about the Group’s exposure to credit risk
and ECLs for trade receivables as follow:

BEEMREERERBKE®

(i) 15 B /7 Bz 2 5L 18 7P 12 (%)

HiglEERR 2 HEE

€)
B E 5 BR TR (48)

TREH®RABASEREKE
SRR E RS &R R TR

BEEBRNER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount Allowance

RREER REAE BRRt%
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR

As at 31 December 2021 R-B=-%+=A=1+-8H
Type 1: Customers within the Group BRI - BERER 58

expected that they will pay on time: FEEEF -
Neither past due nor impaired RBBPAERE 0% 106,000 =
Past due for less than 60 days ki yNIZN 0% 17,104 =
Past due for more than 60 days but BHBOR N LB R180K

less than 180 days - - -
Past due for more than 180 days but BH1BORA LBIR—F

less than one year 0% - -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L .
Type 2 Credit impaired customer: BRI EEREEP -
Past due more than one year BE—EN 100% 95,619 36,302

218,723 36,302
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. ERIEREERESMIAZAAREBE®

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HERREEBEERBE®
policies (continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 1= B 7 B K 3 (B 71 (%)
(continued)

Financial asset with credit risk exposure EfEEER R 2 EE
(continued) (&)

Trade receivables (continued) FEWE 5 BR R (50)

The following table provides information
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk

TREH®REBEASEREKE
SRR E RS &R R TR

and ECLs for trade receivables as follow: HEEEENER « (B)

(continued)

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount Allowance

BHBER A AE Bk
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR

As at 31 December 2020
Type 1: Customers within the Group

expected that they will pay on time:

Neither past due nor impaired

Past due for less than 60 days

Past due for more than 60 days but
less than 180 days

Past due for more than 180 days but

R-B-Z%+-A=1-H
BRI BERER 5

FEEEF :
FRBTAERE 0% 74,460 -
BELR60K 3.35% 308,584 12,312

BHBORIA LEARI80K

BH1BORIA LEIR—F

less than one year 3.35% % 3
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, .
Type 2: Credit impaired customer: BRI EEREEP -

Past due more than one year BH-FH0E 100% 102,660 43,342
485,800 55,657
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. LHERE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Financial asset with credit risk exposure

(continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated
based on historical observed default
rate and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtor
is updated.

Movement in the loss allowance account

ErREEMIAEZARE®)

BEEMREERERBKE®

1= B 7 B2 & 5 (B 7715 (1)

HiglEERR 2 HEE
(&)

B E 5 BR TR (48)

e EEXTDREELER
BRI RELMGE - AHBA
B ARKES 77 1 A
SHOREEERHEL A -
ERETREMERES A
VARELR A B4 E B A ROAR
FAE RS R -

RF ALY E 5 Bk 5K B B

in respect of trade receivables during the BRERZFSOT
year is as follows:
RMB’000
ARBT T
As at 1 January 2020 R_E_FF—HA—H 132,295
Impairment loss recognised EHERREERE 11,855
Reversal during the year F R (43,591)
Write-off 88 (44,042)
Exchange realignment EHEE (860)
At 31 December 2020 R_B_FF+_H=+—H 55,657
Impairment loss recognised EERREERE 10
Reversal during the year F AR (12,315)
Write-off 1 85 (7,050)
Exchange realignment e H EE -
At 31 December 2021 R=-F-_—-%+=-A=+—AH 36,302
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Other receivables

The Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL of other receivables.
For those balances expected to have
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group apply lifetime
ECL based on aging for classes with
different credit risk characteristics and
exposures.

As at 31 December 2021, included
in other receivables of the Group are
amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of aggregate gross
carrying amounts of RMB322,703,000
(2020: RMB322,703,000). Loss
allowance of RMB322,703,000 (2020:
RMB322,703,000) was provided for these
amounts as at 31 December 2021 since
the management of the Group considers
the probability of default is significant
in view that these amounts have been
overdue for a long period of time.

For the remaining other non-
trade receivables of the Group, the
management of the Group considers
the probability of default by assessing
the counterparties financial background
and creditability and accordingly,
loss allowance of approximately
RMB15,951,000 (2020: RMB22,065,000)
was provided as at 31 December 2021.

35.
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THAREERERMIAZARE®

(b) HHBERREEBEZERBEK®

1] 15 B /7 Bz 2 5 18 7P 12 (%)

H A ENR AR

7R £% [t LA R WR R SR % AR
FE 128 A TR REE RS
THETEEREME - sLEY
SRz SE
ERMNESRT S - ARE
RIB FE & B 5 BN i
A BRI ER 2R
HIEEREIE -

RN-_ZT-——F+—-F=+
—H - AEBE/EMEK
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35.

306

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Other receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account

THEAREERERMIAZARE®

(b) HEEREEBEEEREE®

(i)

=B B R BB 7S (3)

E At EY AR ()

T4 13 EL A 8 W B SR O S

in respect of other receivables during the BRERZHNT :
year is as follows:
RMB’000
AR®T T
As at 1 January 2020 RZZE=TF—HA—H 343,125
Impairment loss recognised ERRREEE 2,414
Reversal during the year FREE (500)
Exchange realignment EHEE (271)
At 31 December 2020 R-BE-_TF+-_A=t+—H 344,768
Impairment loss recognised EERBIESE -
Reversal during the year FREE (2,233)
Write off 5 (8,775)
Exchange realignment EHEE (90)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%+=-A=+—-AH 338,670

Financial guarantee contract

At the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company have performed
impairment assessment, and concluded
that there has been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition of the
financial guarantee contract. Accordingly,
any loss allowance for financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group is
measured at an amount equal to 12m
ECL. No loss allowance was recognised
as at 31 December 2021 in accordance
with IFRS 9 as the amount is immaterial.
Details of the financial guarantee contract
are set out in note 34.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own
cash management, but the borrowings
are subject to approval by the parent
company’s management. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with
any lending covenants, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities which assume
that no occurrence of event of default
at the reporting date of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities and
lease liabilities which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay (with assumption
that there will be no breach of events
in respect of Settlement Agreement of
Loan | and its supplemental agreements
and Settlement Agreement of Loan Il as
detailed in note 28).

35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

—F A= t—ALFE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

35. SREREENRERIEZAREBE®

(b) HHBERKREEBEZERBEK®

(i) TEELERE

As at 31 December 2021
R-Z--F+-A=1+—-8

More than
one year
Within and Total
one year or less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—FRH —£% ARRE
REX BRFR REAE REE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR  AR®TR  ARETxR

Current b
Trade payables BB S8R 321,596 = 321,596 321,596
Other payables HibERERR 2,263,607 = 2,263,607 2,263,607
Lease liabilities HERE 9,631 = 9,631 8,833
Borrowings BE 1,559,595 = 1,559,595 1,475,850
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 414429 T AI44n | 4069886
Non-current FEENE
Lease liabilities HERE = 7,249 7,249 6,925
Borrowings E=T - 2,501,027 2,501,027 2,216,782
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ... 2508276 2508276 2,228,707
4,154,429 2,508,276 6,662,705 6,293,593

Maximum exposure of PBEREH

financial guarantee AR

contracts (note 34) (PfF3E34) 265,000 = 265,000 265,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. SREMEERESMIAEZAARE®
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HERREEBEERBE®
policies (continued)

(i)  Liquidity risk (continued) (i) TEELERE

As at 31 December 2020
RZE-TF+-A=+—H

More than
one year
Within and Total
one year or less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—FAK —Hi& ARR S
HE BREA MEBRE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTL ARETRE ARBTT  ARETRH

Current ]
Trade payables B8 S8R 670,373 = 670,373 670,373
Other payables HibEREER 2,200,859 = 2,200,859 2,200,859
Lease liabilities HERE 3,169 = 3,169 2,805
Borrowings BE 2,242,030 - 2,242,030 1,970,990
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 5116431 7. .. 5116431 4845027
Non-current FEENE
Lease liabilities HERE - 949 949 926
Borrowings E=T - 2,916,392 2,916,392 2,625,364
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Do erem 291784l 2626290
5,116,431 2,917,341 8,033,772 7471317

Maximum exposure of BBRERELD

financial guarantee BAER

contracts (note 34) (PzE34) 270,000 = 270,000 270,000
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B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(ii)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum
amounts the Group could be required
to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount
is claimed by the counterparty to the
guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The table below summarises the maturity
analysis of borrowings and financial
guarantee with respect to borrowings
granted to an associate with a repayment
on cross demand clause based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out
in the loan agreements. The amounts
include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the on demand time band
in the maturity analysis contained in the
above table.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The directors of the Company do not
consider that it is probable that the
bank and other borrowing creditors will
exercise their discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the
Company believe that such borrowings
of the Group and an associate will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements (with assumption that there
will be no breach of events in respect of
Settlement Agreement of Loan | and its
supplemental agreements and Settlement
Agreement of Loan Il as detailed in
note 28, and with maximum exposure of
Settlement Agreement of Loan Ill).

35.

TRERE

(b)

ErREEMIAEZARE®G)

BEREMREERERBEE®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HiE —Z —

—F A= t—ALFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

THEAREERERMTIAZARE®

(b) EBIEA

BREEBEREX®

(i) TEELERE

Maturity analysis Borrowings and financial
guarantee with respect to borrowings granted to
an associate subject to a repayment on cross
default clause based on scheduled repayments
HMAAMBRET HERIZRRNENGIEERBNEER
RY-HBEARGENTKEREN

More than
one year
Within and Total
one year or less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—ERg —F# ARRE

REX BEFR MEAE HREE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-F

t=A=t-H

Borrowings G 1,489,922 2,570,700 4,060,622 3,692,632

Maximum exposure of HBEREH
financial guarantee BAER

contracts 265,000 - 265,000 265,000

At 31 December 2020 RZZ_2F
+-A=+-H

Borrowings & 2,242,030 2,916,392 5,158,422 4,596,354

Maximum exposure of BBRERELD
financial guarantee BAER
contracts 270,000 - 270,000 270,000

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately
RMB2,709,069,000. The liquidity of the

Group is dependent

on its ability to

implement the measures to improve the
Group’s immediate liquidity and cash
flows as described in note 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(iii)  Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from pledged and restricted
deposits, cash and cash equivalents and
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group’s interest rate profile as monitored
by management is set out as below:

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate

35. SREREERESRIEZARE®

(b) HEEBEEAEREE®

(i)  FIEE

AEEMMNERREEKRE
EERRZREFR  Re
RREFEBYREE - 7]
SRR B E M R AR AR B
EEAKEDRARRE SR
ENRER LD A ENXE
o BIEEEENAKER
REEREFIAOT

FIEHER

TREFAEBGEEFE

profile of the Group’s net borrowings at R#E BB RN
the reporting date:
2021 2020
—g8=-f% it Sl 3:3
Effective Effective
interest rate Carrying interest rate Carrying
per annum value per annum value
BRERZ REE  BRFANE REE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Fixed rate borrowings: BEENEEE
Bovowings B SR  3MNER 498G 4004195
Variable rate net borrowings: TERIREETFE
Borrowings & 5.7% 61,000 3.90%-5.7% 562,159
Pledged and restricted deposits BEARZBHER  0.00%0.35% (2,103)  0.00%-0.35% (403)
Cash and cash equivalents Be R SEY 0.00%-0.35% (1,030,439)  0.00%-0.35% (154,904)
L - S HEEe
Total net borrowings BEEFHE 2,660,090 4,441,047
Net fixed rate borrowings BEENEEERRNE
as a percentage of total net AESFENEIN
borrowings 136.52% 90.84%
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

THEAREERERMTIAZARE®

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HERREEBEERBE®

314

policies (continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in the
interest rates of variable rate net
borrowings prevailing at the reporting
date, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit after tax and accumulated
losses by approximately RMB9,714,000
(2020: RMB4,080,000) for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit after tax and consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at
the reporting date and had been applied
to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk at the reporting date. The
impact on the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2020.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. EREREEREMIAZAREBE®
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) BBEBEEAERBIKX®
policies (continued)
(iv)  Foreign currency risk (iv) SMEsE B
RMB is not freely convertible into ARBTT B /HELRAEIN
foreign currencies. All foreign exchange k& o FTE W R AREBINE
transactions involving RMB must take R WBEFBPEANRRIT
place through the Peoples Bank of China A MR T B B INE /Y
or other institutions authorised to buy and HHRHETT - INER FFTEA
sell foreign exchange. The exchange WEXRSPBEARBITAR
rate adopted for the foreign exchange RIPER  ZEERTERH
transactions are the rates of exchange SKEETE o AN [ A 1N 2 ez
quoted by the Peoples Bank of China FERBBEEEUETY
that are determined largely by supply EMRSEHR  MAKBEFA
and demand. The Group is exposed to FEMEBEFEUARKE
foreign currency risk primarily through IR - EERBB)ZE LA
purchases giving rise to cash balances A EEmEBR AN AR
that are denominated in USD, while all *E(EME -
the other operations of the Group are
mainly transacted in RMB. Changes in
exchange rate affect the RMB value of
purchase costs of commodities that are
denominated in foreign currencies.
The following table demonstrates the TRETASERRER
Group’s exposure at the reporting date MREEXBE  MANLA
to currency risk arising from recognised R 5 EEHIEEE B AN
assets or liabilities denominated in WE¥E BmMEENE
a currency other than the functional KR
currency of the entity to which they relate.
2021 2020
B —EZFTHF
Denominated Denominated
in USD in USD
HNETEHE AZETTEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 449 480
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35.

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(iv)  Foreign currency risk (continued)

No sensitivity analysis has been
presented as, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the foreign
exchange risk associated with the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities will
not be significant.

(c) Fair values of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36.
At each reporting date, capital commitments

outstanding not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

THEAREERERMTIAZARE®

(b) HHBEREEBEERBEK®

(iv) MR B2 (%)

R 2 FIHBE DI TR A
AREFRAERAEES
WA E R A EN I ERR S
TEX -

(c) =SRMIENAARE

AREFRBHEKAARNESRTE
FEREE  BER_T-_—F K=
EZ-_EE+_A=+—HAHNARE

DRITRAK °
BEARERE
REFRER - WRREE M SRR E T #
HRRBITEAAENDT ¢
2021 2020
—B=-—fF —E-oTE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Property, plant and equipment WE - BB R

157,042 34,966
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

OPERATING LEASES 37. REMHE
Leases as lessor ERAEBEANEE
The future minimum lease payments receivable under DA B S HE TR T AR R &R FE AR
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: ENFBEOT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Within 1 year —F K 125 2,427
The Group leases vessels under various agreements REBREZIEYRBARBTE A20£30
which typically run for an initial period of 20 to 30 days K(ZZEZEF : 20830R)WmHES
(2020: 20 to 30 days). The agreements do not include o ZEBETRIEEERERE -
an extension option.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BEIRS

The Group has conducted certain transactions with
related parties of the Group, including (i) Mr. Xu, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and his close
family members; (ii) Mr. Xu Da, an executive director
and his close family members; (iii) Qinhuangdao Qinfa
Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Industry”), a company
controlled by Mr. Xu; (iv) Yuanfan Technology Co.,
Ltd. (*Yuanfan Technology”), a company controlled
by Mr. Xu Da and Qinfa Industry; (v) Tongmei Qinfa,
an associate; (vi) Bo Hai Investment Limited (Bo Hai
Investment), a company controlled by Mr. Xu; and (vii)
Fortune Pearl, the ultimate holding company of the
Company.
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

38.

318

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Particulars of transactions between the Group and the

(a)

38. BEIRZ®

AEBFANREEARBESTNXZFIBN

above related parties for the year are as follows: ™
Recurring transactions () REMERS
Transaction amount for
the years ended Payable outstanding
31 December as at 31 December
BE+-A=+—HL R+=-—HA=+—H
FENRZLH iel R 3% 45 Y PB4 BR K
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B--F __T_TF ZEBZ-F _T_FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTIT AR®BTRT AREKETET
Sales of coal to SHERK T
- Tongmei Qinfa - RAIERE - - - -
Chartering HET
~ Tongmei Qinfa - EERE - - - 1,141
Purchase of coal from FREHEKE
- Tongmei Qinfa - EFEREE 10,058 47,304 139,946 176,335

(b)

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

Guarantees provided by related parties

b) BEFRGNER

2021 2020
= —F_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Guarantees of borrowings provided by #R&E4EREE R B
Mr. Xu and his close family members 2B EER 11,046,170 11,046,170
Guarantees of borrowings provided by fREXRENEERXHRE
Mr. Xu Da and his close family REMNEERR
members 5,782,830 5,782,830
Guarantees of borrowings provided by FEEXREHMNEEER
Qinfa Industry 2,756,250 2,756,250
Guarantees of borrowings provided by =R 60 £ B &R
Yuanfan Technology 152,000 152,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by /8% &R M E EER
Bo Hai Investment 2,035,000 2,035,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by B 1212 ft 88 E (R
Fortune Pearl 2,800,000 2,800,000




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 38. BAEALR S (®)

(c)

(d)

Guarantees provided to a related party (c) REHTFT—BBEEINER
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBT T

Guarantees given by the Group REBRAKFHESD
for borrowings obtained by B ERMEER
Tongmei Qinfa 265,000 270,000
Key management personnel remuneration (d) HREEBAL#ME
Key management personnel are those persons HREEEATEEESEESR
holding positions with authority and responsibility BHE - BERESAEEEH
for planning, directing and controlling the WENDRBEENAL(BERRF
activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, EE) BHHREEEATHMS W
including the directors of the Company. Key i
management personnel remuneration are as
follows:
2021 2020
—EZ-F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTT
Directors fee Bz 3,454 4,347
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EZRREWET
in kind 13,031 17,129
Contributions to retirement benefit RIREAET B R
schemes 687 477
Share-based payments VAR B ERE 2 5K - -
17,172 21,953

—E-—FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

39.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

Outstanding litigations

(i)

Litigation claims relating to repayment
to non-controlling shareholders of
Xingtao Coal Mine, Fengxi Coal Mine
and Chongsheng Coal Mine

On 1 September 2020, there was a
litigation claim initiated by the non-
controlling shareholders against the
Group to claim for 20% of coal production
of Xingtao Coal Mine, Fengxi Coal Mine
and Chongsheng Coal Mine from the
year of 2013 to 2019 as the distributions
entitled to non-controlling shareholders
of Xingtao Coal Mine, Fengxi Coal Mine
and Chongsheng Coal Mine for the
aforesaid period, which were equivalent
to aggregate amount of approximately
RMB584,410,000. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the
Group has a valid ground to defend
against the claim, and no provision for
the litigation claims has been provided
in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021. Up to
the date when the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, the
litigation claim is still in progress.

As at 31 December 2021, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that
the provision for the above litigation is
sufficient in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December
2021.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Outstanding litigations (continued)

(i)

Litigation claims relating to repayment
to a former shareholder of Xinglong
Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine

In February 2021, the Group received
notice from the Shuozhou City
Intermediate People’s Court that a
lawsuit was filed by one of the former
shareholders of Xinglong Coal Mine and
Hongyuan Coal Mine against the Group
to claim for unsettled consideration
payment amounting to RMB30,469,000
for acquisition of Xinglong Coal
Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine and
related compensation amounting to
RMB3,000,000. Up to the date when
the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue, the litigation
claim is still in progress. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that
the provision for the above litigation is
sufficient in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December
2021.

39. HARBE@®

(a) FRARFR®@®D

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

39.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Outstanding litigations (continued)

(iii)

Litigation claims relating to the
performance of the contract execution
between Yu Lin Zhong Kuang Wan
Tong Construction Limited Company
(“Yu Lin Zhong Kuang”) and Hongyuan
Coal

During the year ended 31 December
2019, Yu Lin Zhong Kuang initiated a
litigation claim against the Group to
demand for economic losses in relation
to the suspension of construction project
of coal mining infrastructure, of which
amount are related to compensation to the
staff costs and equipment costs incurred
during the implementation of the project.
The claim amount is approximately
RMB10,121,000. Up to the date when
the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue, the litigation
claim is still in progress. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that
the provision for the above litigation is
sufficient in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December
2021.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Outstanding litigations (continued)

(iv)  Litigation claims relating to the
performance of the purchase contract
execution between Shanxi Yunxin
International Trade Co., Ltd (“Shanxi
Yunxin”) and Huameiao Energy,
Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and
Chongsheng Coal

During the year ended 31 December
2019, there was a litigation claim initiated
by Shanxi Yunxin against the Group
to demand immediate repayment of
overdue payable in relation to purchases
of consumables and equipment by the
Group. The overall claim amount of
approximately RMB74,934,000, which
including the aforesaid payable to this
supplier of approximately RMB54,124,000
and late penalty interest of approximately
RMB20,810,000. Up to the date when
the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue, the litigation
claim is still in progress. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that
the provision for the above litigation is
sufficient in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December
2021.

Other than the disclosure of above, as at 31
December 2021, the Group was not involved in
any other material litigation or arbitration. As far
as the directors of the Company were aware,
the Group had no other material litigation or
claim which was pending or threatened against
the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
was the defendant of certain non-material
litigations, and also a party to certain litigations
arising from the ordinary course of business.
The likely outcome of these contingent liabilities,
litigations or other legal proceedings cannot be
ascertained at present, but the directors of the
Company believe that any possible legal liability
which may be incurred from the aforesaid cases
will not have any material impact on the financial
position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

39.

324

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Financial guarantees issued

As at the end of each reporting period, the Group
has issued the guarantees to certain banks
and one other borrowing creditor in respect
of borrowings made by Tongmei Qinfa, an
associate of the Group. Under the guarantee, the
Group that is a party to the guarantee are jointly
and severally liable for any of the borrowings of
Tongmei Qinfa from those banks and the other
borrowing creditor.

The maximum liability of the Group at 31
December 2021 under the guarantees issued
is a portion of the outstanding amount of
the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa amounting
to approximately RMB265,000,000 (2020:
RMB270,000,000).

Borrowing default clause

The Settlement Agreement entered into between
the Group and an asset management company
contained a default clause which the Group will
be required to repay the outstanding balance of
the original borrowings and interest payable if
the Group fails to repay the new borrowings by
instalments in accordance with the respective
repayment schedule. Particulars of the
Settlement Agreement are disclosed in note 28.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF
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40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  40. ZAXQ RMEEARR T
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of BERRBRRFERNPBM AT ERD
the Company at the end of the year is as follows: ™

2021 2020

—E-—F e 3

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Non-current assets FEREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZRE 301,673 =
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables and prepayments H b FE U IR SRR TEAT BR =K = 421
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE YL BfY 8~ B FRIE 763 =
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEFEEY 161 37
924 458

Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables o Ath FE AT BR 5K (18,005) (13,009)
Netcurrent liabilites nBAfER 0 (7081  (12551)
Net assets/(liabilities) BEESE(AEFH 284,592 (12,551)
Capital and reserves &7 R et 4
Share capital A& A 211,224 211,224
Perpetual subordinated convertible K AR RO 3B 5

securities 156,931 156,931
Deficit B A (83,563) (380,7086)
Total equity/(deficit) (B4 MR 284,592 (12,551)
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of R-TE - —F=fF=+—HERHEZE
Directors of China Qinfa Group Limited on 31 March EERARESSHAEREETE -
2022.

Xu Da Bai Tao
"z HE
Director Director
E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. 772 THB AR R @)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual NATHAR DRI RN EY R ERNEEE
components of equity between the beginning and the FIBEHEHV T -

end of the year are set out below:

Perpetual
subordinated Share-based
Share Share  convertible  Contributed Exchange compensation  Accumulated Total
capital premium securities surplus? reserve reserve losses equity
R
KARE RE#Y

e RiteE  TRRES HABE EXfR Heft 2iEE EHER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR  ARMTZ  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR

Note 32(b)  Note 32(d)(i) Note 32(c) Note 32(d)(iv)
Wasah)  KEi)  KE) Hka2(d)(v)

At 1 January 2020 RZ2-2F-F-H 211,224 344,186 156,931 658,719* (22,700) 10,077 (900,367)* 458,070
Loss for the year EmEE
Other comprehensive income £ 2ERA - - - - (13) - (421,874) (421,887)
Foreign currency translaion MR8 EE

differences - - - - (27,568) - - (27,568)
Total comprehensive income 2 EMALE - - = = (27,581) = (421,874) (449,455)
Transactions with equity HERREAZRS

shareholders, recorded REREEIIR

directly in equity
Distribution relating to perpetual BB ARR AR

subordinated convertible BHLAR

securities - (21,166) - - - - - (21,166)
Total transactions with equity ~ EEHBEALZR S

shareholders a% = (21,166) = = = = = (21,166)
At 31 December 2020 and RZB-%%

1 January 2021 TZA=t-BR

“%--%-f-A 211,224 323,020 156,931 658,719* (50,281)* 10,077 (1,322,241)* (12,551)

Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - 308426 308426
Other comprehensive income £ f82THA
Foreign currency translaion MR EZE

differences - - - - (6,423) - - (6423)
Total comprehensive income 2 AN - - = = (6,423) = 308,426 302,003
Transactions with equity HEGREAZRS

shareholders, recorded RERERIE

directly in equity
Distribution relating to perpetual AR AR AR

subordinated convertible EHL DR

securities - (4,860) - - - - - (4,860)
Share options lapsed BANERE - - - = = (6,352) 6,352 =
Total transactions with equity ~ EEEBAALZR S

shareholders &8 - (4,860) - - - (6,352) 6,352 (4,860)
At31 December 2021 RoF--%

+-A=t-H 211,224 318,160 156,931 658,719* (56,704)* 3,725 (1,007,463)* 284,592

326 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED +EEREEERAT



40.

41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & &2 — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

These reserves accounts comprise the deficit of
RMB83,563,000 (2020: deficit of RMB380,706,000) in the
statement of financial position of the Company.

b Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the net asset value of Qinfa Investment Limited
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation and the nominal value
of the share issued by the Company in exchange.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Settlement Agreement of Loan | and its supplemental
agreements

On 15 March 2022, the Group further entered into a
legally binding supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Settlement Agreement Il of Loan I”) with the asset
management company for further revision on repayment
schedule with remaining repayment amount of
RMB2,378,125,900 in total and the repayment schedule
for the period from 20 March 2022 to 20 December
2023 remained unchanged, but the repayment amount
in each instalment was revised.

Settlement Agreement of Loan Il and its
supplemental agreement

On 18 February 2022, the Group further entered into a
legally binding supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Settlement Agreement of Loan I1”) with the asset
management company to revise the repayment
schedule with remaining repayment amount of
RMB135,443,300 in total, and the repayment schedule
for the period from 10 March 2022 to 10 November
2023 remained unchanged, but the repayment amount
in each instalment was revised.

40.

41.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & — T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

41.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

Other

In March 2022, the Group entered into a legally
binding supplemental agreement with an asset
management company to reduce the outstanding
principal amounts of a bank loan assigned by a bank
and the relevant outstanding interests amounting to
approximately RMB50,870,000 and RMB22,640,000
in total respectively, to a new outstanding amount of
RMB62,190,000 in which RMB50,000,000 was repaid
by 15 March 2022.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEIZZEKEERATF

41.

BREBRER®

Hit

RZBEZ—F=A AEEHE—BEEE
BRAEYL—MEERORNINETH
& B ERITATEERTERREER
SHEMERAREENEAEDBNOARE
50,870,0007T & A R # 22 640,0007T Bl J8
B AEESEARKG62,190,0000T ' H
F AR#50,000,000ER T -—F =
ATHBRIEE -



ry...

QINFA GROUP

www.qginfagroup.com



	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	BACK COVER

